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BBC Worldwide exists to support the BBC’s public service mission by
exploiting the commercial potential of BBC intellectual property, talent
and the BBC brand and, whenever possible, to help other high quality
British intellectual property reach global markets. Our aim is to
maximise profits on behalf of the BBC in a way that is consistent with
BBC standards and values.

Headline sales*

£1,085m
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BBC Worldwide at a glance

BBC Worldwide has five operating businesses,
each driving sales and profits globally

Operating business

Description

Headline sales*

Headline profit/(loss)*

Channels

Offers a global showcase for the best of Bntish telewision via a
portfolio of 32 intemational, BBC-branded TV channels, and
the pilot of the Global BBC Player A further 10 channels — the
UKTV portfolio — operate in the UK through a joint venture with
Secnpps Networks Interactive Also manages affiiate sales for
BBC World News

£344.6m

+13 7%

2010/11 £303 1m

£42.3m

+9 9%

2010/11 £38 5m

Sales &
Distribution

The largest distnbutor of fimshed TV programmes outside the
US studios wath a sales team present in 11 global offices
serving 200 terntones Distrbutes BBC Worldwade's catalogue
of high quality content to over 700 intemational broadcasters
and digital platforms

£292.7m

+12 3%

2010/11 £260 6m

£72.3m

+13 0%

2010/11 £64 Om

Consumer
Products

Global producer and distnbutor of TV-based packaged media
Encompasses video (including DVD, Blu-ray and download-o-
own (DTO)), hcensed merchandise, music, book and audio
publishing partnerships Also the home of bbeshop com

£211.4m

-15.8%

2010/11 £2561 1m

£49.1m

4 1%

2010/11 £51 2m

Global Brands

Maximuses the long-term value of BBC Worldwide's major
brands, creates closer consumer engagement, and wdentfies
and cultivates emerging businesses such as Live
Entertainment and Digital Entertainment & Games

£146.6m

+1 7%

2010/11 £144 2m

Memo reporting for all of BBC Worldwde's key brands?

£321.1m
+4 2%

2010/11 £308 1m

-£17.3m

-34.1%

2010/11 -£12 8m

Content &
Production

Develops and acquires content for all BBC Worldwide's
businesses to exploit Licenses formats and runs a global
network of production studios Also provides experlise to
producers, bnnging together interested investors to enable
projects to come to fruttion

£135.5m

+31 8%

2010/11 £102 8m

£10.5m

+32 9%

201011 £7 9m

" Percantages refer to year-on-yesr change
! Memo reporting includes brands such as Top Gear, Dancing with the Stars and BBC Earth See page 17
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Chairmman’s statement

BBC Worldwide and its shareholder, the BBC, have much to celebrate in the results and progress achieved in the year And there are grounds for pride
n more than just its financial performance BBC Worldwide makes the best of the BBC’s creative output accessible across the world The international
channel portfolio it owns and distnbutes now reaches 356m homes, across every habitable continent Dancing with the Stars, the international version of
Strictly Come Dancing, has been seen by an estmated 250m wviewers, and has been licensed 1o 40 countnes The Planet Earth DVD can be found in
one in 25 US homes To date, over 10m people have been o one of BBC Worldwide's live events [ts flagship website, BBC com, achieved a monthly
average of 58 5m unique users Premum BBC senes travel far and wide, with new hits such as Frozen Planet now sold in 155 markets, and Sherfock \n
158 Doctor Who Senes 6 claimed its siot as the most downloaded senes on ITunes in the USAn 2011

As the UK's largest exporter of finished TV programmes, BBC Worldwide also represents programming from over 200 independent production
companies In 2011112 £76 2m was paid to indies in upfront nghts investment, profit share and royaltes Research from PACT shows that intermational
revenue today accounts for 25% of the independent sector's revenue, frequentty bnnging crucial co-production money Without this, some programmes
would be simply unaffordable for the BBC's core UK audiences

| took on the char of BBC Worldwide, in my capacity as Director-General of the BBC, shortly before the year end This followed the departure of Robert
Webb QC on taking up a full-hme executive position at Rolls-Royce plc Robert oversaw a penod of successful reshaping and strong performance, and
on behalf of both BBC Worldwide and the BBC, | would like to place on record our thanks for his service This year also saw the departure of Nicholas
Eldred, formerty General Counsel for the BBC Nichotas served as a BBC-nominated Non-executive Director of BBC Worldwade for five years, making a
valuable contnbution throughout

The subject of governance is reported in full on page 27 The Company operates 1n ine with the 4 Commercial Cntena fit with the BBC's public
purposes, not jeopardise the good reputation of the BBC or the value of the BBC brand, extibit commercial efficiency, and comply with the BBC Trust's
Fair Trading policy, the BBC's Far Trading Guidelnes and, in particular, avoid distorting the market These are deeply embedded in the company's
culture and processes So too are BBC Worldwide's values, which include all those of the BBC

Serving as Director-General of the BBC gives me a unique perspective on the vatue created by BBC Worldwide Since | became Director-General,
revenue has aimost doubled under the teadership of John Smith, and its headline profits have grown four-fold in just eight years — a noteworthy track
record In an increasingly constrained financial environment, BBC Worldwide delivered a record £215 7m return to the BBC in the year This ts vitally
important money for the BBC, and | am certain that my successor as Director-General will continue te rely on BBC Workdwde's contnbution

Looking forward, the BBC's transformation programme, Delrvering Quality First (DQF), designed to deliver operational efficiencies of 20% over five
years, will also make some extra demands on BBC Worldwde These include increased investment in BBC productions, a smaller pipeline of BBC-
commussioned content and the need to balance immediate cash repatnation with BBC Wordwide's own investment needs To ensure a strong and
growing retum in future years, the BBC 1s therefore working closety with BBC Waorldwide on possible ways to bnng in external investment and promote
growth

Finally, on behalf of the shareholder, and the UK licence fee payer, | would like to thank all at BBC Worldwide for therr achievements in delivering
another excellent performance this year

Mark Thompson
Chairman, BBC Wordwide
and Director-General, BBC
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Chief Executive’s review

Our company exists to generate investment for BBC programmes and
senvices through commercial exploitation of the BBC's assets, to further
the BBC's mission around the world, and to promote the UK's creative
industnes overseas We made good progress on all three in the year, and
are particularly pleased to deliver a record retum to the BBC, increasing
by 18 6% to £215 7m {2010/11 £181 9m)

*  Headkne sales grew 5 4% to £1,085 Om (2010/11 £1,029 8m),
despite a volatile macro-economic environment and lower market
growth rates in many countnes

. Headhne profit increased 7 9% to £154 8m (2010/11 £143 5m)

*  And profit before tax was up 13 0% to £103 5m (2010/41 £91 6m)
Thus excludes gains on last year's disposal of Animal Planet Europe
to give a like-for-like picture

We sustained the high level of financial performance of recent years
Three of our five operating businesses — Channels and Sales &
Oistnbution, respectively our largest by revenue and by profit, and
Content & Production — grew revenue at double-digit rates and together
generated over £90m of additional headline sales compared to last year

BBC Amenca performed in line with an ambitious investment plan, while
n emerging markets we launched a new BBC HD channel in Latin
Amenca, and extended existing feeds such as Pan-Asia into mare
countnes Sales & Distnbution achieved double-digit profit growth, with a
trebling of programme sales to digital services Advertising revenue grew
n double-digits for our channels and BBC com alke Other highlights
included continued success with the production of Dancing with the Stars,
new live events from Doctor Whe to CBeebies, reaching 1 5m wisitors
across 10 countnes, and the start of production on the feature film
Walking With Dinosaurs 30

Transforming our portfolio

At the same time, we furthered our business transformation, parting
company wath BBC Magazines, a major and long-standing business
Adong with the disposal of Animal Planet Europe in 2010, this 1s the
second profit centre we have sold in two years While these transactions
have helped rebalance our portfolio for future growth, and provided a
significant cash return to the BBC, they have also reduced our annual
headline profit by some £35m We made positive progress on all our
strategic objectives, shown in the KPI table below and discussed in detail
on pages 613

The decision to exit BBC Magazines came after careful thought Our
Board concluded that its long-term success lay with new owners, who
could pursue sector consolidation and emerging format investment with
fewer constraints Therefore on 31 October 2011, we entered into a sale,
heence and contract publishing agreement with Exponent Pnvate Equity,
which saw the majonty of titles change hands We also sold our shares in
our Indian magazine pubhshing joint venture, Worldwide Media, to our
partner Bennett, Coleman & Co Together these transactions commanded
a healthy consideration of £121 Om, generating a matenal profit on
disposal and helping increase dividends to the BBC

August saw a change in shareholder at our successful channels joint
venture, UKTV | would hke to thank outgoing sharehclder, Virgin Media,
for a successful relattonship over many years, and to welcome Scripps
Networks Interactive, our new partner

Innovation

It was also a year of enormous digital progress This included a host of
content licensing deals to digital services, such as urban science fiction
drama Misfits to US wideo-on-demand service, Hulu, where each episode
became the most-watched show that week, and which remains «n rts top
50 shows of all tme We have taken great stndes with our two-year-old
games business — releasing 11 games in the year, wath a further 12 1n
development, resulting in 3 5m downloads We have also had a total of
25m apps downloaded, while our programmes have now been
downloaded over 31m times around the world 12 8% of our revenue now
comes from digital businesses

Supporting the BBC

We are hugely proud of the contnbution we make to the BBC, which s a
unifying force throughout our business Qur financial support for the BBC
mainly takes the form of direct investment and facilitating co-production

Cur strategic key performance indicators

2003/04 201011 2011M2
Headline sales from intemational’ (%) 387 555 64 3
Revenue from digital (excl JVs) (%) 05 81 128
Channels subscnber homes {(m) nfa 343 356
Investment in distnbution nghts (Emy) 907 92 9* 98 6
Registered eCRM users (m) n/a 23 48

' 61 1% on & continuing business bas:s in 2010/11

* 93%ona continung business basis in 2010/11

* Comparafive figures have been restated to exclude co-production funding from
third partes See note 14 of the Financial Statements for further defarls

deals, as well as cash dividends paid from profits and other sources of
cash Much loved programmes such as Frozen Pianet and Doctor Who
benefit hugety from this funding Our total return to the BBC this year
amounted to a record £215 7m, equivalent to over one pound in 10 spent
by BBC Vision This takes returns since 2004 to over £1 3bn BBC direct
nghts and co-production investment totals £78 1m (2010/11 £78 5m)
while divdends in respect of the year are £111 Om (2010/11 £76 4m)

UK creative industries

We hcensed over 100,000 hours from our catalogue, exporting the best of
the BBC'’s output and other high quality Bntish content around the world
February saw the biggest ever BBC Worldwide Showcase, our annual
intemnational sales event This year’s Showcase generated an estimated
£50m of TV sales We represent content from over 200 independent
producers, including output and development deals with 26 in the year,
benefiting the wider UK creative sector These are underpinned by our
expertise as Europe’s leading distnbutor for finished TV programme sales,
we are the largest outside the US studios, according to a report by
Attentional in September 2011, and have been rated top in the UK by
ndependent proeduction companies for the last two years

People and soclety

As custodians of the BBC's brand in the commercial space, how we do
things 1s as important as what we do That 1s why we pnontise our values,
embedding them in processes from recrutment to appraisals, and
considenng them above profit in our commercial deaisions Qur corporate
responsibility activity has four components Environment, Ethical Sourcing,
Outreach and People We strive towards the highest standards in each,
taking meaningful action to improve in each area It 1s my aim to root
corporate responsibility in all areas of our business and inspire
engagement in all our staff and company practices

Looking ahead

To ensure BBC Worldwde's continuing ability to supplement the licence
fee in future years, and to promote the BBC and British creatmty to
international audiences, we need to stay abreast of devetopments in
technology, market practice and consumer behaviour With that in mind,
we are refreshing our company strategy, and intend to invest more to
increase our focus con fast-groming BBC-branded services, such as our
wholly-owned and operated channels, around the world This investment
will be matenal in some places, but 15 justified by the long-term financsal
retumns available

To optimise delivery of our strategy intemationally, we are also moving
our organisation from global lines of business to an increasingly regional
structure This move to a regional focus wall be balanced, in our
headquarters by strong global accountability and expertise in content,
brand and editonal Implementation of these changes will be a prmary
focus in the year ahead At the same time, we will remarn firmly focused
on delivery to our consumers and partners, and thereby prowvide another
strong financial perfoomance for our parent, the BBC

John Smith
Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide
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Business model

BBC Worldwde Is in the business of commercialising TV properites in all kinds of ways, tnformed by our brand management expertise and by consumer
insight We invest in nghts usually at the commussioning stage, sometimes having been involved in the development process, and always informed by
our understanding of market dynamics and trends

The majonity of our catalogue are BBC commussions, preduced both by BBC Vision Productions and by the independent sector Rightsholders, including
wnters, performers and production companies, stand to benefit both from our upfront investment, and from a subsequent stream of royalties from
successfui commerciahisation We monetise nghts across a variety of platforms and media around the world — bringing consumer insight, the power of
the BBC brand and our local knowledge to bear These include

«  seling finshed programmes to broadcasters around the world,

*  acquinng them for our own BBC-branded channels,

. publishing to consumers on DVD, download-to-own, or other forms of electronic ownership or access,
*  bunding websites, apphcations and games around the content,

*  heensing brands to third parties to tumn into consumer products, such as toys, gifts or clothing,

»  re-producing formats and related IP with a local flaveur through international production,

+ delivenng live events and expenences to fans, and

»  pubbshing as books and magazines, some through third-party relationships

We actively apply brand management to our highest impact properties — our ‘global brands’ which have a presence across at least five of the areas
above and revenue potential of £50m or more These brands make up over a quarter of our total business We &lso apply a focused brand management
approach 10 our global channe! portfolio and digital service brands 47% of headline sales now comes from 12 brands We are actively driving consumer
connections and relationships across all our prionty brands Our challenge is to be best-in-¢lass in all our major areas of nghts exploitation
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Our strategic objectives

1 Dnive digital growth

Why digital?

The digital media revolution Is progressing at a rapid pace, impacting on traditonal media sectors Digital 1s becorming increasingly important to our
tndustry’s future and 13 where our consumers, platforms, and devices are heading BBC Worldwde has long understood this and sees digital platforms !
as an opportunity both to bnng new audiences to ocur content and to produce new and unique forms of content and entertainment

How are we doing it?

With consumers’ increasing wish for content anytime and anywhere, we are meeting their needs by pursuing muttiple distnbution opportumitres and
business models Our focus 1s to gain competitive advantage through drniving digital reach and revenue growth across multiple ptatforms — websites,
apps, connected TV, social networks and consumer electronics Iike games consoles

As new operators emerge, BBC Worldwde has been at the forefront of the industry, expenmenting wath our content on new platforms to ensure that
BBC-branded programmes reach the widest possible audience

We do this through a combination of building our own direct fo consumer proposihions like the pilot of the Global BBC iPlayer and BBC com, which

enhance our existing muttiplatform offer, as well as making our content available to audiences on third-party platforms like Tunes, Amazon, Netflix and

Hulu We are also developing new digital entertainment proposibons For example, we have developed 11 games titles in the 1ast 12 months and

increased the global reach of BBC com to 58 5m unique wisitors in 2011/12 |

Since its launch in 2007, we have worked hard te build BBC com into a profitable business and in the year ahead, as directed by the BBC Executive
Board in January 2012, we will pass ownership of the news areas of the site over to Global News, enabling it to reinvest profits from the news areas of
BBC com into its core news journalism functions We expect to continue to own and operate the other areas of BBC com and we wll work closely with
Global News to help to continue to dnve BBC com’s performance forward as an important part of the BBC Worldwde digital portfolio

Progress against targots

We are pleased with the results so far Four years ago, BBC Worldwde's digrtal revenue was 2 7% of the total This year it1s 12 8%, having
expenenced a 63% Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) over that term This growth has come from new opportunities for our business We are
expecting to deliver 15% of our revenue from digital businesses by 2015 Further progress against the objectives laid out in last year's annual review 15
sef out over the page

Very strong growth in sales to subscnption video-on-demand services (SVOD) has been dnven by hicensing our content to a host of platforms including
Netfix and LOVEFILM for therr UK market debuts We have also signed videc-on-demand (VOD) deals with Rostelcom and Twigle ru in Russia, Spiegel
in Germany, FetchTV and Quickflix in Australia, Hulu in Japan and Youzee in Spain among others In the download-to-own market, our programming
continues to be atiractive to a global audience In 2011, Doctor Who Senes 6 was the most downloaded series on US 1Tunes and Sherock Senes 1 has
reached the number one position in Australia, France, Gemnany and Canada, a great validation of the international appeal of our content

BBC com launched three new editions, for Asia, India and Austraha/New Zealand, in November 2011, to keep advancing our strategy of a more
locafised BBC com expenence and to maintain its position as the number one intemational news site In Asia Pacffic Cther content enhancements
included the refresh of the Sport section of the website ahead of an exciting summer including the Qlyrmpics and UEFA Euro 2012 Future — the second
spectahst vertical following the travel section the year before — was launched in February, offenng users in-depth analysts on the latest trends in the
worlds of science, technology, health and the environment We also launched our first award-winning Connected TV app exclusively with Samsung
allowing users to access news video and text on demand through televisions and Blu-ray players

In Asia, to dnve the appeai of our content, BBC Worldwide entered into a partnership with a crowdsourcing and subtitling service, Viki com, in October
2011 Viks com crowmdsources subtitles, enabling BBC Worldwide to break down language and distnbution bamers, opening up new markets faster and
more efficiently

Our digital properties continue to go from strength to strength wath bbcgoodfood com's unique wisitors up strongly by 58 5% On topgear com, 74 7% of
the page views for the website are now from outside the UK and the infernational appeal of the brand continues to grow

Over 700,000 people are now registered to lonelyplanet com The website receved over half a billon page wiews in 20411/12 and now reaches a monthly
average of 11 3m umique users {up 35 8% on last year) Overall downloads of Lonely Planet iPhone apps have now reached 10m Lonely Planet
eBooks have also been a big growth area, with more than 260 titfes available and revenue up over 200% year on year

As the mobile and tablet market has grown so too has the demand for all our apps BBC Worldwide has seen considerable growth in paud for, freemium
and advertising supported apps wath over 26m apps downloaded to date and 12 5m apps downloaded in 2011/12
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Our strategic objectives (continued)

1 Dnve digital growth (continued)

Qur specialist games business has been at the forefront of this growth wath Top Gear's Stunt School app launched for the IPhone and 1Pad this year,
which has now been downloaded 2 4m times

Games have seen growth beyond mobile online We have now launched a Top Gear games portal which features 87 games Ouwr first massively
multiplayer onhne social game, Doctor Who Worlds in Time, entered beta phase in March A new Doctor Who game, The Eterniy Clock for the Sony
PlayStation3 and its new handheld Vita platform i1s currently in development Alse in development this year was the first ever Dancing with the Stars
free-to-play casual multiplayer online game where fans can parr up virtually with professional dancers fram the show and choreograph routines

As consumers increasingly use the internet to watch programmes, we decided to launch a pilot of a global on-demand service in July 2011 The Global
BBC iFlayer 1s a subscnphion app, piloted on a number of Apple platforms and prowdes a selection of contempaorary and classic Bntish television with a
unique focus on editonal curation to guide users through almost 2,000 hours of content For more information please visit page 16

Digital technologies underpin the work we are doing to get closer to customers, paricularly our investment in electronic Customer Relationship
Management (eCRM) and social media outined on page 13, and our digital and marketing teams partner closely across this space

Objectives 2011/12 Progress Objectives 2012/13

*  Investin BBC com, particularly by *  New editions for India, Australia/New . Incroase the breadth of content and
localising the service for selocted Zealand and Asia launched, along with localisation of BBC com
markets, further expanding our BBC comifuture, which achieved +  Continue to expand our distributi
content offering Into factual and double our expectations of unique across all d|::|ap|aﬂ:m: on
lifestylo, and bullding our user base users in its first menth ‘

+  Continue growth in apps with

" BBCcom In 2011112 attracted 58 Sm increased focus on second screen and
unique users outside the UK, up from connected TV
§5 1m the year before
+  Contlnue our growth In gamaes to
+  BBC com remalins the number one extond the engagement with our
International news site across Asia brands
Pacific and EMEA. It Is also the fastest
growing International news site in the . Make all our digital products more
US among affluent Individuals, with an soclal
Increase of 12.0% year on year . Develop our existing e-commerce
capabiiities
«  Continue to expand TV distribution . Sales to SVOD services almost trebled
across all digital platforms, Including In the year
piloting the Global BBC IPlayer +  The pilot of the Global BBC iPlayer was
launched in July 2011
+  Develop a bigger games portfolio and *« 11 games released to dato
mora moblle services and apps .

78 apps launched In the year, taking
total to 375, with a further 30 in
development

*  Enhance cur e<commerce +  Continuad to work on a mix of fully
capabilities owned and industry standard
e-commerce opportunities
*+  Manage a gradual transition from «  Continued focus on organic investment
physical products to digital in digital, including hybrid product,
complemented by exit from BBC
Magazines
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Our strategic objectives (continued)

2 Become more international

Why international opportunities?

For a media company of our size and scale, operating on a global basis 1s the only way to ensure long-term growth New technologies and distnbution
methods mean consumers across the globe can access, share and discuss content faster than before That makes for an increasingly borderless
market for content and products English-speaking terrtones are obvious targets for UK-based media companies But as technology progresses there
are also untapped opportunities in other global markets, which often have faster-growing economies and entertainment sectors Providing legal
distnbution of our programmes and products can also dimimish the effects of piracy and further supports investment into onginal content

Focusing on international markets also supports the BBC's fifth public purpose, ‘Bringing the UK to the world and the world to the UK ' BBC Worldwide
has a cntical role to play in raising the profile of the BBC and the UK creative industnes overseas in addition, through our global business, BBC
Worldwide can prowvide a spnngboard for British talent outside the UK

How are we doing it?

In recent years BBC Worldwide has been particularly focused on dnmang growth in the USA and Australia These are our biggest growth markets,
generating revenue of US$500m and Au$140m respectively Both markets will remain wital for future growth But in the past year, we have started to
focus more on growth opportunities in other terrtones, identifying the most favourable markets for us and preparnng to reorganise where necessary to
deliver them We are in the process of developing market growth strategies for countnes in Asia, Westem Europe, Central and Eastern Europe, Middle
East and Africa (CEEMEA) and Latin Amenca, informed by market knowledge and insight from senior local recruits These strategies are likely to be
supported over ime, by a regronally focused orgarusation, balanced by strong global areas of expertise

Progress against targets

In 2007 we set ourselves a target of two-thirds of revenue to be generated from cutside the UK by 2012 [n 2011/12, 64 3% of headline sales was
denved from outside the UK, up from 55 5% in 2010/11 As highiighted last year, growth in the UK market means we expect to take another year to
reach our target of two-thirds of revenue from outside the UK

The man dnvers for the increase in international revenues were the exit of BBC Magazines, a predominantly Brihsh business, the delivery of Torchwood
Senes 4 by BBC Worldwide Productions, digital growth across all areas, BBC Amenca's performance and new channel launches

Our progress against the objectives laid out In last year's annual review 1s set out below

Objectives 201112 Progress Objectives 2012/13
*  Focus strongly on growing our = The USA and Australia are our biggest *  Grow International sales across every
market share in the USA and growth markets In 2011/12, delivering oparating business
Australia growth of 15 2% and & 9% respectively +  Continue to focus on growing our
+  Drive sales and new business, on a +  Regional Executive Vice Presidents market share in the USA and Australia
regional basis, in all other overseas {EVPs) recrulted for EMEA, Latin *  Reorganise and devolve more
markets, developing specific America and Asla They led the decision-making to markets
business plans for each ragion development of regional business +  Implemont first steps in growth plans
plang, which were submitted to the for Latin America, Asia, Wastern
Worldwide Executive Committae (WEx) Europe and CEEMEA
in March 2012
*«  Grow International sales across * 64 3% of headline sales was derived
evary operating business from outside the UK in 2011112 - up

from 55 5% in 201011

+ International sales grew in four out of
five operating businesses in the year
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Our strategic objectives (continued)

3. Grow the scale of our TV channels

Why TV channels?

Despite the increasing use of the internet and an explosion in the range of devices available to access media and communications, TV remains the
dominant platform to enjoy programmes Today viewers around the world are watching just over three hours, 10 minutes per person a day, up $ix
minutes over the last five years Owning our own TV channel portfolio means we can capture value at all points of the chain - programme, affiliate and
advertising sales — as well as brand-building for the long tem, and putting ourselves in control of our future

Although the Channels business was only set up In 2005, international channels are now integral to BBC Worldwide They underpin our intemational
growth strategy, allowing our total business to

. Dnve BBC Worldwide's international reach and revenue in growing international pay-TV markets

. Use BBC content to build BBC-branded assets

. Provide a ‘shop window to launch and cross-promote our other products and services, such as consumer products and digital services
+  Commission content from BBC Production, BBC Worldwide and the independent producton community

How are we doing it?

Our TV channels business 1s a hugh growth area, and our largest business by revenue This year we grew the number of subscribers globally to 356m
up from 343m, by launching channels onto new platforms, into new markets, and by growing our subscriber base in hne with the growth of our platform
partners

UKTV, our joint venture partnership with Scnpps Networks Interactive prowides an important second window for BBC content in the UK through a
portfolio of 10 channels in both the pay TV and free-to-air spaces The launch of Really on the Freeview platform in August 2011 increased availability
and wiewership of the portfolio which in part contnbuted to a significant year-on-year increase in advertising sales

The UKTV channels reman a significant source of income and profit for BBC Worldwide

Our biggest channel, BBC Amenca, was one of the fastest growing networks for ratings and subscnptions in the US and 18 now in 77 4m homes (up
from 68 S5m last year), due in part to a new deal with Cablevision

Investment in BBC Amenca saw a 29% ratings growth in the fourth quarter year on year, and the channel 18 up seven places in the overall US cable
rankings over 2011

This year, we had 10 launches of our channel brands across three key regions BBC Knowledge, BBC Lifestyle and BBC Entertainment made therr first
appearance In Tawan The same three launched in Thailand, along with CBeebies, while BBC Lifestyle debuted in Indonesia CBeebies launched as a
programming block 1n the Nordics, in partnerstup with one of the region’s largest commercial broadcasters BBC HD launched as a full channel in
Spanish-speaking Latin Amenca This has been followed in May 2012 by the launch of our first dedicated BBC channel in Brazil, one of the fastest
growming TV markets in the world

On arr, this was our first year of significant onginal commissions — both locally and globally New tities included Dripping in Chocolate, a murder mystery
for UKTV in Australia and New Zealand ts premiere was seen by 3 2% of the subscription TV audience Come Dine with Me South Afnca,
commissioned for BBC Entertainment in that market, set audience and advertising sales records, with time slot share up 172% For BBC Knowledge
channels around the worid, we made Year of Adventures, based on the Lonely Planet book of the same title BBC Amenca 1s in the process of building
new BBC franchises wth a raft of onginal shows, including Would You Rather with Graham Norton The channel's first onginal drama Copperis due to
follow in August

We are also creating urigue global viewing expenences for our viewers by hosting hive events with real scale This new strategy premiered with the
successful broadcast of the Royal Wedding in April 2011 These synchronised broadcasts, which also included Sport Relief in early 2012, leverage the
global reach of our channel network and connect with pubiic service BBC channels in the UK We have also begun to air major senes, like the latest
senes of Top Gear and The Graham Norton Show, wilhin days of their UK broadcast as a way of serving loyal fans and combating piracy Post year end,
we also broadcast Planet Earth Live, the BBC’s first ive global wildlife event in May London Caliing, a global programming event designed to showcase
the Brtish capital to the world ahead of the Olympics, began in June with the Queen’s Diarnond Jubilee celebrations live from London

Another development was the launch of the Global BBC iPlayer pilot to extend our branded services into the digital on-demand space




BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2012

Our strategic objectives (continued)

3 Grow the scale of our TV channels (continued)

BBC international channels and platforms include

. Five BBC-branded genre channels which are individually tatlored for each market — BBC Entertainment, BBC Lifestyle, CBeebies, BBC HD and
BBC Knowledge Two branded programming blocks — BBC Earth and Lonely Planet — are integrated into our factual channel, BBC Knowledge

- BBC Amenca

*  BBC-branded UKTV Australia and UKTV New Zealand

- BBC Canada (with Shaw Media) and BBC Kids (with Knowledge Network) in Canada
+  BBC World News — distnbution and advertising sales for the BBC's commercially funded news and information channel
» 10 channels in the UK wia UKTV (co-owned with Scrnipps Networks Interactive) including Dave, Watch and Yesterday

+  Management of the relay of BBC public-service channels to Ireland, Belgium and the Netherlands

. The pilot of the Global BBC 1IPlayer in 16 markets across Europe, Canada and Austraha

Objectives 2011112

Progress

Objectives 201213

+  Continue to invest in our
international portfolio of channels to
build scale, driving subscriber
numbers and average revenue per
user

Subscriber homes up from 343m to
356m, advertising up in double-digits
and consistent across every region,
particularty where we have made recant
investment in channels

. Launch new channels in selected
markets, including HD and video-on-
demand (VOD) services

10 new services launched, including
new HD feed in Latin America, and
CBeables block in Nordics

. Pilot the Global BBC iPlayer in
selacted markets

Global BBC iPlayer now launched Into
16 countries In pilot phase

Continue to invest in our intermational
portfolio of channals to build scale,
driving subscriber numbers, and
avarage revenue per user

Launch new channels in selected
markets, including HD and video-on-
demand (VOD) services

Showcase the best of British creativity
through a range of branded services
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4. Increase iInvestment in new content

Increase Investment in new content

Over the lasl year, BBC Worldwide has invested £88 6m in distribution nghts, three-quarters of which was into BBC commissions We have produced
and heensed 36 formats in 43 countnies around the world

Why new content investment?

As audiences’ tastes and wiewing habits change, we are changing the way we look at and develop content BBC P 1s the comerstone of our content
strategy and forms the vast majonty of iInvestments we make This investment 1s even more crucial to fund BBC programmes after a tighter licence fee
settlement We need increasing levels of content to fuel the growth ambitions of all our busmesses and so we also look to supplement the BBC content
in our pipeline with pregrammes from other sources Understanding the needs of different markets and having a flexible approach to addressing them 1s
vital, and we are finding innovative ways to bnng commssioners, producers and other partners together

How are we dolng It?

We are committed to enhancing the benefits we bning to the BBC and to independent production companies by prowviding producers with greater
expertise and market understanding To that end, our Content & Production business was restructured in February, from three teams (acquinng nghts
from the BBC, from independent producers and a strategy team) to five genre-focused teams (factual, drama, comedy, entertainment and music), each
consisting of specialists who seek, develop and secure the best content from the creative community for BBC Worldwide to manage and distnbiute As
part of this, we also extended our investment and acquisitron responsibiliies across all BBC Worldwide businesses, including our branded channels,
DTO and home video

As always outstanding content sits at the heart of our growth A summary of activity by genre follows here

International demand for factual programming is healthy and the UK is producing some of the best factual content in the world Landmark factual senes
such as Frozen Planet are in increasing demand and co-production financing 1s key to delivering this ambition Cur deal to bnng Chinese state
broadcaster CCTV on board for BBC Science's Wonders of Life and Generation Earth 1s a pnme example of this

in drama there has been a renaissance in the penod sub-genre, and cnme shows remain unrelentingly popular Two titles demonstrate how we are
increasingly bnnging partners together Edwardian drama Parade’s End, written by Sir Tom Stoppard and produced by Mammoth Screen, 1s the first
project lo be co-produced and distributed under the new co-venture between BBC Worldwide and Lockout Point with BBC One, HBO and ARTE Our
first scnpted co-production with France Télévisions, Death in Paradise, produced by Red Planel, was successful for the BBC and has been
commusstoned for a second senes

In the growing music television genre, the BBC's coverage of Coldplay’s headline performance at the Glastonbury festval was broadcast Iive across the
USA, Brazil and Germany — the first performances from Glastonbury to be broadcast live outside the UK Exporting Bntish culture to viewers across the
globe 15 a strategy we will look to continue with events such as Radio 1's Hackney Weekend We have also completed an output deal wath Sony Music
in the UK, to complement an existing deal with Universal Music

Comedy remains a key genre for us and has seen us invest n shows such as Twenty Twelve for BBC Two, Big Talk's award-winming Rev for BBC Two
and Ruth Jones' latest show Steffa, helping to bnng a new dimension to the comedy genre

Eurodata research shows that 83% of programmes are produced in the same country they are broadcast in, and so localising formats continues to be a
successful way to enler new markets Our flagship show Dancing with the Stars has now been licensed to 40 countnies The past year has seen local
versions of Top Gear launched in South Korea and China, building on the continued success of the format in the USA for HISTORY Channe! Love
Productions’ format The Great Bake Off delivered excellent ratings for the BBC and was an emerging intemational hit this year with four locat versions
greenit BBC Productions’ The Week the Women Went became the first format we have licensed to Morocco

This year we have also increased commissioning activity for our channels and more details on these programmes can be found on pages 9-10

Our managemaent of talent rights brings access to new content Building a relationship with Nigella Lawson has resulted in a distnbution deal that also
sees BBC Bnstol produce her new senes and our strong partnership with Steve Backshall means an exciting future for Deadly 60 as it becomes an
important brand for BBC Wordwde

11



BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2012

Our strategic objectives (continued)

4 Increase investment in new content {continued)

In addition to our relationship with the BBC, our ability to acquire content nghts comes from the success of our indie relationships We partner with more
than 200 UK indies on a range of output and distnbution deals, and have backed two start-up indies this year, Buming Bnght Productions Limited and
Shm Film & TV Limited, each headed up by proven Bnfish producers This year we took delivery of almost 150 hours of onginal programming from
indies tn which we hold an interest

Objectives 2011112

Progress

Obijectives 201213

Continue to invest in new BBC-
commissloned programmes and
content to support the creation of
distinctive quality content

£78 1m Invested in titles including
Doctor Who Series 7, ice Age and Top
Gear

Support emerging independent
companies through development
finance, co-production deals and
international distribution

£76 2m returmned to UK independents
through upfront rights investment,
profit share and royalties

Start-up investment provided to two

award-winning British producers to
establish new companles

Invest in BBC Worldwlido’s own
production network to secure local
commissions and shows for ocur own
channels and programme catalogue

A particularly successful yoar for
France, with a variety of
commissioned formats

BBC Worldwide Productions had 26
shows greenlit

Dancing with the Stars licensed to two
more markets, taking the total to 40

Develop more direct relationships
with talent

Worked with key UK talent Including
Nigella Lawson, Hairy Bikers, Steve
Backshall and Brian Cox to create
dynamic and commercial content

Further increase our support for BBC
programming

Invest in and develop more content to
support our branded services

Develop more content for digital
platforms

Find and develop content and talent
brands that can be used across all of
BBC Worldwide's businesses

Continue to support the UK creative
economy through our work with the
Indie community
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5. Develop more direct connections with consumers

Why direct consumer connections?

For any business, knowing its fans and buiding a relatenship with them s vital for a successful future This focus 15 helping te drive the continued
growth of our biggest brands In 2011/12, BBC Worldwide's top five brands accounted for 30% of headline sales, and the top 12 for 47%, up from 24%
and 36% just three years earlier Understanding consumers enables us to have a far better chance of giving them what they want, when they want i,
and how they want it This becomes even more important in the rapidly changing world in which we operate

Investing in fan relationships can help grow consumer loyalty towards a brand, extend consumer interest to similar brands in a company'’s portfolio and
eventually, by the fan becoming an advocate for a brand, grow its engagement wathin new social circles

The growth of social media platforms has given businesses another, and more direct, means of communication The functicnality of ptatforms hke
Facebook and Twitter allows companies to buld brands and mave from a tradibional consumer relationship to one where the consumer can be an

actively engaged fan

How we are doing it?

BBC Worldwide 1s evolving from a predominantly business-to-business organisation to one which has a strong business-to-consumer focus We are
building direct consumer relationships through our websites, social media, consumer products, mobile applications, games and live events, and in
particutar through our biggest brands which have scale and global appeal

Specrfically we are hamessing direct consumer connections by

+  Building an electromic customer database to tell consumers about our brands, products and senaces

. Focusing on marketing our brands to core fans and increasing revenue per fan

Extending our existing analysis of the BBC brand globally, covenng more ternteries and all key brands
. Enhancing our existng e-commerce offering to grow deeper relationships with our consumers

Our target and progress against it

We have been increasing our investment in consumer insight and shanng this insight across the company Over the past year we have invested n
global segmentation studies for Doctor Who, BBC Earth and Top Gear and this consumer understanding is helping shape how we grow these brands in

new termtones and new formats

We have increased investment in consumer engagement, most particularly in social media and electronic Customer Relationship Management (eCRM)
This will allow us to personalise each offer and to communicate other products or senvices which may be of interest to the consumer, based on each
consumer's preference In the last year we've doubled our customner contacts from 2 3m to 4 6m and are setting up a single database with eCRM
functionality for all our consumers A new team has been established this year to lead eCRM and continue to dnve consumer acquisition and the

average revenue per fan

In addition we continue to invest In an e-commerce offering on bbcshop com to provide our customers with an iImproved consumer journey

Social media sites are proving nch platforms on which to interact with our consumers In the last year we have used skills and knowledge learnt from
bullding successful profiles for our key brands on Facebook and Twitter to dnve interaction across our portfolio of brands Facebook fans of BBC

Worldwide's global brands grew to over 23m This year we have expenmented with different ways of interacting with fans on socal networks to dnve
consumers to our range of offers for each brand, mcluding our own websites Now 39 6% of the Top Gear website's traffic 1s directed from Facebook

Live Events form a key part of our strategy of extending and deepening consumers’ relationship with our brands The breadth of Live Events we offer
has grown significantly over the last year, and our ambition 1s for this to double again within the next year Launches in the year inciuded the Doctor
Who Symphonic Spectacular, which sold out n Melbourne, the fifth Strictly Come Dancing Tour and the CBeebies Live event More details can be found

on pages 17-18

Objectives 2011/12

Progress

Objectives 2012/13

*+  Review how we gather information
about our consumers and major
brands in key markets

Comprehensive oCRM programme put
in place, and consumer contacts
doubled from 2 3mto 4 6m

+  Accelerato our use of soclal media to
help fans interact with our major
brands

Specialist soclal media team put In
place, and social media focus
extended beyond five global brands

Facebook fans for core brands
increased to over 23m

+  Develop our aCRM capability
throughout the company including
©oCRM plans for each business to
drive customaer acquisition and
avarage revonue per user

Focus on sharing eCRM knowledge
with Leadership Group and other key
staff

«  Bulld up our existing Live
Entertainment business

1 5 m tickets sold this year

Develop further consumer ingight on
the BBC brand and our key brands
globally

Deliver our soclal media strategy to
enhance our fan based approach
Continue to evolve and execute our
oCRM strategy, with clearer acquisition
and Increasing our rovenue per fan
targets for each brand

Double the tickets sold this year to
BBC Worldwide avants

Continue to work on enhancing our
digital product offering through new
formats
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Market context

Once again, the last 12 months have been exciting and challenging in equal measure for the media ndustry Indications of patential long-term — or
structural — changes in the industry have become more promment dunng the year Adding to the challenge, macroeconomic conditions have been
volatile And the outlook for the comung year remains uncertan BBC Worldwide 1s diversified geograptvcally, by format and by sources of income, which
include advertising, business-lo-business and consumer We believe this diversification offers strength in uncertain trading conditions

Macroeconomic environment

Financial markets have been on edge all year with news on the sovereign debt crisis sparking rapid changes n senument In the real economy, there
are some indications of a more sustained recovery in some parts of the world, notably the USA with real GDP growth of 2 1% expected in 2012 But
growth forecasts for the Eurozone continue to weaken —the IMF's forecast in Apnf 2012 was for a contraction of 0 3% in real GDP for the year — and the
cutlock for the UK 1s weak with growth of 0 8% expected for 2012 Australta, an important market for BBC Worldwide, 15 forecast to grow 3 0% thanks in
part to its natural resources and economic inks wath China China and other developing countnes, formenry brighter spots on the economic honzon, are
now seeing growth moderate According to IMF data, Brazil's growth rate in 2011 dipped to 2 7%, down from 7 5% in 2010 India’s economy slowed
from 10 6% growth in 2010 te 7 2% 1n 2011 China slowed from 10 4% growth in 2010 to 8 2% in 2011, with 8 2% growth forecast for 2012

Advertising

One of the results of macroeconomic uncertainty has been uncertainty among advertisers For much of 2011 advertising held up well, but in recent
moenths media companies have found it increasingty difficult to predict advertising revenues In an uncertain environment, advertisers are shortening
their buying honzons While many of the larger global advertising conglomerates have continued to deliver reasonable growth, particular formats and
geographies are suffenng within that global mix While the big winner continues to be online advertising, television advertising also performed well
dunng the year in most countnes Total nominal advertising expenditure globally 1s forecast to inerease by 4 8% in calendar 2012, up from 3 7% growth
In 2011

Consumars

Real disposable incomes have been squeezed in many high income countnes, including the USA (0 0%), UK (-1 2%} and many Eurpzone economies
The impact on the media industry has been mixed In the USA, the cable and satellite industry saw ils first decline in subscnbers in Q2 2011 (IHS
Screen Digest) This has been largely attnbuted to economic conditions, with many of the subscnbers lost on lower-end packages, rather than seen as
an indication of a longer-term shift away from traditonal pay television In the UK, the home video market held up reasonably well despite the long-term
trend away from physical product Consumers continue to want small treats and with restaurant visits now less frequent, nights in watching the best
films and telewision shows may, conversely, be more frequent

New media markets rising

Arguably. even more important for the industry’s lenger-term health than the volatile economic environment are indications of structural change dunng
the year One such trend, though far from new, 1s the growing economic power of ‘developing’ markets Forecasts for media markets specifically show
the nsing importance of countnes like Brazil, China and India While the USA and Japan will remain the two largest media markets over the next five
years, and the USA will deliver the largest absolute growth, change 1s expected in the markels ranked 3-6 While the proportion of BBC Worldwide's
revenue from internationa! markets has nsen over the past five years we are today nonetheless comparativety small outside the mature UK, US and
Australan markets We are seeking rapid growth in key markets in Asia, in EMEA and in Latin Amenca

US majors expanding reach

The US media companies have continued therr intemational expansion, using the cash flows from therr large domestic market to build strong positions
with faster growth prospects overseas Examples included Discovery launching tts fifth European free-to-air channel in Spain in January 2012, Disney
agreeing a jaint venture for a free-to-air channel in Russia, and Disney buying out its partner in Indian production venture UTV Discovery reported in
February 2012 that a third of operating profit now comes from non-US channels and Fox Intemational Channels (FIC) have been dnving Fox's growth,
with 58% of FIC's FY11 Q1 revenues coming from emerging markets

New entrants In pay television

New business models have continued to emerge in intemet-distnbuted wideo content The big question 1s whether intemet-distnbuted services have the
potential to subvert the tradiional cable and satelite-based distnbution platforms  Netflix, ore such intermnet ‘over-the-top’ {OTT) sennice, had an
extraordinary year It reported 26m streaming subscnbers at the end of March 2012, with its 23m in the USA making 1t the largest pay TV platform in the
world's largest pay TV market YouTube launched fis channels strategy, seeking to add premium content to its large base of user-generated clips The
traditional cable and satellite-based platforms are responding with authenticated wdeo-on-demand services

Ewvidence so far suggests that tradiional cable and OTT services can co-exist and indeed be complementary, at least for now Two questions for the
future are whether the subscnbers lost to traditional pay TV in the dewntum wall returmn when therr disposable income recovers, and whether there is a
generational effect where younger viewers do not sign up to pay TV in the same way as their parents did Faster wireline and wireless broadband will
add to the potental for internet distnbution of wdeo The development of easier and more seamless access to Intemet distnbuted programming on
tefewision screens, which we have begun to see this year, could be the catalyst for bigger change

The entire media industry keeps an active watching bnef on the long-term challenge to traditional pay TV But for now traditional pay televiston
continues to be the dominant business model in many parts of the world and 15 seeing strong growth We expect traditional pay TV to remain dominant
for the next five to ten years at least Global pay TV subscription revenues are forecast to grow at 5% p a over the next four years and pay television
advertising by 6% p a
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Digltal opportunities abound

Internet distnbution of long-form wideo 15 coming of age It allows audiences to view video across multiple devices television (often via a games console)
alongside PC, tablet and smartphone

This was another year of strong smartphone and tablet sales Smartphone penetration continues to nse and In some markets, particutary in Asta, laptop,
tablet or smartphone 1s the ‘first screen’, not television The proportion of the population using smarphones in urban China 1s now 35%, higher than in
the USA at 31%, and in the UK at 30% In tablets, the year included the launch of the Amazon Kindle Fire and Apple's new IPad New devices are not
Just offenng new routes for distnbuting tradiional media They are also contnbuting to the apps explosion — the 25 bihonth 10S app was downloaded in
March 2012 - and they are changing the way audiences consume media Multi-screen consumption 1s Increasingly the norm In the US, Nielsen
estimates 42% of tablet owners use them daily at the same time as watching television

For pubhshers, in-app purchasing has become an established business model, generating almost as much revenue as paid-for apps and forecast to
become the dominant business model over the next few years Advertising on mobile devices continues to grow strongly, topping $4 6bn in 2012, a 28%
increase on 2071, with growth forecast to drop only slightly to 20% in 2015 However, mobile poses challenges as well as opportunities for many media
companies Facebook’s tnitiat IPQ filing highlighted the challenge 1t faces in monetising mobile users Facebook had 425m monthly users on mobile
platforms in December 2011 but admitted it did not have a business model for manelising them It has since launched a mobile marketing solution

Very social

Social media continues to mature, with companies such as Linkedin, Zynga, RenRen and Groupon all going public In the year on the back of social
media business models Despite the challenges of mobile, Facebook's ad revenue is forecast 10 exceed $5bn in 2012, representing a 6 5% share of all
US online advertising This bnings ingreasing competitive pressure for all ad-funded media, including other digital outlets

As the size of Facebook’s user base has grown, it has rapidly become a major source of traffic for many siles, including a number of BBC Worldwide's
properties The increasing number of Facebook apps 1s also having a major impact on the digital media landscape Companies such as Spotify and
Zynga have used Facebook apps as a key pillar for their business and more traditional media titles such as The Guardian and The Wall Street Joumnal
are following suit, releasing apps which allow viewers to engage with their content within the Facebook environment

New digital ecosystems are increasing the value of content, especially wideo, to users and advertisers — a trend content owners must caprtalise on
However, this also poses challenges for content owners, both financial in terms of revenue shaning and in maintaining relationships wath consumers,
around the ability o access consumer information and to provide a seamless expenence across multiple ecosystems and platforms Regardless of the
ongoing negotiation between content owners and technology platforms, consumers will continue to benefit from rapid iInnovation

The battle for content

The increasing number of outlets for media content, enabled by the growth of digital disinbution and new devices, has increased the demand for quality
content

Thus battle for content has fuelled yet more interest in content creation {TV has dentified ITV Studios as key to rebalancing its revenue sources away

from advertising And the UK independent production sector remains a popular route for international media companies to acquire both content nghts

and the companies that create them The flow of deals has continued this year including, for example, the acquisition of UK indie Betty by Discovery —
Escovery's first acquisiion of an independent production company

Access to quality content 1s a major battleground for the industry and at BBC Worldwide we work hard to remain the distnbutor of choice for independent
producers

What the consumer wants

Ultimately, structural changes in the industry are dnven by a combination of new technclogy and what consumers want from their media expenences
Consumer choice 1s proliferating Despite this, for now, tme spent watching television is stable (on average 146 hours 45 minutes per month in the
USA} Time spent watchmg video on the intermet grew 7% year on year, but remained relatively low by companson at four hours 31 minutes per month

Change 1s the only constant in the meda industry and, only by understanding and responding to consumer needs can medta companies grow At BBC
Worldwide, we have a strong content catalogue, we believe our diversification 15 a strength, and we are enhancing our ability to understand what
consumers want and deliver our content in the nght way and at the nght time We continue to mvest In building new businesses, particularly consumer-
facing, but balance this with continued investment in the best content to offer to our partners around the world We believe this positions us well for the
excitement and challenges ahead
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Performance review

Channels Sales & Distribution

Year 2012 2011 Year 2012 2011
EMEA 2109 184 9 EMEA 164 6 1658
Amencas 882 77 Amencas 737 520
Rest of World 455 405 Rest of World 54 4 428
Headline sales (Em) 344 6 3031 Headline sales (Em) 2027 260 6
Headline profit (Em} 423 385 Headline profit (Em) 723 640

The Channels business 1s our biggest revenue generator, producing
headiine sales of £344 6m (2010711 £303 1m}, up 13 7%, with headline
profits up 9 9% to £42 3m (2010/11 £38 5m) Revenue growth reflects
three dnvers First, growth in distribution from 343m to 356m homes
Second, further growth In advertising sales on the back of strong ratings
performances And third, the launch of new channels, and a full year's
contnbution from the previous year's launches in ltaly and New Zealand,
as well as successful camage renewals in multiple terntones

This year saw 10 faunches for our channel brands BBC HD launched as
a full channe! in Spamish-speaking Latin Amenca and BBC Lifestyle
debuted in Indenesia BBC Knowledge, BBC Entertamment and BBC
Lifestyle made therr first appearance in Tamwan, and those same three
channels launched in Thailand, along with CBeebies CBeebies also
debuted in the Nordic Region as a programmung block on cne of the
region’s largest commercial broadcasters We continue to distnbute BBC
World News as part of our BBC-branded portfolio The channel's
distnbution was significantly extended this year, including through a major
deal with Comcast's Xfinity TV in the USA

Subscnption revenue for the business grew by 10%., including an 18%
increase for our BBC-branded portfolio in EMEA As well as growth in
subscnption revenue, we also saw strong growth in advertising revenue It
increased by 36% in South Afnica, 34% in Latin Amenica, and 25% in
Poland BBC Amenca grew by 31% and at UKTV, our joint venture in the
UK wath Scnpps Networks Interactive, it grew by 9% These are all
performing ahead of the TV advertising market in each terntory

BBC Amenca achieved its highest ratings ever, up 23% for daytime
wviewing on the previous financial year wath monthly reach averaging 24m,
up 10% on last year's 22m Doctor Who Senes § was BBC Amenca'’s
best senes ever, averaging more than 1 2m total viewers per episode

This ratings success was murrored at the Golden Globe awards where the
channel was one of the most nominated cable channels with three
nominatiens for The Hour and a wan for Idns Elba for Luther

The rest of our portfolio expenenced strong ratings as well, our factual
and entertainment channels had therr best ever start to a calendar year m
2012 in both Poland and New Zealand BBC Knowledge in Singapore
became the most effective channel for delivenng upmarket homes in the
Factual and Entertainment spaces, and BBC Lifestyle in South Afnca
mantained its number one spot in the Lifestyle category

In Bntan, the catendar year 2011 saw the highest ever share of
commercial impacis for our joint venture UKTV BBC content delivers the
majonty of commercial impressions for UKTV and this content has been
supplemented with an increased investrment in ongwnal commissions to
dnve cveralt ratings

The Global BBC 1Player, now managed in this busmess, has so far met
the targets set for the pilot The service was launched in July 2011 as a
pitot, debuting in 11 Western European markets It now reaches 16
markets around the world, including Canada and Australia, on \Pad,
IPhone and IPod Touch As a commeraal subscnption service, aimed
solely at the international market, it has a different business model and
editonal proposition from the BBC iPlayer in the UK The service provides
a selectron of contemporary and classic BBC and British content across
all genres

Sales & Distnbution 1s our biggest profit centre, and this year increased
head!ine profit by 13 0% to £72 3m (2010/11 £64 0m) on headline sales
of £292 7m (2010/11 £260 8m) The continuation of a successful growth
strategy, focusing on key client relationships, programme pniontisation,
active catalogue management and digital, resuited in a fourth year of
double-chgit profit growth

We have 100 salespeople in 11 offices serving over 200 markets We are
the UK's largest intemational distnbutor of finished television
programming as demonstrated by a range of surveys in the year,
inciuding those from Telewisual and Broadcast in the UK We remain the
tiggest distnbutor outside the US studios We represent over 200
independent producers, with nternational nghts distnbution now
accounting for 25% of sector revenue, according to PACT

COur single biggest growth area in the year was sales to digital services
The market has seen dramatic growth in digital services from bath new
OTT operators, and established platforms and broadcasters Across our
top five digital markets by revenue, we have licensed digital streaming
nghts (whether on-demand or catch-up) to over 140 customers As a
result, we have almost tripled our presence

We licensed over 100,000 hours of content globally in the year Our top
selling brands were all BBC commussions Top Gear, Doctor Who, Frozen
Planet, Torchwood, Spooks, Sherfock, Planet Earth, and Natural World,
all of which sold in over 100 markets

This year saw the move of our annual sales conference, BBC Worldwide
Showcase, in its 36th year, to Liverpool A new venue allowed us to
accommodate more buyers, including new delegates from digital services
and emerging markets, and chent registrations increased by 19% to 640
buyers We also hold annual sales and screening events under the BBC
Showcase banner in both Rio de Janeiro and Beyjing

We continued to manage the catalogue actrvely, increasing programme
viewing hours at Showcase from 1,400 to 2,800, and we made further
progress in drama, a highly commercial genre, which we have cultivated
In recent years Drama now forms a greater proportion of frontlist hours
and total sales, and overtook light entertainment for the first tme in
several years Titles such as Sherfock, DCI Banks, Scott & Bailey and
Luther have performed particularty well in the cnme sub-genre New
senes from the BBC, including Frozen Planet, Earthfiight and Great
Bamer Reef underpinned a very successful year in Natural History We
completed the first phase of transition to a new asset and distnbution
platferm with Sony DADC, delivenng programmes te our chients digitally,
and designed to equip us with an efficient and scalable supply chain to
accommodate future growth

We have had a strong year in the Amencas with our digital strategy
delivenng very solid results Major deals with SVOD platforms included
Netfix and Amazon, and we have been successful in forming exclusive
digital-first content partnerships for titles such as Mrsfits wath Hulu

Trading in EMEA was impacted by the Eurozone cnsis, particularly in
Scuthemn Europe, but good growth in major markets such as Germany
and Russia imited the impact

Revenue growth in Asia Pacific was particutarly strong i Australia and
New Zealand, where we renewed our first option deai with public servce
broadcaster, ABC, signed a number of digital licensing deals, and had
further benefit from favourable exchange rates We had an excellent year
in China, helped by digital growth and pre-sales on Science programming
Healthy growth in this regton also reflects a strong SVOD performance
and a highly effective windowing strategy, allowing us to place our content
with a wider selection of clients, enabling more viewers to enjoy great
Bntish shows
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Consumer Products Global Brands
Year 2012 2011 Year 2012 2011
EMEA 1386 153 4 EMEA 809 864
Amencas 554 815 Amencas 333 311
Rest of World 17 4 162 Rest of World 324 267
Headline sales (Em) 2114 2511 Headilne sales (Em) 146 § 144 2

Memo reporting (Em) 3211 308 1
Headline profit (Em) 491 512 Headline loss {Em) 473 129

Our Consumer Products business faced a number of challenges in the
year These included the loss of much of our stock, and consequential
business interruption, In a fire at a warehouse belonging to our UK DVD
logistics partner, Sony, dunng the civil disturbances of last summer, a
weak US video market (and our landmark US release delayed untl next
year), and continuing declines in consumers'’ discretionary spending In
view of this, the business held up well and remains the UK market leader
in the TV genre with increased market shares in both volume and value
Headline sales of £211 4m (2010/11 £251 1m) dechned 15 8%, with
headline profit of £49 1m (2010711 £51 2m) down 4 1% Operating
margin improved in the year and overall profit was resilient, reflecting a
successful performance at retall in the UK and an ongoing focus on costs
and efficiency across the business

Consumer Products’ focus 1s on extending fans’ enjoyment of their
favounte shows Our aim 1s to publish outstanding products relating to all
our brands across physical and digital video, music, icensed products
and books Our brand portfolio includes some of the biggest TV
entertainment properties such as Doctor Who, Top Gear and Sherfock, as
well as exclusive video releases from Botish talent including John Bishop
and Davina McCall

Despite the fire and resutting disruption, in the UK we had one of our
best-ever Chnistmas trading penods, with Celebnty Jurce, Idiot Abroad 2
and Frozen Planet performing particularly well In stand-up comedy, John
Bishop has now sold over 1m DVDs since our first release in 2010

We remain the largest distnbutor of TV content in the UK, increasing
market share m 2011 to 32 1% of units sold, up from 29 7% in 2010

Performance was also strong in our digital business In the UK, the week
after Chnstmas was our most profitable ever with revenue up 29% year
on year due to strong sales of Sherfock, Frozen Planet and The Cffice
Our content atso made up half of the most downloaded TV tities avalable
via (Tunes UK, with The Office at number three and Come Fly with Me al
number six Our best-selling title in the USA was Doctor Who Senes 6,
and in Austraha i was Come Fly with Me

In Licensing we launched a range of new brands and saw continued
success from established ones The first Deadly 50 range launched at
retall and Character Options' Deadly 60 construction range has proven a
huge sales success, selling nearly 50,000 units in the first two months
Our successful relationship with Boots saw the range of Stnctly Come
Dancing cosmetics win a prestigious Intemational Licensing Industry
Merchandisers’ Association award Doctor Who now has around 100
separate licensees across a wide range of product categones, and was
the fourth biggest licence in the markel for boys aged 5-14

Despite a music market that remained challenging, especizlly in
compilabion albums, the fatest Live Lounge album reached number one in
the compilation chart, the fifth time for the franchuse Dernon Music Group,
our calalogue marketing business, had a range of successful re-releases,
ncluding Suede and The Jesus and Mary Cham, along with successful
new chitdren's releases such as Justin Fletcher's Hands Up — The Album

In books, all our associates performed well, with The Doctor Who Annual
and The Great Bntish Bake Off being the stand-out performers in the

Children’s and Adult categones respectively AudioGo, publisher of BBC
audio books, recorded strong profits in its first year under new ownership

BBC Shop our direct to consumer online retail site, dispatched over

200,000 products to customers’ homes and rolled out a range of exclusive

products Its database now holds over a quarter of a milion customers’
details, who are among the BBC's most joyal fans

Headline sales of £146 6m (2010/11 £144 2m) were up 1 7%, with
headline losses of £17 3m (2010/11 £12 9m) This reflects the combined
results of businesses in an investment phase — Live Entertainment, Digital
Entertainment and Games, BBC com — as well as Lonely Planet and our
residual interest in BBC Magazines Performance overall was stable and
the £4 4m movement in losses reflects further growth investment, the
cyclical nature of some of the businesses and the cost of operating our
new Magazines Umit

This business also cames the total cost of managing BBC Worldwide's
five key global brands Revenue from these brands 18 recognised across
our Individual businesses on a memo-reported basis and represents 30%
of the company’s headline sales, growing by 4 2% to £321 1m Corporate
functions, including Advertising Sales and Marketing are also managed by
this dmwision

In Live Entertainment, we have significantly increased the number of
events we are putting on, both in the UK and overseas A fifth Strctly
Come Dancing Live UK Tour sold 213,000 tickets, and in February, The
Doctor Who Symphonic Spectacular debuted to sold-out houses in
Melbourne and will tour globally in the year ahead

In our Digitat Entertainment and Games business, this year alone we
launched 11 new titles across console, social, online and mobile and
more information can be found on pages 6-7

BBC com delivered another year of excellent revenue growth, and
significant profit uplift on the back of the previous year's move towards
profitability Further details on BBC com's activity and future plans can be
found on pages 6-7

Lonely Planet once again performed creditably in the travel guidebook
market, gromng audiences across pnnt and digital Despite a challenging
book retail market, in 2012 Lonely Planet became the number one brand
n travel publishing in the USA, up from number three at the time of our
first investment, taking us to leadership positions in all man markets In
emerging markets, we established operations in Delh, creating and
publishing travel guides by Indian authors, launched our first Portuguese
language guides in Brazl and signed an agreement with a Russian
publishing partner Lonely Planet digital products continue to attract an
avid following online and more infermation can be found on page &

In November 2011, following the sale and licensing agreement with
Expenent, a Magazines Unit was established This has two
responsibilifies The firstis to oversee the 17 licensed magazines with a
BBC genre or programme connection, and to ensure, through an
eslablished process of editonal governance, that they remain the tughest
quality publications The unit 1s also the publisher of the four magazine
brands that remain wholly-owned by BBC Worldwmde, produced under
contract by Immediate Media Co — Top Gear, Good Food, Easy Cook and
Lonely Planet
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Global Brands {continued) Content & Production
Year 2012 2011 Year 2012 2011
EMEA 809 864 EMEA 169 138
Amencas 333 311 Amencas 114 3 792
Rest of Worid 324 267 Rest of World 43 98
Headline sales (Em) 146 6 144 2 Headline sales (Em) 136 5 102 8
Memo reporting (Em) 3211 308 1
Headling loss {(Em) 17 3 129 Headline profit (Em) 105 79

The brand teams bnng best practice brand management and commercial
innovation to our five biggest brands, Top Geer, Doctor Who, Dancing
with the Stars, BBC Earth and Lonely Planet This includes a cohesive
plan for fan engagement, as well as identifying and moving into new
areas that dehver a financial retum and delight fans

Top Gear featured in the multi-million selling Forza 4 console diving
game, took s live tour to Perth, Stockholm, Moscow, Copenhagen and
Oslo for the first tme, while Top Gear magazine’s appeal continued to
grow, Increasing international versions to 31

Strctly Come Dancing announced branded cruises wath P40, which will
feature TV judge Craig Revel Horwood In the US, a new Dancing with
the Stars live show was developed and opened tn Las Vegas in Apnl
2012

Doctor Who also had a busy year The interactive Doctor Who Expenence
was seen by almost a quarter of a million visitors in London, and wall open
in Cardiff Bay later this year Three thousand fans attended our first
Official Doctor Who Convention in Cardiff over two days in March

BBC Earth and SEGA agreed a partnership for a new mulh-sensory
adventure, opemng in Japan in 2013 We joined forces with Emmy-
winning composer George Fenton for Planet Earth Live in Concert, an
orchestral performance set against cinematic scenes from the hit senes
The first of BBC Earth Films' three titie package, Cne Life, launched in the
UK to cntical acclaim, and in Japan was the highest grossing film in its
opening weekend, wath gross box office takings of $15 7m

Looking forward, we are nurtunng two new brands The Deadly 60 senes
has been a major success, premienng in the USA in 2011 on National
Geographic Wild and launching its first icensed product range We also
plan to use the second film, a major 4-quadrant 3D famuly film of Walking
with Dinosaurs, to launch a number of products and expenences in 2013
The third film, Enchanted Kingdem 3D, is also in production

Headhne sales rase by 31 8% to £135 5m (2010/11 £102 8m) and
headline profit grew by nearly a third to £10 5m (2010/11 £7 9m)

Sales growth reflects a strong US performance, with continued success
for ABC's Dancing with the Stars and delivery of scnpted drama
Torchwood Miracle Day, a Starz, BBC Cymru Wales and BBC Worldwde
co-production This year also saw new US shows such as Hauwry Bikers
and a successful second senes of Top Gear produced for HISTORY
Channe!, contnbuting to our growth Headline profit 13 up due to the US
growth detalled above, our produchon office in France and our talent
nghts management business

There were many highlights from our BBC Worldwide Productions
business in Los Angeles These included a fantastic 14th season for
Dancing with the Stars US, attracting 18 5m wviewers, the recommission of
the US format of Top Gear by HISTORY for a third season and a deal
with Starz for the production of two scnpted senes Dunng 2011/12, they
produced eight onginal senes for channels including BBC Amenca, ABC,
TLC, HISTORY, Starz and OWN

Our French production office had a record year, delivenng revenue
growth of 60% and producing a second senes of Danse Avec Les Stars,
seen by over 5m viewers with a 25 2% market share for the final Other
successful shows included Star Report 2 and a commission for When
Romeo Met Julret Another BBC format, The Week the Women Went,
attracted 3 7m viewers, outperforming France 2°s slot and pnme time
average On the back of that success, France 2 commissioned two
specials The Week the Women Went on Holiday and The Week Without
Electncity

In India, Jhalak Dikhla Jaa (the local version of Dancing with the Siars)
was commissioned by local entertainment channel Colors for two years
and season four won the Best General Entertainment Programme at the
Astan Television Awards The My Brg Decision format has been
commissicned for Indian youth-focused Channel [v]

Our associate In Germany, Tower Productions GmbH, has seen a raft of
new formats commissioned These include Generation Gap, Clever vs
Stupid, Food Factory and Junior Doctors

Other format successes included sales of Dancing with the Stars to
Panama and Georgia, bringing the total number of terntories where the
show has been licensed to 40 In Australia, the show's eleventh season
continued to grow audience and share up by 12% and 11% respectively
senes on senes BBC formats proved to be extremely successful with
BBC Worldwde's top five in terms of revenue developed in-house
respectively Dancing with the Stars, Torchwoaod, Top Gear, What Not to
Wear, and The Week the Women Went

2011/12 also saw Lonely Planet TV joining Content & Production for the
first time and secunng two commissions BBC Worldwide Channels
commissioned Year of Adventures and US cable’s Travel Channel
greenlit Best Parks Ever Qur Talent Rights team also enjoyed success
working with core Bntish talent including Steve Backshall on Deadly 60,
and Kirstie Allsopp on Kirstie's Book of Crafis
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This was another good financial performance from BBC Worldwide — the result of solid trading across most of the Group's businesses and geographic
markets, coupled with restrant on costs, as we sought to balance future investment opportunibies with near-term returns  This was achieved despite
market condibions that were, and remain, unpredictable and which vaned across the world For example, while digital sectors saw strong growth, the
physical product market faced significant challenges

Discontinued businesses

We have recorded the results of our Magazines business as discontinued These results include the gan on disposal of £95 0m and seven months’
contribution from the business up to the point of disposal The commentary below relates to our continuing business operations unless ctherwise noted

Revenue

Headline sales increased 5 4% to £1,085 Om (2010/11 £1,029 8m) Statutory revenue, which excludes our share of joint venture sales, was £934 9m,
anh increase of 5 8%

Growth dnvers included

Very strong programme sales to new videc-on-demand services around the world for the Sales & Distnibution business

A healthy advertising performance, most matenally at BBC America, where programming and marketing investments have driven ratings

A growing US production base

New channel and branded block launches in Latin Amenca and the Nordics respectively, a number of new distnbution deals, particularly in Asia,
and a full year's result from the previous year's launches in Italy and New Zealand

Our Consumer Products business operated in the face of tough US market conditions, and demanding comparatives following the US release of Life on
DVD and DTO in the previous year Despie a strong Chnstmas performance, UK revenue overall was impacted by the loss of much of our stock, and
consequential business interruption, followmng the Sony warehouse fire dunng the civil disturbances of last summer

Profit

Headline profit increased 7 9% to £154 8m (2010/11 £143 5m) reflecting the strong sales performances from Channels, Sales & Distnbution and
Content & Production At the same time we continued to invest in social media, digital intiatives, Live Entertainment, the Global BBC Player and
gaming development, with social games for both Doctor Who and Dancing with the Stars developed in 2012 Headline profit margins improved shghtty
from 13 9% to 14 3% through the higher levels of sales and tight control of costs

Statutory results

Key reconailing items between headline profit and statutory profit before tax include a pension deficit reduction payment to our sharehotder, a £6 5m
charge reflecting the change in farr value of put options aver non-controliing interests, and a £16 1m goodwill impairment charge set out in more detail
below

Statutory profit before tax of £103 5m (2010/11 £188 Om) was 44 9% less than last year This 1s principally because the prior year includes a £96 4m
gain on disposal of our shareholding in Ariral Planet Europe Excluding this gain, profit before tax rose by 13 0%

Shareholder returns
2011/12 was another year of exceptionally high retums to the BBC, as dividends were enhanced by cash proceeds from the Magazines transaction

Total returns to the BEC increased by 18 6% from £181 9m to £215 7m Direct investment into BBC-commissioned programmes totalled £78 1m
(2010111 £78 5m) and BBC Worldwide divdends of £111 Om (2010/11 £76 4m) in respect of the financial year's performance were significantly funded
for a second year by disposal proceeds With no substantial disposals anhicipated next year, we would expect dvidends to our parent to maintain a
balance between profits and the continued investment needs of the business

Corporate activity

The most signficant corporate transaction in the year was our majonty disposal of the Magazines business This reflected our view that the business
would be better served by an owner with greater flexability than BBC Warldwide to invest in digital fransition, and to expand the business into new areas

Followsng an auction process that resulted in expressions of interest from a wide vanety of parties, and several stages of bidding, BBC Waorldwide
entered into an agreement with Exponent Private Equity { Exponent’) that saw Exponent buy six titles, including Radio Times, outnght, acquire nghts to
publish a further 18 titles on long-term licences, and contract to publish six titles, relating to global brands such as Top Gear and Lonely Planet, of which
we retained overall ownership A 50% interest in Worldwide Media, our Indian publishing joint venture, was sold to fellow shareholder Bennett, Coleman
& Co Total proceeds before working capital adjustments were £121 Om and we have recognised a gain on disposal of £95 Om wthin the results of
discontinued operations

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £30 2m (2010/11 £30 Om) and represents an effective tax rate of 29 2% (2010/11 16 0%) In 2010/11 the effective tax
rate was reduced by the gain on sale of our Ammal Planet business, which attracted no tax Without this, the 2010/11 tax rate was 32 8%

Goodwili

Lonely Planet made further strategic progress in the year, with the successful execution of a far-reaching cost reduction programme, continuing
transition from pnint to digital product, and progress in television, including the faunch of branded blocks giobally on BBC Knowledge and a commission
from our own channels for Year of Adventures Market share increased against a backdrop of further detenoration in the travel publishing market We
have taken a non-cash impaiment charge of £16 1m against the carrying value of Lonety Planet Good progress has been made reducing the cost base
and rebalancing the currency mix However, the Australian dollar nonetheless remains the pamary currency for its costs, while revenues are pnmanly
denomtnated in sterling, US Dellars and euros Dunng the year the Australian dollar continued to appreciate against other currencies, recording a
28-year high versus steriing If the Australian dollar had remained at prior year levels, no impairment would have been recorded
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Assets held for sale

Dunng the year, the Board agreed to pursue a pessible sale of the Group’s interest in the children’s properties joint venture, Ragdoll Worldwide Limited
{Ragdoll) In hight of our ongoing discussions, we have presented our interest in Ragdoll and related programme nghts as a disposal group held for sale

Balance Sheet

The net asset postion of the Balance Sheet has strengthened from £231 3m to £262 Om dniven by retained profits after dmdend payments Increases in
distnbution nghts, programme nghts inventory and trade and other recevables were offset by higher trade and other payables

Content investment 15 ncluded within distnbution nghts and programme nghts, with significant investments in the year in both areas dnving the Balance
Sheet camying values up by almost £30m, and driving growth in our Sales & Distnbulion and Channels businesses

Cash and debt

Cash generated from operations was £177 9m, shghtly lower than the pnor year inflow of £186 Om due to huigher working capital outflows reflecting
Increased investment in programme inventory Tax paid amounted to £33 7m, broadly consistent wath the pnior year Interest paid, net of interest
received, was £9 2m Investments in distnbution nghts absorbed £98 6m and spending on other tangible and intangible fixed assets amounted to
£24 3m, while dividends from joint ventures and associates fell to £18 7m  As a result, free cash flow was £28 9m, compared with £78 3m in the pnor
year

Free cash flow 1s net cash flow excluding debt repayments, dvidends and acquisitons and disposals
Cash proceeds from the disposal of the Magazines business totalled £111 1m and dvidends of £139 9m were paid

Overall we saw a small increase in net debt in the year, from £52 3m to £64 4m Dunng the year, a E20m tranche of our borrowing facility with the
European Investment Bank expired This faciiity was onginally opened in 2006 and the final tranche of £30m expired in May 2012 These expirations
have been reptaced with equivalent additional capacity withun the debt facility of BBC Commeraal Holdings Limited, along with further headroom,
increasing the tolal available faciity from £168m to £210m n the year, and to £240m from May 2012 The use of this faciity above £190m 1s conditional
upon an equivalent holding in cash

Outlook

BBC Wordwde has a dear and effective strategy, designed to maximise returns to the BBC over the long term, while building the BBC's brands around
the world We have an established track record of success and we continue to seek means of promoting growth, while working on new inihatives to
secure external investment While market conditions remain uncertain and visibility imited, our existing portfolio of brands and businesses, global
diversification and a prudent approach to expenditure 1n current and new markets give us confidence that BBC Warldwide 1s well placed for the year
ahead

Golng concern

As sel out in other sections, BEC Worldwide operates in unpredictable and vaned market conditions However, the strength of the BBC brand and the
company's product offenng provides resilience lo these factors Accordingly, the directors believe that BBC Worldwide 15 well placed to manage the
nsks it faces, and that it has sufficient financ:al resources to do so for the foreseeable future As a result, they continue to adopt the going concem basis
In prepanng the accounts

Philip Vincent
Chief Financial Cfficer
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As a company, we have responsibliities to a number of stakeholders These include our clients and audlences, the businesses with which we
trade {and particularly the people employed In our supply chain), and the communities where we operate

As custodians of the BBC's brand, we have a duty of care to act responsibly and appropnately, and to honour the expectations of our customers and
partners, for whom the brand denotes quality and integnty We integrate this into all aspects of our business, from policies and practices to culture and
behaviour Our Corporate Responsibility programmes are designed, where appropnate, to extend our responsibiliies beyond our daily business

activities

As we grow our business intemationally, it i5 essential that we ensure that we always trade ethically and mininise our environmental impact wherever
possible and also contnbute to the lives of our people and the people in our local communities

In 2011/12 Corporate Responsibility actvity was led by separate specialists, with WEx leaders heading steenng groups for the Environment, Ethical
Trading and Editonal Standards Jchn Smith also attends the quarterty BBC Diversity Board meetings Outreach activity has been led by our Head of
Internal Commurications While this has ensured that each area of focus has had leadership with direct responsibility and expert knowledge of ther
discipline, we recognise that for our Corporate Responsibility activity to be even more effective, we need more cohesion and expect to make some
changes to the leadership of Corporate Responstbility at BBC Worldwide in 2012/13

Environment

The environmental strategy is overseen by the Head of Ethical Sourcing
and Environmental Policy and Deborah Rowland, BBC Worldwide's
People Director

This year has seen a review of our environmental strategy We have
collated up-to-date utiities data from our offices around the world,
providing a more complete picture of energy, water and waste A team
from our Aspire management training programme conducted a detailed
nvesthgation into office waste and recycling levels, and the results wilt be
used to dnve behawvioural change and increase recycling

We send zero waste to landfill from our main office buitding, by diverting
non-recyclables to a waste-to-energy plant A rainwater harvesting
system in the same building minimises our use of mains water, saving

1 7m htres of mains water per annum

Our three regional headquarters buildings in London, New York and
Sydney have high environmental building ratings, namely BREEAM
Excellent, LEED, and Nabers Office systems include lights that dim
automatically according to outside daylight, and centralised pull-pninting to
reduce paper and energy use

BBC Worldwide 1s carbon neutral for offices and business travel BBC
Worldwide employees who park at the media centre must pay for parking,
and the money 1s used to buy Gold Standard carbon offsets to balance
unavoidable emissions In the UK, domestic and close European flights
are not allowed by the company’'s ‘Travel Less, Travel Light' green travel
policy, with exceptions reported to WEx

BBC and Lonely Planet branded books and magazines are predominantly
printed on FSC certified paper, as are, since June 2011, the paper
sleeves for our DVD titles

In March 2012, we launched an international online environment training
module amed at all employees The aim I1s to ensure our employees
around the world understand and follow our environment policy

in Apni 2012, the PPA Production & Environment Awards awarded the
Head of Ethical Sourcing and Environmental Policy, Best Environmental
Person Award

Plans for 2012/13

+  Developing further targets far our data on energy usage, water
usage, waste to landfill and waste to be recycled

+  Launching intemational environment manuals for BBC Worldwide
premises and staff

+  Publisting environmental packaging guidelines for BBC Worldwide
products

Ethical sourcing

The Ethical Sourcing programme s overseen by a dedicated Ethical
Policy team and govemed by the Ethical Steenng Group, chared by BBC
Worldwide's General Counsel, Martyn Freeman This group provides
regular reports to WEx

Each year, BBC Worldwide sources and licenses milions of preducts that
carry the BBC brand We try hard to ensure that workers at the sites
manufactunng the BBC-branded products are treated faily We recognise
that many factones will struggle to be fully compliant with some aspects of
our Ethical Policy straightaway and so, tn ine with best practice in this
area, our approach is to work with those factones that meet our mmimum
reguirements who have shown commitment to improvement in cnitical
areas

However, we take a zero tolerance approach to the 1ssues of the
employment of child workers, the use of bonded labour, uncontrolled
working hours and dangerously poor health and safety provisions OQur
pohcy 15 to work with suppliers who address these cntical 1ssues provided
that those suppliers are entirely open and honest Transparency Is an
absolute requirement and 15 vital for making progress in improving
conditions for workers

We require independent third-party audits for our manufactunng sites in
high-nsk countnes pnor to manufacture We determine the level of nsk
through industry data and expert advice and we will only accept audit
reports that provide a detailed assessment of working conditions in each
factory All audits are carefully reviewed and graded by our team
according to a traffic ight system

A site1s graded red when it does not comply with our minimum standards,
we call this a cnbical fallure poirt In this event, we can suspend the
proeduction of our product until we are satisfied that the failure has been
corrected Through this approach, we are able to track real Improvements
in factory working conditions Only factones that have no unresotved
cntical issues are approved to manufacture our products

We also conduct controt audits, sometimes referred to as ‘forensic audits’,
to check the effectiveness of the overall programme These control audits
are camed out by labour standards experts and are accompanied by BBC
Worldwide staff There 15 a strong emphasis on histening to workers and
getting to the root causes of Issues

We appreciate that there also can be 1ssues in lower nsk countnes, and
we have started expanding the scope of our audit programme to these
areas

Plans for 2012/13

+  Collaborating with key industry companies to raise the standards for
all factory audis and work together on the most pressing 1ssue of
transparency in audits

. Ensunng that all operational and commercial staff, senior managers,
and legal teams recerve updated training on ethical trading

+ Exiending audit programme to joint venfure companies
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Qutreach
Our outreach work 1s headed up by our Head of Intemal Communications

We believe 1t 1s important to help improve the quality of life for people in
the communities local to our operations Not only 1s this part of being a
‘good neighbour’, but it also helps provide a fresh perspective on working
life As a commercial entity we beheve it makes sense to focus on
projects that are relevant to our skills base and businesses, or which
provide some team-bullding or personal development opportunities In
this way both parties benefit and commitment increases

Our outreach activity now has several well established projects, mostly
UK-based This year over 50 employees participated in the following
volunteer schemes with local students Lawyers in Schools providing
guidance o students to complement their Personal, Social, Citizenship
and Health Education studies, Explore Media Days on 'bulding brands’
which saw 10 employees mentor 25 local students, 32 BBC Worldwide
employees have taken part in the Take Two mentoring scheme which
helps to improve young people’s confidence and communication skills,
Jack Tizard Scheme in which 12 of our employees wisit children with
profound and multiple ieaming difficulties in their lunch hour We also
recently launched our Reading Partners Scheme which ams to help
improve teracy in pnmary age children, 17 BBC Worldwide employees
have volunteered for this programme

Our employees also participate in ad hoc Team Challenges such as
playground tidy-ups and panting tasks in local schools and the BBC
Worldwide Choir has performed in a vanety of community sethings, to
much acclaim

We share our expertise and encourage young people interested in the
media through "guru lectures’ given by cur employees at schools and
colleges We also offer two paid summer placements via the Career
Academy organisation to students from disadvantaged backgrounds We
were pariners in the English Speaking Unmion Young Writers and Public
Speaking Awards held in Holland, Belgium and Hungary

We also enable our employees to support BBC-affiiated chanties such as
Sport Relief and Children in Need through a vanety of fundraising
activities They are also able to donate to a registered chanty of their
choice via Payroll Giving

Plans for 2012/13

. Develop our outreach policy and increase our activity internationally
Hold two Explore Media Days, one mock interview day, four Team
Challenges, involving over 150 students and 80 employees in the
year

¢  Recruit two Career Academy intems for summer 2012

+  Establish work expenence opporturuties for local students

+  Monitor and assess the impact of the new Reading Partners Scheme

¢ Recruit up to 40% more volunteers for Jack Tizard, providing
improved support to the existing 12 volunteers

Our valuss

Creativity Our creatmty 1s the fuel for growth

Quality We go the extra mile for quality

Trust We say it, do it and deliver on our promises

Respect By understanding others we maximise potential
Audiences Customers are at the heart of everything we do
Teamwork Together everyone achieves more

Enterpnse We're passionate about profit and growth

Paople

Responsibility for People Development sits with Deborah Rowland, BBC
Worldwde's People Director

Our aim at BBC Worldwide 1s simple to be the best employer in the
Industry The success of our business 1s dependent on the commitment
and dnve of our employees and therefore attracting, retaining and
developing the best talent in the industry is crtical

By aligrung our people and organisation strategy to our business strategy
we have been able to dnve forward our work around people development
In parbcular we have been focusing on

*  Building capabilities for our employees through implementing the
opportunity for continuous learrung This year online training
modules were made available for the first ttme, and more than 1,100
were downloaded from our internal employee website Mandatory
training 1s also now managed through this website, enabling
centralised recording and tracking of all training As a result,
completion rates are high across all areas of mandatory training At
least 3,100 mandatory courses have been completed online since
June last year

»  Traiming our managers, through a Management Essentials training
module which has now been opened up to employees in the USA
and Australia in order to bnng out the best in managers and teams
alike Since commencement over 300 managers have completed the
module and a second Management Essentials module has been
introduced in the UK, USA and Austrahia

+  Inspinng growth and development for the emerging talent through
our Aspire programme, a one year accelerated development
programme open to all employees which gives them a WEx member
as mentor for the duration of the programme  After the success of
the programme in the UK and Europe, Aspire has how launched for
our US employees

. Implementing a farr, transparent and differentated reward structure
which recognises performance and s aligned with our values

+  Putting diversity at the heart of our organisation to dnive our global
mindset across the organisation

+  Prowiding a great place to work that 1s wamm, fun, collaborative and 1s
a purpose-led culture through offenng a stmulating physical work
environment and a culture that promotes engagement with, and
pnde in, our business

=  Continuously improving the appraisal cycle and ensunng the system
1s clear and simple to follow which will allow further accountability for
employees and support a dynamic, empowenng organisation

+  Motivating our empioyees through the implementation of personal
performance bonuses From 2012, most employee bonuses will be
inked to personal performance, including adherence to our values,
as well as operating business and/or company financial achievement

+  Communicating the pension options for employees now a new
defined contribution pension option 1s 1n place

Plans for 2012/13

s  Creating five Professional Academtes in Sales, Business and Legal
Affairs, Finance, IT, and Marketing for the enhancement of
professional skills in those disciplines

¢  Launching a global recrutment website In June 2012 to raise the
profile of BBC Worldwide and expand our access to talent

+  Developing a new Inspire programme for top talent to prowide them
with coaching, mentonng and deployment into roles that give
development challenge and new expenence, expected to launch in
201213

+  Developing a global mobility policy to ensure that, where necessary
to meet the needs of the business, employees can be deployed
intemationally on a fawr, consistent and cost-effective basis
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BBC Worldwide Board as at 31 March 2012

Role

Date of Appointment

Background

Mark Thompson

Charman

12 March 2012

Mark Thompson, in his capacity as BBC Director-General, tock over the role of BBC
Worldwade Chairman in March 2012 As Director-General of the BBC since May 2004,
Mark 1s responsible for the Corporation’s services across television, radio and enhine
and for a global workforce of 20,000 that provides over 400,000 hours of content each
year Mark was Chief Executive of Channel 4 from 2002 to 2004 and before that had
worked for the BBC since jotning in 1979 as a production trainee, in roles including
Editor of the Nine O'Clock News and Panorarma, Controller of BBC Two, Director of
National and Regional Broadcasting and Director of Television

John Smith

Chief
Executive

18 March 2005

John Smith joined BBC Worldwide in July 2004 Before this, John was the BBC's Chief
Operating Officer, and held other senior executive roles at the BBC, including Group
Finance Director John is also a Director of Burberry plc, Chaimman of UKTV, a Vice
President of the Royal Television Society, and a Director of the Henley Festival Before
jomning the BBC, he held semior posts at BR Engineenng Ltd, Sealink, Seaspeed
Hovercraft and other commercial subsidianes owned by the British Rail Group He has
served as a non-executive Director at Vickers Plc and Severn Trent Plc and was a
member of the Accounting Standards Board

Philip Vincent

Chief
Financial
Officer

1 December 2010

Philip Vincent was appointed as Chief Financia! Officer in December 2010 He has held
a number of positions in BBC Worldwide, including Deputy CFO, Group Finance
Director {Broadcast & Digital) and Finance Director {Channels) Philip joined the BBC in
1998, before which he was Financial Controller at Bunzl Disposables Ltd Philip qualfied
as a Chartered Accountant at KPMG, practising in both London and New York

Charlotte Hogg

Non-
executive
Director

24 September 2010

Charlotte Hogg 1s Head of Retall Distnbution and Intermedianes at Santander UK plc
She was previously Managing Director of UK and Iretand at Expenan, an information
services business Pnor to that she was a Senior Vice President of Discover Finanaial
Services (formerly Morgan Stanley) Charlotte brings extensive financial and
international growth management expenence to BBC Worldwmde She 1s a member of
the Finance Committee of Oxford University Press, a Trustee of the chanty First Story
and a Governor of Nottingham Trent University

Tim Weller

Non-
executive
Director

26 Apnl 2010

Tim Weller 1s Chief Financial Officer of Petrofac Limited, the FTSE 100 oilfield service
provider He joined Petrofac in September 2011 having previously been Chief Financial
Officer of Cable&Wireless Worldwide plc Pror to that he was Chief Financial Officer of
United Utihities plc from July 2006 to May 2010 and played a key role in strategically
realgning the group pnor to the £1 Bbn sale of United Utiihes Electncity Tim's career
began at KPMG where he became Partner in the Infrastructure Audit and Accounting
Group in 1997 before joining the Granada Group plc where he was Director of Financial
Control Tim has been a Non-executive Director of the Carbon Trust since 2007

Zarin Patel

Non-
executive
Director

31 January 2006

Zarnn Patel joined the BBC in 1998 as Group Financial Controller, becoming Chief
Financial Officer in December 2004 Before joiing the BBC, Zann traned as a
Chartered Accountant with KPMG, where she gained 15 years' expenence of working
with multinational corporations across the industnal and commercial sectors Zann 1s
also a Govemor of the University of the Arts in Lendon and a Trustee of the BBC
Pension Scheme

Jane Earl

Company
Secretary

George Entwistle was appointed to the Board on 25 May 2012
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Worldwide Executive Committee

Name Background

Marcus Arthur Global Brands dnves greater value from the company's leading intemational and muth-format properties, which
Managing Director include Top Gear, Dancing with the Stars, Doctor Who, Lonely Pianet and BBC Earth Marcus 1s also responsible for
Global Brands Digital Entertainment and Games, Live Entertainment, and the Magazines Unit He also oversees the company's

global advertising sales and marketing teams He began his career at Redwood Publishing, joining BBC Worldwide in
1691 In 1997 he became Publisher of BBC Magazines’ Lifestyle titles and 1n 2002 was appointed Publishing Director
of Radio Times, delivenng the listing magazine’s most profitable year in 2004

Jana Bennett

President

Woridwide Networks and
Global BBC iPlayer

Jana s responsible for BBC Worldwide's portfolic of TV channels, and the development and roll-out of the commercial
Global BBC Player Until February 2011 she was Director of BBC Vision, one of the world's leading muttimedia
content groups, commissioning, producing and broadcasting across BBC telewvision and the web Her extensive
television career also includes being Executive Vice President and General Manager at Discovery Communications,
where she played a key role in the development of its ¢channel portfolio in North Amenca In 2000 she was awarded an
OBE for services to science broadcasting

Paul Dempsey
Managing Director
Consumer Products

Paul oversees Consumer Products, a global producer and distnbutor of TV entertainment packaged med:a, including
DVD, Blu-ray, DTO, licensed product, music, BBC Shop and bock pubhshing partnerships Paul joined BBC
Worldwide in 1998 as UK Sales Director and became Managing Director of BBC Audiobooks in 2002 He was
appainted Direclor of BBC Worldwide's Audio & Music business when it was established in 2006 Prior to joining BBC
Worldwide, Paul's background in sales and marketing included eight years at Mars Confectionery, followed by two
years as Sales Director of Frontline Ltd, formerly BBC Worldwide's magazine joint venture business

Charlotte Elston

Director of Communications

Charlotte oversees all areas of communications at BBC Worldwide, including extemal PR, intemal communtcations,
corporale affairs and events Charlotte took up her role In January 2010 She began her career with Edelman PR n
London, and then spent seven years at Brunswick, the international corporate communications agency In 2003 she
was appointed Head of Communications at Pearson plc and was Group Commurucations Director at Aegis Group plc
from 2005 to 2009

Martyn Freeman
General Counsel

Martyn Freeman was appointed General Counsel for BBC Worldwide in November 2011 He has responsibility for all
legal, business affairs, policy and regulatory matters, including the negotiation of transactions and joint ventures, nghts
and deals management, editonal and commercial policy, cnsis management, comphiance and talent accounting
Previously, Martyn was in charge of BBC Worldwide's Legal and Business Affairs teams, and has held a vanety of
roles across the BEC, including Head of Business Affairs, Radio & Music, Factual & Learning and News

Daniel Heaf
EVP & Managing Director
Consumer Digital

Dariel Heaf was made EVP & Managing Director, Consumer Digital in March 2012, after two years as BBC
Worldwide's Digital Director He oversees all BBC Worldwide's global consumer-facing digital businesses and i1s
responsible for driving a unified global digital strategy and consumer vision This new role s in addition to his existing
strategic responsibiliies for the company's digttal growth strategy Dan began his digital career founding and running a
successful start-up and has also worked for Time Out, AOL, BBC Radio and Channel 4's corporate venture fund, 4IP

Helon Jackson
Managing Director
Content & Producton

Helen is responsible for BBC Worldwide's content development and investment strategy with the BBC and
independent producers, our international production network and talent and brand ventures She was appointed to her
current role in December 2010, having previously held the post of BBC Worldwide's Director of Independents Joining
BBC Worldwide more than two decades ago, Helen has built up formidable commercial expenence of the telewision
sector, holding vanous roles across intemational sales and distnbution, marketing and content investment

Steve Macallister

President & Managing Director

Sales & Distnbution

Steve took up this role in 2007 and 1s responsible for the global exploitation of our catalogue of BBC and
independently produced TV content He began his career in advertising sales, later moving to television exports
covenng Europe, Asia Pacific and the Middle East with the Walt Disney Company Prior to joining BBC Worldwide, he
was Semor Vice President and Managing Director of Buena Vista International Telewvision for the Asia Pacific region
As part of his role, Steve I1s responsible for BBC Worldwide Showcase, the biggest TV sales event of its kind hosted
by a single distnbutor

David Moody
Drirector of Strategy

Dawid 1s responsible for all aspects of the company's direction and objectives, he also leads major deal negotiations
and business reviews From 2005 to 2009 he combined thrs role with that of Managing Director of Digital Media He
began his career with strategy consultants The LEK Partnership, worked at Singapore Telecom International and
United News & Media in strategy and business development roles and co-founded Dataroam, a wireless application
service provider, where he was Finance Director He joined the BBC in 2002 as Commercial Director for BBC
Ventures Group, before mowing te BBC Worldwide in 2004

Deborah Rowland
People Director

Deborah Rowland joined BBC Worldwde as People Director iIn September 2011 and 1s responsible for all aspects of
HR, Technology and Property Her remit incorporates | T infrastructure, programmes and projects, orgarusational
development and leaming, talent management, resourcing, training, reward, culture, engagement and employee
relations, and the engoing management of Worldwide's workplace ernvironment Before EBC Worldwide, Deborah was
Executive Vice President Global Human Resources at Guccl Group Prevrously a founder and Managing Partner of
Transcend Consultancy, she has also worked for Shell, PepsiCo and Towers Pernn Deborah has researched and
published extensively in the field of leadership and orgamisational change

Herb Scannell
President
BBC Worldwide Amenca

Appointed in June 2010, Herb 1s responsible for the company's US and Canadian business Formerly Vice Chairman
of MTV Networks and President of Nickelodeon Networks, he oversaw all creative and business operations for a
portfolio of brands including number-one rated network In cable TV Nickelodeon, TV Land, Spike TV and Noggin
Before joining BBC Worldwide, Herb was CEO of Next New Networks, a digital media company he co-founded in
2006, which was subsequently acquired by Google
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated finanoal statements of BBC Worldwide Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiary
undertakings (together the “Group”) and the Group's interest in asscciated undertakings and joint ventures for the year ended 31 March 2012

Principal activities of the Group

The trading activiies of the Group focus on the acquisition, development, explotation, icensing and sale of intellectual property Rights are acquired
from the BBC and from independent owners of intellectual property and are exploited through a number of businesses, both wholly-owned and
partly-owned through joint ventures, across multiple formats These busmesses are Channels, Content & Production, Global Brands, Sales &
Distnbution, and Consumer Products

Porformance review

A review of business performance, including hkely future developments, 1s given on pages 16 to 18 Further information which fulfils the Business
Rewew requirements by reference 1s set out in the Govemnance Report on pages 27 to 31

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of nsks The key business nsks and uncertainties
affecting the Group are discussed in the Governance Report on pages 27 to 31

Results and dividends
The consolidated profit for the year distnbutable to equity shareholders of the Company was £168 4m (2011 £181 7m)
Dividends of £139 9m (2011 £83 4m) were paid dunng the year

In addition, the directors propose a further dividend in respect of the year of £6 2m (2011 £34 5m), resulting in a total dividend of £111 Om {2011
£76 4m) in respect of the financial year The divdend will be paid in the year ending 31 March 2013

Acqulsitions and disposals

Dunng the financial year the Group sold the majonty of the Magazines business to Exponent Private Equity and the 50% interest in Worldwide Media,
our Indian pubhishing joint venture, to fellow shareholder Bennett, Coleman & Co Full details of the Group’s acquisitions and disposals are included in
the Chief Financial Officer's Review on pages 19 to 20

Directors

Robert Webb resigned as Chawman and Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 February 2012 and Mark Thompson, who 1s Direclor General of
the BBC, was appointed as Chairman on 12 March 2012 Nicholas Eldred, who was a BBC appointed Non-Executive Director resigned on 28 October
2011 Other Directors who served dunng the year were John Smith, Chief Executive Office, Philp Vincent, Chief Financial Officer, Zann Patel, a BBC
appointed Non-executive Director, Charlotte Hogg, Non-executive Director, and Tim Weller, Non-Executive Director

Payment to creditors

Operating companies are responsible for agreeing the terms and conditions under which business transactions with their supphers are conducted It s
Group policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with these terms, provided that the supplier 1s also complying with all relevant terms
and condihons Based on the consolidated financial statements creditor days outstanding were 26 days (2011 29 days) at 31 March 2012 Rights
creditors have been excluded for the purposes of this calculation, as they relate to payments to artists and contnbutors rather than trade creditors

Donatlons

The Group does not make political donations Duning the year the Group made donations of £1,163,000 to vanous chanties (2010 £27,000) In
particular, BBC Worldwide made a significant contnibution towards the BBC's costs in respect of the Royal Wedding coverage in 2011 as part of a nghts
acquisition agreement In agreement with St James's Palace, the Company’s profits from the sale of the Royal Wedding programme, DVDs and
downloads were denated to The Foundation of Pnnce Willlam and Prnce Harry

In addition, to avowd any perception of a conflict of Interest in the minds of viewers, following Jeremy Clarkson's agreement to voice a satellite nawgator,
BBC Worldwide and TomTom agreed that afl revenues that would have been due to BBC Woridwide would be paid to BBC Chuldren in Need together
with an additional chanitable donation by TemTom

Employee participation
All staff are invited to meetings which communicate the Group's performance and activities, these events are called "The Bigger Picture”
The Group also operates an employee bonus scheme that enables eligible staff to share in the financial performance of the Group

The Company’s management holds regular meetings with the recognised trade unions, the Broadcasting Entertainment Cinematography and Theatre
Trade Union {(BECTU) and the National Union of Journalists (NUJ)

Diversity

The Group 15 committed to developing a diverse workforce wath opportunities for all, rrespective of race, colour, creed, ethnic or national ongin, gender,
mantal status, sexuality, disatilty or age

The Group monttors diversity figures and ams to ensure that its workforce reflects the UK's population
Disabled people

People with disabiliies are fully and farly considered for vacancies ansing within the Group and are given equal opportunities in relation to traiming,
career development and promoton If an employee becomes disabled while in the employment of the Group and as a result 1s unable to perform his/her
existing job, every effort 1s made to offer sutable altemative employment and re-training
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Directors’ Report {continued)

Development and training

Staff in all areas have opportunities to develop their skills The Group organises comprehensive in-house and external training programmes covenng
job-specific skill enhancement, IT software tuition and management development courses

Going concemn

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the business has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future, and accordingly the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the accounts Further information about
the going concem assumption 1s given in note 1 1o the consolidated financial statements

Directors’ interests and indemnities

No Director had any interest in the share capital of the Group at 1 Apnl 2011 or 31 March 2012 No nghts to subscnbe for shares n or debentures of the
Company or any other group company were granted to any of the Directors or their mmediate families, or exercised by them, dunng the financial year

Directors’ and Cfficers’ insurance cover was in place throughout the financial year as appropnate Additionally, an indemntty 1s In place for the Group's
nominated Directors on the board of Australian entiies and for BBC Worldwide Lirmited Directors and Officers in respect of Branch operations in
Australia The nominated Directors are held hammless in relation to legal claims against them in ther capacity as Directors and Officers, except n the
event of fraud, dishonesty or wilful default The indemnity covers all liability incurred by nominated Directors and Officers to the fullest extent permitted
by Australian law and 15 intended to offer protection to the nominated Directors and Officers in addition to the cover under the Group's Directors’ &
Officers’ insurance policy

Statement as to disclosure of Information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Group’s auditors are unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

In accordance with Section 487 of the Comparies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in
office

By order of the Board,

oo

Jane Earl Registored office

Company Secretary Media Centre

7 June 2012 201 Wood Lane
London W12 7TQ
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Corporate governance report

The BBC Worldwide Board i1s responsible for ensunng that the company, BBC Worldwide Limited, continues to support its shareholder and parent, the
BBC ft does this by defivenng sustainable retums wiife at the same me providing both the BBC and the wider UK creative community with an
niternationally recognised export platform Fundamental to our role, however, 1s the overnding obhigation to ensure that, at alf times, the BBC brand and
its reputation is protected i ail respects The governance of the Board and the company has been designed with these pninciples i mmnd

As a matter of bes! practice, BEC Worldwide aims to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code} for isted companies However, as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the BBC there are mnevitably some areas of compharnce that are less relevant For example, while we do no! hold an annual
general meeting with our shareholder, there i1s, however, an ongoing dialogue with views shared in an open and transparent environment

The Non-executrve Directors include both independent directors and BBC Public Service employees who represent the BBC as shareholder As a
consequence, comphance with the specific provisions of the Code requinng a committee to have a majonty of Independent Directors has not been
achieved | believe the committee membership 1s appropnate given the position of BBC Worldwide within the wider BBC Group

it is my intention to appoint one of the independent Non-executive Directors who currenily sit on the BBC Executive to the BBC Worldwide Board in the
role of Senior Independent Director This will resolve this current non-compliance with the provisions of the Code Post-year end, if was agreed that the
third Pubhic Service nominee on the BBC Worldwide Board will be the BBC's Head of Vision, George Entwistle

Although there has been no formal evaluatron of Board performance, the changes that have occurmed dunng the year have enabled me, as incoming
Chairman, to review both the effectiveness and composition of the BBC Woridwide Board

The company’s thanks to outgoing Directors are noted in my introduction to this Annual Review Robert Webb QC's recent decision to accept a full-tme
role with Rolls-Royce pic allowed me the opportunity to streamhne decision-making and agree with the Chairman of the BBC Trust that the Director-
General should, in future, chair our most signficant commercial subsidiary

Mark Thompson
Chairman, BBC Worldwide
and Director-General, BBC
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BBC Worldwide's governance framework

1_Leadership
Role of the Board

The Board 1s responsible for setting the strategic objectives for the company and fer monitoring progress against those objectives The Board reviews
both business and financial performance with a view to ensunng that the company has sufficient resources to execule the strategy effectively The
Board 1s accountable to the BBC for generating sustainable long-term value, while balancing both tvestment performance and retums in the form of
dividends The investment guidelines (the company’s polictes for approving investment and expenditure) prowvide the framework far contraliing the
governance processes and providing clearly delegated authonties and robust processes

The Chalrman and Chief Executive

There 18 a clear separation of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive, which 15 set out in wiiting and has been adopted by the Board A copy
can be found cn the BBC Worldwide website The Chaimnan’s pnncipal role 1s to lead the Board and to ensure that it works effectively and through its
vanous committees

The Chaiman is also responsible for setting the Board agenda and promobng a culture of healthy debate and challenge For 11 months of the year
Robert Webb QC was Chairman, and also a Non-executive Director on the BBC Executive Board On 12 March 2012, the Director-General of the BBC,
Mark Thompson, was appeinted as the Chairman of the BBC Worldwide Board The terms of the employment contracts for the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer are set oul in the Remuneration Report on pages 3542

Non-executive Directors

The independent Non-executive Directors serve inibially for a term of two years which may be extended subject to satisfactory performance and
agreement from the shareholder The public service Non-executive Directors are our shareholder's nominees on the BBC Worldwide Board Zann Patel
does not have a fixed term appointment The public service Non-executive Directar appointments may be replaced at any time by the shareholder

Re-elaction of Diroctors

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of the BBC, there 15 no requirement for the Directors to seek annual re-election, nor do we hold a formal annual general
meeting The company 1s required to present an annual review of performance to both the BBC Trust and the BBC Executive

Indopendence

The Board considers each of the Non-executive Directors to be independent in character and judgement Charlotte Hogg and Tim Weller do not have
any relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect or could appear to affect their judgment and are therefore considered to be totaily
independent Mark Thompson and Zann Patel are employees of the ultimate sharehoider

Insurance indemnities

The company maintains hability insurance for its Directors and Officers which 1s renewed on an annual basis The company has also entered into deeds
of indemnity wath its Directors

Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who acts as Secretary to the Board and its commitiees The Company
Secretary 1s accountable to the Board for ensunng that Board processes and corporate governance practices are followed Directors are also given
access to independent professional advice at the company’s expense where they consider such advice 1s necessary to enable them to fulfil their
responsibiliies The Company Secretary 1s Jane Earl
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2_Effectiveness

Board composition and appointments

On 29 February 2012 Robert Webb QC retired from the Board having served as Chairman for nearly two and a half years MNicholas Eldred, who was
one of the BBC Public Service nominated Directors, retired from the Board on 31 October 2011

The Davies report has recommended that FTSE 100 companies should aim to have a mimimum of 25% fernale representalion on therr boards by 2015
BBC Worldwide has exceeded this threshold and recognises the value of diversity in all respects

On joining the Board, most of the Directors undertook a formal induction programme  This 1s designed o give them an understanding of each of the
strategic cbjectives and how these will be delivered within the context of the governance structure

The current members of the BBC Worldwide Board, as of 31 March, are shown on page 23 together with details of their external commitments
Board attendance

Remuneration Audit

Board Commilttes Commilttee

Total number of meetings In financlal year 20114/12 7 5 4
Mark Thompson n - -
Robert Webb 6/6 55 -
Nicholas Eldred 313 - 112
Charlotte Hogg 6/7 s 414
Zann Patel 6/7 4/5 -
John Smith Fiss - -
Philip Vincent wm - -
Tim Weller 717 - 4/4

3 _How the BBC Worldwide Board operates

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its attention and the Company Secretary also maintains a forward agenda of matters requiring
discussion andfor approval

Business oversight

AL each Board meeting the Chief Executive presents his report on all aspects of the company's strategy and performance in the presence of the BBC
Worldwide Executive Committee (WEx) Each of the Managing Directors has the opportuntty to attend Board meetings and to comment on their
business performance and make presentations to the Board on specific iniatives Dunng the year the Board has receved in-depth presentations from
the US business, Consumer Products and an update on Showcase from Sales & Distnbution The Directors also wisited MediaCityUK in Salford for one
meeting this year which enabled the Board to hear from colleagues in BBC Nerth and explore complementary strategic inihatives

Financlal and risk management

The Board receives regular updates on the company's financial position, agrees the budget, and moenitors nsk management and financial controls One
1ssue which has received regular montonng has been the ongoing concems relating to the Eurozone financial markets and the implications for trading
conditions The restncted access to the debt market and the imited availability of headroom was also monitored and, as a result the Board asked for
greater visibility of cash flow and hedging As a standing tem, the Chair of the Audit Commuttee reports to the Board on matters discussed at the Audit
Committee meetings

Strategic roview

Dunng the year the Board has played an active role challenging the Executive in the formation of the refreshed strategy as referred to in the CEQ's
report on page 4 This was developed and discussed over the course of several substantial sessions The Non-executives were active participants,
drawing on expenence In the commerciai world, to challenge and inform the debate The Board analysed the opportunities available in both the
business streams and the regions, conscious of the regions available for investment Performance of the Glabat BBC 1Player pilot has been monitored
together wath plans for developing an e-commerce business while preserving value in our physical formats

The strategy for the Live Entertainment business has been examined with a focus on international growth and investment
Corporate transactions

In accordance with the investment guidelines, the Board approves transactions where the value 1s In excess of £5 0m or any transaction mvolving the
acquisition of equity

During the year, the sale of the majonty of the Magazines business to Immediate Media Co was monitored by the Board, ensuring that appropnate
govemance arrangements were in place for the ongaing licensing bustness In addition, the Board has been constantly appnsed of discussions relating
to our joint venture with Ragdoll and several smaller transactions Special Board meetings are called where necessary to review specific detail of
transaction and approve any legal documentation which requires execution

People and succession

The Board has taken a particular interest in the evolving People and Orgarusation strategy which has been determined duning the year The Beard has
been consulted with regard to the appointment of Martyn Freeman as General Counsel, Daniel Heaf as MD Consumer Digital and Deborah Rowland as
People Director
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Board Commmittees
The Board delegates to its committees as set out below
Nominations Commilttee

Dunng the year under review, the Nominations Committee was tnitialty chaired by Robert Webb with Nicholas Eldred and John Smith as members The
Committee 1s responsible for reviewang the composition of the BBC Worldwide Board and for recommending new Non-executive Directors to the Board

Under the terms of reference, the appointment of the Chaiman and the Chief Executive are conditionat upen the specific approval of the Director-
General of the BBC wth the support of the BBC Trust The appointment of the Director-General as Chairman was endorsed by Lord Patten, Chaiman
of the BBC Trust

The Company Secrelary supports the activties of the Committee
The Committee did not meet dunng the financial year under review
Remunaration Committee

The Code recommends that the Remuneration Committee should compnse three independent Directors Prior to his resignation, Robert Webb QC
chaired the Committee and Charlotte Hogg and Zann Patel were also members Again it is our intention to be as comphiant with the Code as s
appropnate with our status as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the BBC

The duties of the Committee include determining the framework for the remuneration of the Chief Executive, CFO and WEX to ensure that members of
the Executive management are provided with appropnate incentives to encourage enhanced performance in a far and responsible manner The
Committee regularly reviews the appropnateness and relevance of remuneration policies as well as the individual packages of each WEx member

The Committee also approves the design of, and determines targets for, performance related pay schemes and any long-tem incentive programmes It
15 responsible for establishing the cntena for selecting, apponting and setting the terms of reference for remuneration consultants who advise the
Committee The Committee 1s responsible for ensunng that members have reliable and up-to-date information about remuneration i other companies,
particularty in the media environment A full report of the remuneration palicies and actities of the Committee can be found on page 36

The Company Secretary and the People Director support the actvities of the Commitiee and attend every meeting by invitation
Piease see the table on page 29 for details of the Remuneration Committee attendance dunng the financial year under review
BBC Worldwide Executive Committes

The BBC Worldwide Executive Committee (WEX) meets weekly and 1s chaired by John Smith In addition to the CFQ, members of WEX are shown on
page 24 The Company Secretary also attends and supports the activities of the Committee

WEXx takes responsibility for ail aspects of the company’s actlies as delegated to it by the Board and for devising and implementing the strategy which
it proposes to the Board for approval Every week, WEx concentrates on market, competitor and technology developments and these are supplemented
with detailed presentations and workshops on new and future technology innovations such as mobile gaming, social networks and branded apps which
will all impact our businesses in the future The progress of the Glohal BBC iPlayer pilot which has been launched 1n 16 countnes continues to be
reviewed and examined Customer relationship management {CRM) has also been a significant focus dunng the year

Regular updates are delivered to the Committee on our top brands, which this year have included Top Gear's achievements in the US market, future
senes of Doctor Who and global productions of Dancing with the Stars WEX also reviewed a Brand Tracking survey which captured and tracked genre
perceptions, awareness metnes, brand values and linkage to the BBC in companson to four major competitors Other regular updates included
adverbising sales performance, editonal policy, data protection and information secunty, mandatory traiming requirements for all staff and the technology
strategy

Social networks are becoming increasingly important to media companies, brands and audiences As a result WEX has received presentations and
opportunities to use social media to build new audiences, build direct relationships wath customers, promote existing products and develop new ones,
target new customers and protect our reputation One of these opportuniies included an equity investment tn Viki com, which provides a platform for
avid fans to publish popular TV and mowie titles which they have transiated into over 150 languages

Reviewing and refreshing the global strategy for the Company alongside the five year business plan has been one of the major inbatives for the year
Five work streams have also been established, led by WEx members, and engaging a wider leadership group, to determine our orgamisation and people
plan required to deliver the strategy

The BBC's and BBC Worldwide's mission 1s to ‘inform, educate and entertain’ which has led WEx to investigate the use of our knowledge-nch BBC
content to teach English to children in a fun and interactive environment

WEx members travelled extensively in order to promote the continuing globa! growth of the company, with tnps to Abu Dhaby, Asia, Latin Amenca,
Austraha, New York and Los Angeles New regional EVPs for EMEA, Asia and Latin America have been appointed with responsibility for providing
regional business plans focusing on medium-term growth in each region

Our People strategy 1s fundamental to the success of our business As such, tme has been dedicated to reviewing not only our HR systems but also top
performers and appropnate frameworks for pay and reward, succession planming, traiming and development, as well as investigating how our values are
embedded wthin the culture of the company The Aspire programme, which targets and offers aspirational employees a year-long development
programme with a WEx member as mentor, has now been launched in both the UK and the USA and s delivenng value to the company

WEXx delegates to the Content investment Committee, which 1s responsible for approving programme and product investments of between £0 5m and
£2 Om, and to the Investment Review Group, which approves other financial commitments between £1 Om and £2 Om Both these commiftees are
chaired by the CFO Each business has authonty for approving non-content budgeted spend up to £1 Om
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Audit Committeo

The Audit Commuttee 1s charred by Tim Weller, Charlotie Hogg 1s also a member Nicholas Eldred resigned from the Committee on 31 October 2011
The Comrmttee s responsible for moritoning the integnty of the financial statements including critical accounting policies and estmates The Committee
spends time reviewing emerging 1ssues and understanding the impact of matters such as impairments and exchange-rate imphcatons The Commitiee
also rewewed hedging and treasury policies together wath tax compliance

The Talent Accounting department at BBC Worldwide 1s responsible for paying royaltes to contnbutors, independent producers and third-party profit
participants, from sales of programmes and many other activities such as live entertainment and games The Committee receives an annuat report
detailing the accuracy and tmeliness of payments to talent and producers

The Committee also reviews the effectiveness of systems for intemal control and reporting, together with those ensunng adequate procedures are in
place for staff to raise concerns It regularly reviews the nsk profile of the company, focusing on key nsks as appropnate

The implementation of the Brnbery Act 2010 has been monitored during the year and a campaign to increase awareness of the whistleblowing
procedures was undertaken both in the UK and overseas WEx and the Audit Committee receive regutar progress updates on challenges being faced to
ensure compliance with the legistation

Followmng the 1ssue of the FRC guidance for audit committees, the BBC Worldwide Board endorsed amendments to the terms of reference for its Audit
Committee Some of the key changes to the terms of reference included the responsibility to coordinate the intemal and extemnal auditors, and to review
BBC Worldwide's systems and controls for the prevention of brbery and to review any reports relating to non-compliance

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal and externa! audit services Internal audit resources are provided to BBC Worldwide wia the
BEC and the members of the Committee meet pnvately with the BBC Director of Risk and Assurance without the CEO, CFO and management
representatives being present as they did with the external auditors

The Committee 1s supported in its activities by the Company Secretary, the BBC Director of Risk and Assurance, and the company's Risk Advisory team
The Committee submits quarterly returns to the BBC Executive Audit Committee detailing the key 1ssues discussed by the Committee The terms of
reference for the Committee can be found on the company’s website The Commuttee is currently comphiant wath the UK Corporate Govermnance Code as
all the members of the Committee are independent Please see the table on page 29 for details of the Audit Committee attendance during the financtal
year under review

Dunng 2011/12, the Committee has been very aware of the impact of world economics, in particutar the Eurozone cnsis, on the global operations of the
Company in this context, as a Committee, we have focused on sk management, fraud and financial controls

Other important topics have included foreign cumency and interest rate hedging and implementation of the UK Bnbery Act 2010 The implications of this
new legisiation are significant for & giobal company such as BBC Worldwide

The weaith and vanety of expenence of the Audtt Committee members has contnbuted to the quaity and effectiveness of the Commitiee’s deliberations
throughout the year As a Committee we have sought to follow best practice in terms of comphance with the Code In this context we have reviewed our
terms of reference to ensure they were up fo date In terms of qualdications, hoth Charlotte Hogg and | have recent and relevant financial and
commercial expenence and meet the Code requirements, while Nicholas Eldred has provided valuable access to BBC knowledge and insight

Tim Weller
Chauman, Audit Commiftee
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Risk Management

BBC Worldwide 1s commiited to effectve and efficient nsk management practices to safeguard our people, reputation, assets and interests Risk
awareness 15 an integral part of the company’s culture demonsirated through sponsorship and engagement by the Executive This 1s commurucated
through company values, supported by specialst functions, wath govemance exercised by the BBC Wordwide Audit Commuttee, WEx and the BBC
Worldwide Board The nsk attitude and behaviour of BBC Worldwide 1s aligned to the BBC to ensure the company acts as a responsible guardian of the
BBC brand

The Chief Executive of BBC Worldwide 1s the ultimate sponsor of nsk management Indmidual WEx members have a nsk management responsibiity,
both as a cellective, for example, taking a nisk-based approach o executing strategy, and indivmdually to ensure their business manages nsks
appropnately, complies with the policy framework and delivers effective internal control Seruor management has clearly defined responsibiiies,
invalvement in relevant major decisions and expenence, knowledge and expertise in ther business, markets and termtones

Our performance management framework, general management control and company values encompass all BBC Worldwide people This encourages
them to take a nsk-based approach to their responsibilities, improwving the likelihood of successful outcomes by anticipating and minimising nsks

Key to informing senior committees of strategic nsks s the Risk Management and Internal Control (RMIC) process This provides the BBC Worldwide
Board with a regular review of the strategic nsks facing the business and an assessment of how well these are being managed A consistently applied
methodology, including an evaluation of the financial and reputational iImpact of each nsk, 1s used to identify nsks that could have a significant tmpact on
the ability of BBC Worldwide to achieve strategic objectives The RMIC process requires each division, international office and international Board to
take ownership of local nsk management processes, with named nisk owners taking respensibility for each indmdual nsk A specialist Risk Advisory
team supports this process

Reporting and monltoring

1 Risk Management and Intemal Control (RMIC) Committee s responsible for discussing, challenging and proposing amendments to strategic sk
reports to ensure they represent the key nsks emerging from local nsk registers and the concems of the Executive and other nsk stakeholders The
RMIC meets quarterly, 1s chared by the Chief Financial Officer and includes the General Counsel, Company Secretary, Risk Advisory team and
two WEx members who attend on a rotating basis

2 WExsponsors, and 1s responsible for the intemal control and nsk management framework, discussing, agreeing and endorsing regular updates on
the strategic nsks facing the company

3 BBC Worldwide’s Audit Committee ensures that nsk management amangements are appropnately sponsered, promoted and developed across the
orgarusation, are sufficiently robust and take place frequently enough to effectively anticipate and detect nsks

4  The BBC Worldwide Board morutors the effectiveness of nsk management and financial contrals and receives regular updates on the strategic
nsks facing the company
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Specific risks to us Strategic impact Mitigation Owner
| Strategic Execution

Expansion s In non-tradibonal markets, Company fails to deliver  Ownership of strategic nsk held by the CEO, progress WEx
temntones and businesses where the company against the strategic on strategic delivery regularly reviewed by WEx and the
has less expenence plans of the business Board
Risk that we fail to pnontise the nght termtones, Financial perfformance Regular review of the strategy in the context of the
the nght investments or that we fail to not in line wath strategic market and prompt reshaping of pnonties to reflect
restructure mvestments in a rapidly changing ambitions changing external conditions
marketplace Investments not Diversified portfolic with partnership deals in place to
defivenng projected reduce the overall nsk exposure in new termtones and
retumns markels

International Expansion

Lack of leverage or scale in international Failure to deliver against  US office with a high degree of autonomy implementing WEX
markets {for example, the key US market with the international a strategy based on its knowledge and insight into the
commissioning broadcasters and large multi- expansion strategy US marketplace
service channe! operators) Regional Executive Vice Presidents established for Latin
Risk that we can't find partners internationally Amengca, Asia and Europe, Middle East and Afnca
with the nght expertise, values and cultural fit to region to contnbute their insight and market intelligence
our business into regional strategy

| Digital Strategy
Risk that we can't scale our digital businesses to  Failure to develop a Rewviewing the performance of digital intiatives and WEX
generate the necessary retum coherent portfolio of investments in the portfoho New propositions being
Risk that we don't efficiently execute the shiftto ~ SUccessful digital developed
business-to-consumer for a company that has properties Director of Consumer Digital coordinating company-wide
fustoncally sold business-to-business digital strategy

| Financing
Limited ability to access capital and reinvest Limited ability to exploit Rigorous approach to approval of nvestments, Chief
profit adversely impacts growth and business new opporturities inthe  nvestment committee and investment policy Financial
agility market Cash management and monitoring of PBIT wath robust Officer

Further development of cash forecasting
new and tradstional Ongoing dialogue with BBC regarding investment needs

businesses inhibited aganst the BBC's short and medium-term cash
requirements

Economic Climate
Business performance sensitive to economic Reduced demand from Business 1s diversified across temtones and revenue Chief
slowdown i the key terntones (USA and consurmers and trade streams Financial
Australia) partners Risk averse approach to the management of foreign Officer
Exposure to fluctuations in major currencies and  Insolvency of major currency
interest rates, particularly the key currencies of customers, suppliers

Close monitonng of counterparties including key

the euro, the US dollar and Australian dolfar and partners imits the suppliers, major customers and partners Renegotiating
Loss of routes for bringing product to market routes avallable to bng  payment terms and credit insurance where appropnate
due lo financial pressures causing failure of key ~ OuTproductstomarkel  contraciual prowisions and contingency plans in place
retail groups, consolidation of retail outlets or Adverse impact on cash
reduced shelf space dedicated to our product flows and reported
categones financial results

| Reputation and Standards
Audience lose confidence in the integnty of our Adverse publicity or Comprehensive commercial policy and editonal policy WEx
output and the brand through a breach of press coverage framework, supported by a specialist team wath training
Commercial Policy or Editonal Guidelines Reputational or brand and knowledge disseminated throughout the
Potential for failure of Ethical Policy by licensee,  damage organisation
agent or other third party Polential loss of Editonal oversight from senior committees Senior
Risk that a joint venture or pariner generates business editonal figures with approval authonties Editonal
significant reputational nisk exposure through integnty embedded into the company culture
association Ethical sourcing and environmental policy wath an ethical

assurance framework and audit programme (further
information 1s set out in the Corporate Responsibility
section)

Comprehensive review of potential partners (supported
by due-diligence where necessary)
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Specific risks to us

Strategic impact

Mitigation

Content Plpeline

Industry consolidation decreasing the content Loss of nghts for Wholly-owned production office strategy, mncluding Managing
available from Independent Producers commercial exploitaton establishing a business in Los Angeles to generate Drrector,
Reliance on a continuing pipetine of output from  Pressure on market intemationally explotable content Content &
the BBC (at a tme of cost reduction) posttion Minonty mvestment stakes taken n a limited number of  Froduction
Reliance on a strategic portfolio of brands (¢ g~ Compelitors target key ~ 'dies to ncrease access to development deals
‘Dancing with the Stars} markets Output deals in place with key Independent Producers
Impact or delayed Joined-up content Investment process across the
launch of new services orgarisation to maximise commercial explotation across
media formats
| People and Qrganisation
Failure to attract people with the nght skills and Fadure to attract, retain New reward structure to dnve achievement and promote  People
talent to seize opportunities, achieve and motivate causmng succession Director
challenging retums and fulfil the strategy the company to under- HR monitonng reward levels supported by benchmarking
Complex intemational reward landscape in a perform against the reviews Alignment of company performance and
diverse organisation market perscnal incentives through the reward structure
Rapid upward pressure on pay and reward in Values culture reinforced through induction, mandatory
certain sectors and dynamic growth temtones training, objectives and performance management
[ Technology and Security |
Multiple systems, platforms and processes wath Information systems fall  Technology strategy addressing the evolution of core People
ncreasing volumes of data to support business systems Director
Challenges adapting nternal legacy systems to ~ development or the
accommodate business transformation launch of new services
Risks through technology partners hosting and ~ LoSs of data teading to
operating services on our behatf reputational damage
and adverse publicity
Financial penalties
| Regulatory and Compliance |
Reputational nsks attached to non-complance Cwl or cnminal General Counsel appointed Local counsel in place in General
with both UK, and intemational, laws and challenge or severe intemational key offices External expertise engaged as Counsel
regulations financial penalties required
Breach of the UK Bribery Act or local anti-fraud Reputational loss and/or  Comprehensive anti-bribery and corruption programme
and corruption legislation adverse publicity apphed to operations, terntones, agents and service
Data protection nsk through custody of Increased regulation of  Providers
mcreased consumer/zudience data business operations, Robust, comprehensive and enforced policy framework
Challenge of being fully cognisant of imposed service inciuding Executive sponsorship, guidelines, regular
changes/newly introduced legisiation and limitatiens or exclusion reperting, mandatory traiming programme, specialist
regulatory requrements from certain temtones committees and steenng groups
Risk that compliance capability does nol scale Oversight by Audit Committee, Executive and Risk
10 an increasingly intemationalised and digtised Management and Intemal Cantrol Commuttee
business, in particular in relation to compliance Programme of Internal Audits ahgned to corporate nsks
with local regulatons and tax laws
: Business Continuity and Safety i
Health and Safety ineident causing ijury or Disruption to business Business continuity and safety officers reporiing to Chief
death operations including nominated Executive sponsor Financial
natural disasters, Officer

Increasing number of UK and intemational live
events

Risk of disruption to operations, infrastructure
and loss of revenue

terronsm and other
unforeseen events

Reputational damage
and adverse pubhaty or
press coverage

Extensive continuity plans encompassing intermnational
offices and business operations

Rolling plan of rehearsals (including at the disaster
recovery site)

Safety management arrangements supported by policy
framework, commumecations, forums and guides
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Legal Governance and 4 Commerclal Criteria

At each Board meeting the General Counsel presents a report on current legal, editonal and far-trading 1ssues and updates the Board on compliance
with the 4 Commercial Cntena

(i) 4 Commercial Criteria and Fair Trading Framework

BBC Worldwide follows the pnnciples set out in the BBC Royal Charter and Agreement and the Trust Protocol C4 — Commercial Services (May 2010}
and the BBC Trust's Commercial Review (November 2009)

In particular, BBC Worldwide must comply with the 4 Commeraial Crtena (4CC), which stem from the BBC Royal Charter and Agreement, requinng all
the BBC’s commercial activities to

. Be fit with the BBC’s Public Purposes

*  Not jeopardise the good reputation of the BEC or the value of the BBC brand

= Exhibit commercial efficiency

+  Comply with the Trust's Fair Trading Policy, the BBC's Fair Trading Guidelines and, in particular, avoid distorting the market

The 4CC approvals framework embedded wathin BBC Worldwade’s govermnance structure ensures that key projects and investments are subject to
ngorous evaluation, ensuring compltance with each of the 4CC prior to completion or launch In addition, a 4CC Comphance Report 1s submitted
annually to the BBC Executive Board and the BBC Trust

BBC Farr Trading arrangements have been accredited wath the 1SO 9001 2008 quality standard In December 2011, the British Standards Institute
confirmed that these procedures were continuing to operate effectively This year the BBC commissioned independent auditors, currently Deloitte,

to undertake an annual Fair Trading Audit this was commissioned this year by the Executive, having previously been commissioned by the BBC Trust
Details of the audit and opinion will be avaiiable in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts for 2011/12

(i) Editorial standards

The BBC s trusted as a source of high-qualty broadcasting and content, renowned for accuracy, msights and some of the most ongmal entertainment in
the world We have set ngorous standards to ensure nothing we do harms this remarkable reputation All our people and partners are required to work
within our editonal framework and follow our guidelines on editonal integnty and independence from extemal interest as well as on advertising and
sponsorship

In London, our Editorial Forums have prowided an epportunity for editonal figures across the company to come together to discuss topical 1ssues, such
as the introduction of product placement to the UK Market or the editonal proposition behind the Global BBC IPlayer

New online traiming modules explaining the editonal, commercial and advertising standards we expect have been launched Staff members across the
company, both in the UK and intemationally, have participated in these traning pregrammes In 2012, further training 1s being developed to ensure
everyone working with the BBC brand continues to be aware of the ngorous standards we have put in place

(iti) Key Legal Issues
Key legal 1ssues addressed dunng the course of the year include
UK Bribery Act

BBC Worldwide's Bnbery Act compliance programme began in May 2010, buliding on the organisation's exsting anti-fraud and corruption framework
{which already included an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Code of Conduct, Fraud Control Policy, a programme of training and targeted due diigence
across the company)

Implementation of the programme was managed through the Bnbery Act Working Group Followang completion, the project was handed over to the BBC
Worldwide Compliance Steenng Group {chaired by the BBC Worldwide General Counsel) for continuing oversight and monitoning The main initiatives of
the project have been to develop an anti-bribery nsk assessment framework, with the assistance of external speaialists, and assess the portfolio of
operations and terntones against this framework, to ensure all necessary controls are in place This included refreshing communications and framning to
both staff and third parties, updating key policies, revising contracts and taking a more centralised approach to nsk assessment of third parties in the
supply chain

In the past 12 months, BBC Worldwide has also engaged independent third-party experts, including one of the big four accountancy firms, o assess
and benchmark the programme and to provide advice on further enhancements to the established framework Monitonng of activities in high cormuption
nsk countnes where BBC Worldwide has operations continues to be a high prionty for WEx

Data Protection

BBC Worldwide engages with millions of indiwiduals across the globe on a regular basis including customers, audiences, employees, contnibutors and
talent We are committed to protecting any personal information entrusted to us and respecting the privacy of all those people with whom we interact

While data protection rules vary from country to country, BBC Worldwide stnves for the best systems in data protection and information secunty
combining legal requirements and a best practice approach We are commutted to ensunng that not onty our employees and businesses are compliant at
all imes but that our partners and those processing data on behalf of BBC Worldwide share our approach

We recognise that our products and senaces, especially some of our websites and games, are enjoyed by people of all ages As a result, we adopt an
especially sensitive approach to collecting data from minors  As the business continues to develop in areas such as e-commerce and social media to
deliver content and engagement, we will ensure that individuals are atways clearly informed as to why we collect personal information and for what
purposes it wil be used

BEC Worldwide and a number of our subsicharies are registered with the [nformation Commissioner's Office and are regulated by the Data Protection
Act 1998 in the UK, the EU Data Protection Directive and by local legisiation in other territories where it operates such as COPPA (Children’s Online
Pnvacy Protechion Act) in the United States and the Privacy Act 1988 in Australa We are mindful of our obligations under the e-Pnvacy Directive and
we will continue to assess the impact of the draft EU Data Protection Regulation announced this year

We are focused on ensunng that our strategy for data protection remains sustanable in a world of changing laws, technology, consumer trends and
business activities
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The purpose of BBC Worldwide 1 set out clearly elsewhere in this Review to supplement the licence fee and support the BEC's mission through the
successful commercialisation of BBC programmes, and other high-quality British content, around the world

To do this well, the company must be able to hire and keep high calibre people at all levels and in a range of markets However, this needs to be
balanced with ils status as the commercial subsidiary of the BBC, an organisation funded by, and serving, the publc, meaning that

+ 1it1s neither appropnate nor desirable to lead the market on pay, and
+ remuneration policies and practices should be as transparent as possible

The Commuttee believes that the framework and policies it has espoused meet the needs of BBC Worldwide's shareholder for appropnateness, white

enabling the company to incentrse In a way that 1s sufficiently competitive to underpin current and future returns to the parent — returns that wall
directly benefit the icence fee payer

Despite significant growth in profit performance, the Chief Executive decided that, in the present economic climate, it would not be apprepnate to
accept any increase in his total compensation this year The Committee, and the BBC Remuneration Committee, accepted his decision

We aspire to set tough performance standards for incentive payouts and this is reflected in the fact that the 2011/12 payout level for the annual bonus
was 78 1% of the target opportunity for executives Overall, the ratio of fixed salary to vanable incentive pay declined again, reflecting the intention to
tie an increasing proportion of senor executive pay to performance

The Commitiee has also begun the process of simplifying executive compensation, inthially by modifying the Profit Share Plan, and intends to continue
the process of simpiificaton and consclidation as and when existing schemes come to an end The changes embody BBC Worldwide's continuing
commitment to remuneration based on cntena that are objective, transparent and farr

The Remuneration Committee approved a new reward strategy in the year, designed to support BBC Worldwide's future international growth plans,
enabling suitably attractive and commercial reward packages, while adjusting for the varying strength of the BBC’s brand, rmission and values around
the world

In summary, the Committee has spent considerable time considering how to ensure that remuneration 1s pitched appropnately for BBC Worldwide,
where pay Is altractive, surtably aligned with the business strategy, and linked to sufficiently stretching performance standards

The Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration Committee
Composition

There were several changes dunng the year in the composition of the BBC Worldwide Remuneration Committee Charlotte Hogg was appointed to
the Commuttee as a Director on 1 April 2011 Robert Webb QC was Chairman until 29 February 2012 and was succeeded on an intenm basis by Zann
Patel

Summary terms of reference can be found on page 20 in the Corporate Governance section
Advisors

The Committee obtains adwice from vanous saurces in order to ensure it makes informed decisions In the early part of the year, the Commuttee's
main advisor was Delaitie In December 2011, the Commuttee agreed a change to Towers Watson, which for the remamnder of the year both provided
comparative benchmark data on executive remuneration and was retained, on a consultancy basis, 1o advise on the effectiveness of current reward
arrangements and propose improvements to accord with best practice

At the invitation of the Committee, the Chief Executive, the Chief Financral Cfficer, the People Director, the Head of Reward, the Company Secretary
and both the BBC's Director of People and Head of Reward prowided assistance to the Committee dunng the year

No individual 1s responsible for setting hus or her own remuneration
Activitles in 2011/12
The Committee’s activities included

* Reviewing and refining the BBC Wortdwide Reward Strategy

+ Determining individual award levels for WEx based on benchmarking of roles and the market

* Approving performance against targets for the 2011/12 Annual Bonus and long-term incentive schemes, and the resuling payments to
individuals

+  Setting Annual Bonus targets for 2012/13

+ Developing proposals and schemes to simplify executive compensation

+ Considenng the mplications of the forthcoming UK regulations on executive pay, with a view to aligning BBC Worldwde practices and
disclosures, where appropnate, to upcoming legislation

Executive Directors

Full details of the composition of the BBC Worldwide Executive Committee are shown on page 24 This report summanses the remuneration of the
relevant BBC Worldwide Board members

Reward Strategy

The Remuneration Committee reviewed and agreed a new Reward Strategy for senior executives Many elements of the Strategy are applicable at all
levels wathin BBC Worldwide and are being cascaded accordingly Itis aimed at ensunng maximum ahgnment between the BBC mission and BBC
Worldwide objectives of developing and commercialising brand and content internationally

The Company’s Reward Strategy 1s designed to ensure that reward arangements continue to support the delivery of its evolving global business
model, in order to generate growsng and sustainable retums to the BBC, to the benefit of the licence fee payer To do this, it needs to attract and
retain key talent through the following key pnnciples

+ Total Direct Compensation {base pay plus all cash incentives) should be positioned
- In the UK, not more than the market median
- Within 10%, below or above, of the local market median outside the UK, where the BBC brand is less well-established, but where
recruiting and retaining staff 1s essential for the Company's intemationally focussed growth business strateqy
+ The relevant comparator group In the UK 1s FTSE 250 comparies
« The market median 1s positioned midway between that of stand-alone companies and subsidiary business units of comparable size
* Remuneration packages should reward both short-term achievement and sustained growth over the longer term
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Components of reward

The following table summanses the current, key, fixed and vanable components of reward for executives and employees

Performance |
Element Oblective period Performance conditions
Base Salary Mantain a competitive package, at the agreed Not Reviewed annuaily, taking into account the industry in which
position for the relevant local market, applicable  BBC Worldwide operates, location, indmwdual perforrmance and
recognising indmvdual contnbution and the responsibiities, and affordability
scope of the role
Annual Incentives Reward achievement of short-term strategic 1 year Subject to achievement of agreed profit targets’
goals and profit growth
Bonus Matching Align interest of management with the 3 years Eligible participants are invited to defer up to 50% of theirr
Scheme performance of the company and ultimately annual bonus for three years with a potential matching award of
the BEC over the longer term up to 25% of the deferred amount, subject to the achievement
of a Return on Capital Employed threshold
Profit Share Plan Drive profit performance and returns to BBC 3 years The ongtnal scheme provided parbcipants with a share in
Worldwide’s shareholder over the long term, profils® above a set of absolute profit hurdles linked to the five-
whilst promoting the retention of key year strategic plan Annual payments commenced after three
management years of participation in the plan, with balancing payments

made at the end of the five-year penod
Under the simphfied 2011/12 scheme, a single payment,
calculated as a percentage of base pay, depending on the level

of achievement against a cumulative profit’ target, will be made
at the end of the three-year penod

based on headine profit (operating profit before specrfic ilems)
2 Based on profit after interest and fax

In a tough trading year, BBC Worldwde achieved year-on-year growth of 13 0% in profit before tax excluding gains on disposals, and headline profit
growth of 7 9% This result delivered 95 4% of our stretching profit target, set by the Remuneration Commutiee at £159 5m (headline profit), resutting
in annual bonus awards of 78 1% of the target bonus opportunity for members ¢f the BBC Worldwide Executive

Business growth natwithstanding, the Chief Executive decided that, in the present economic climate, it would not be appropnate to accept any
mcrease In his total compensation this year and, to that end, waived a significant proportion of his remuneration for the year Details are shown in the
table on page 41 !

The diagram below illustrates the balance between fixed and vanable remuneration as percentages of total direct compensation, before any deferral
into the matching bonus scheme or remuneration waiver, for the Executive Directors of the BBC Worldwide Board for the cument financial year It
shows that more than 50% of the Chief Executive’s remuneratien 13 dependent on the company’s performance

0 Annual bonus scheme

Base salary

In determining base pay, the Commitiee takes into account the base pay of organisations with which BBC Worldwde competes for talent It also
considers indwidual performance, expenence and competence, the cnbicality of the role, its value to the business and affordability

The Committee reviews salanes annually Any change in base salary 15 usually effective from 1 July
Annual base salanes of those Executive Directors curmrently serving on the BBC Worldwide Board as at 1 Apnl 2012

+ John Smith Chief Executive £448 800
+ Philip Vincent Chiet Financial Officer £275,000

Annual incontives

Annual incentives are provided through the BBC Worldwide annual bonus Scheme in which all staff partcipate (other than those on sales schemes)
The Chief Executive 1 eligible to receive a core bonus of up to 60% of base pay and the Chief Financial Officer 1s eligible for a core bonus of up to
40% of base pay The Chief Executive’s bonus 1s wholly dependent on the performance of BBC Wordwide as this 1s deemed to be the most
appropnate indicator of his own performance His bonus opportunity and targets are set and agreed annually by the BBC Executive Remuneration
Commuitiee

In addition, the Scheme rewards senior managers for delivenng financial performance beyond the already stretchung targets This 1s seff funding and
achieved by creating a pool, calcutated as a percentage of profits achieved above the annual bonus target 80% of this pool 1s shared across
participating members All semor managers (above a defined grade) are eligible to participate in this element of the scheme The remaining 20% 1s
awarded on a discretionary basts for outstanding performance Both Johin Smith and Philip Vincent are eligible to participate in this but no payments
were due under this element of the Scheme i 2011/12
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Long-term incentives
Bonus-matching scheme

In previous years up to 2009/10, Executive Directors could voluntanly invest up to 75% of ther annual bonus into the now closed Long-Term Incentive
Plan {LTIP) which would be eligible for a matching award based on the subsequent performance of the company The final award under this plan -
relating to the penod 2009/10 to 2011/12 — was made in June 2012 and 1s disclosed in the table on page 41

Although the LTIP has now been replaced, performance in respect of this final award has been determined in accordance with the onginal LTIP
cntena Two measures — profit growth (75% weighting) and return on sales growth (25% weighting) over a three-year penod — were used to rank 8BC
Worldwide performance relative to a comparator group of other internattonal media compamies

The comparator group was selected for its mix of business, industry, size and geographical representation

The constituent companies of the comparator group

Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc News Corporation The Walt Disney Corporation
Cablewision Systems Corporation Pearson plc UBM plc

Comcast Corporation ProSiebenSat 1 Media AG Village Roadshow Ltd

Grupo Telewvisa RTL Group Vivend Group

ITV plc Scnpps Networks

Mediaset SpA Singapore Press Holdings

Matching was determined on a straight line basis with the top ranking delivering a 100% match and the bottom ranking resulting in the forfert of 50%
of the total amount deferred

Since 2009/10, directors have been able to defer up to 50% of their annual bonus for three years The deferred amount 1s then eligible for a 25%
matching award at the end of three years, subject to a cumulative retumn on capital employed (ROCE) threshold of 40% over the penod having been
met

Profit Share Plan

The Company's onginal Profit Share Plan (PSP}, which covers the five-year penod beginning in 2008/09, prowided participants with a share in profits
above a set of absolute profit hurdies inked to the five-year strategic plan Annual payments commence after three years of participation in the plan,
with balancing payments made at the end of the five-year penod For eligible participants, the payments shown on page [#] will be made in June 2012
Any payment due for the final year of the plan will be made in the summer of 2013 Any balancing payments due will be made in 2014 and 2015

The revised PSP, also in operation during the year, covers the three-year pernod 201112 to 2013/14

Profit after interest and tax 1s used as the basis for both plans, as it ahigns Management's interests with a key measure for the shareholder The
annual cash PSP payout 1s capped at 100% of base pay for each participant

Pension

Executive members of the Board are eligible to participate in the BBC Pension Scheme (the Scheme), which prowides for pension benefits on a
defined benefit basis The Scheme, which has a number of sections, operating on different bases, 18 now closed to new entrants and any executives
appointed to the Board and who are not already members of the Scheme will be ehgible to participate in the BBC’s defined contnbution pension plan

For an employee who joined the Scheme before 1 November 2008, the accrual rate 1s 1/60th of the final pensionable salary for each year of service,
with pensionable salary being base pay only With effect from 1 Apnl 2011, future increases in pensionable salary are imited to a maximum of 1% per
annum For employees in this group, the normal pensionable age 1s 60 The contnbution rate for these employees 1s 7 5% of pensionable salary

For an employee who joined on or after 1 November 2006 and before 1 December 2010, the accrual rate 1s 1 67% of his or her pensionable pay for
each year of service, adjusted in kne with infiation up to retirement As before, with effect from 1 Apnl 2011, all future increases in pensicnable salary
are hmited to a maximum of 1% per annum Participating employees contribute 4% of their pensionable salary to the Scheme For employees in this
group the normal pensionable age s 65

To provide a lower cost and lower nsk option for the BBC, members of the Scheme were given the opportunity to transfer to a new Career Average
Benefits section (CAB2011) for future pension build-up, and have their accrued pension entitiement to date deferred into the scheme This deferred
pension would build up broadly in ine wath inflaton Under CAB2011 there 15 no 1% per annum hmit on increases in pensionable salary, and
employee contnbutions to the Scheme are 6% The normal pension age 1s 65 Transfers had to be made before 31 December 2011

John Smith participates in the onginal defined benefit section of the Scheme and Philip Vincent now participates in the Career Average Benefits
section (CAB2011) Philip Vincent's pensionable eamings are now subject to a maximum cap of £127,800 {nsing to £135,000 for the 2012/13 tax
year) No maximum annual cap 1s applicable to John Srmth who jomed the BBC before 31 May 1989 The Scheme provides for early retirement on
medical grounds and Iife assurance of four times life cover pensionable salary up to a prescnbed mit

Other benefits

In addition to pension, the other main contractual benefits are a car allowance and private health insurance
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Employment contracts

The notice penods of Board Directors serving dunng the year are detailed in the table below These are subject to earhier termination for cause No
payments are made to Directors on termunation other than as contractually required If termination anses through redundancy, Board Directors are
entitled to one month’s pay for each year of continuing service, subject 1o a 24-month cap

Date of appointment to BBC Notice perlod Notice period

Worldwide Board from Company from Director

John Smith 1B March 2005 12 months 12 months
Philip Vineent 1 December 2010 6 months 6 months

Qutside interests

Where there 15 ne potential for conflict of interest, and with the pnor agreement of the Charr, Executive members of the Board may hold one paid
extemal directorship Remuneration which anses from directorships may be retained by the executive This policy 1s 1o encourage the take-up of
extemnal Non-executive appomtments as part of the Board Directors’ development as well as bringing broader business skills to BRBC Worldwide

Dunng the year, John Smith served as a Non-executive Director of Burberry plic, for which he received a fee of £70,000 It 1s recogrused that BBC
Worldwide's own Non-executive Directors are likely to have other directorships and the restnction regarding paid extemal directorshups applying to
Executive Directors does not apply to them

Non-executive directors

The BEC Non-executive Directors Zann Patel and Mark Thompson (who was appointed Chairman in March 2012) do not, and Nicholas Eldred (who
left the BBC on 31 Qctober 2011) did not, recerve remuneration from BBC Worldwide for the services provided to the Company The other Non-
executive Directors receive a fee, determined by the BBC Trust, reflecting the complexty of the role and the time required to execute it effectively
The fee levels are set with reference to rates paid by other UK corporatins, but at a level such that the Non-executive Directors are not financially
dependent on BBC Worldwide Details are provided on page 41 The fee levels are reviewed annually on 1 September, the next review being effective
from 1 September 2012

Robert Webb QC receved a fee of £68,750 for his role as Chawrman of the Board of BBC Worldwide This was in addiion o fees received from the
BBC and from BBC Commercial Holdings in respect of his Non-executive positions on therr respective boards Further details are available in the BBC
Annual Report and Accounts 2011/12

Chariotte Hogg was appointed as Non-executive Director on 24 September 2010 for a fixed term of twe years Ttm Weller was reappointed on 26 Apnl
2012 for a further two-year term

Non-executive Directors must maintain a register of all extemal interests that might be seen to affect their ability to perform their independent duties
This register includes declarations of all positiens of employment, directorships and voluntary positions, as well as interests of close family members if
relevant, and 1s approved by the BBC Worldwide Board at least annually

Current fees of Non-executive Directors 1o whom a fee 1s payable from 1 Apnl 2012

* Charlotte Hogg £35,700
»  Tim Weller £40,800 *

* £35,700 in respect of dutres as Non-exacutive Director plus £5,100 in respect of duties as Chair of the Audit Commnultee

40




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2012
Report on Directors' remuneration (continued)
Remuneration earned in the year ended 31 March 2012
Matching
scheme for
bonuses
deferred from Taxable Eamings Total Total
£000 Fee/base pay Annual bonus PSP prior years® benefits walved* 2012 2011
Executive Directors
John Smith 1 2 ¥4 447 107 279 102 15 (52) 898 898
Philip Vincent * ® 269 92 78 - 10 - 449 146
716 199 357 102 25 {52) 1,347 1,044
Non-executive Directors
Nicholas Eldred & * - - - - - - . .
Charlotte Hogg ® 36 - - - - - 36 18
Zarin Patel ® - - - - . . . .
Mark Thompson® ? - - - . . . . .
Robert Webb '° 69 - - - - - 69 77
Tim Wetler "' 41 - - - - - 41 38
145 - - - - - 146 133
Former Directors - - - - - - - 198
Total 862 199 357 102 25 (52) 1,493 1,376

! The Chief Executive committed £107,000 or 50% of his annual bonus info the Deferred Bonus Plan which wall vest in March 2015 Annual bonus 1s stated net of any
deferral info the matchuing scheme

2 The Matching payment shown relates to £62,000 of annual bonus which was invested into the now closed Long Term Incentive Plan in March 2009 and was matched at
48% in view of the company’s performance over the 2008-2012 penod

3 The BBC introduced a salary sacnfice arrangement on 1 June 2008 for Old and New Benefits members who joined the Pension Scheme before 1 November 2006 This
armangement 1s also apphicable to ail Career Average Benefit members Those Directors indicated m the table ahove paricipated in the arrangement From that date, the
terms and condibons of employment were changed for those employees opting for the salary sacnfice armangemnent and as a resuif empioyee pension coninbutions
made via the salary sacnifice have been trealed as employer contnbutions, with a corresponding reduction in salary Base salanes for Executive Diractors have not been
adiusted fo reflect the impact of the salary sacnfice The lotal salary sacnfice by Executive Directors was £42,455 (2011 £38,180)

4 John Smth decrded that, m the present economic chmate, it would not be appropnate fo accept any increase in his total compensation this year and, to that end, warved
£52,000 of tvs earmings

5 Phiip Vincent was appointed as a Director on 1 December 2010 The figure for 2010-11 1n the fabla above outines his remuneration ondy for the four-month penod
between the date of lis appotntment fo the Board and year-end

L The BBC Non-executive Directors m the year, Nicholas Eldred, Zann Patel and Mark Thompson, did not receive remuneration from BBC Worldwide for the services
provided fto BBC Wordwide

7 Ceased o be a Director on 31 October 2011

8 Appomted on 24 September 2010

8 Appointed on 12 March 2012

10 Ceased to be & Director on 23 February 2012

11 Appombed on 26 Apni 2010
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Deferred bonus potential vesting of outstanding schemes

The potential vesting in 2013, 2014 and 2015 for Executive Directors

Potentlal
invested
bonus
matching Totat potentlel
Bonus award payment
End of perfarmance i ted { imumj) 1 }
Participant period £1000 £000 £'000
a b a+b
John Smith March 2013 141 35 176
John Smith March 2014 138 35 173
John Smith March 2015 107 27 134
Pension entitlements
Annual values Transfer values '
ncrease In Transfer value Transfer value Increase In
Total accrued accrued of accrued of accrued transfer value
penston at 31 pension over pension at 31 penslon at 31 tess directors
Age as at 31 March 2012 year March 2012 March 2011 contributions
Executlve Directors March 2012 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
John Smith 54 208 7 3,803 3,319 484
Philip Vincent 42 28 3 293 234 59

1 The transfer value of accrued pension benefits reprasents the estmated cost to the Pension Scheme of providing the pension benefits accrued fo date The valus i5
affected by many factors including age pensionable salary, pensionable serwce and wmvestment markat conditions at the date of calculation (in accordance with
regulatons 7 to 7E of the Occupabional Pension Schemes Transfer Values Regulations 1996, as amended} and any contnbutons made by the indivdual 1tis not a sum
paid or due fo the individual and therefore cannot be meaningfully added o remuneration

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 1 June 2012 and signed on its behalf by

2Zarin Patel
Intertm Chair, Remuneration Commitiee
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The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and Company financial statements in accerdance with apphcable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with International IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or loss for that penod

In prepanng the Company financial statements, the Directors are reguired to

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

« for the Company financial stalements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have heen followed, subject to any matenal depariures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Group and the Company wll continue
n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other wregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financtal information included on the Company's website
Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other junsdictions
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Independent Auditor’'s report to the members of BBC Worldwide Limited

We have audited the financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 set out on pages 45 to 97 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibliities of directors and auditor

As exptained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page 43, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financia! statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opinien on, the financial
statemenits in accordance with applicable law and Intemnational Standards on Auditing {UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/pnvate ¢fm
Opinion on financlal statoments

In our opimon

- the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

+ the Company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

= the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Oplnion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial slatements are prepared (s consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nathing to report :n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, In our opinion

= adequale accouniing records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from
branches not visited by us, or

+ the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns, or

= certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

/M——

Paul Korolklewicz (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

KPMG LLP

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

7 June 2012
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for the year ended 31 March 2012
Total Total
2012 2011
Note £m £m
Gress revenue including joint ventures 2 1,0850 1,0298
Less Share of revenue of joint ventures {150 1) (146 1)
Revenue 934 9 8837
Total operating costs 3 {840 8) {812 5}
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 234 275
Operating profit 175 987
Analysed as
Headline profit 2 154 8 1435
Impairment of goodwll 13 (16 1} (33 8)
Share of interest and tax of joint ventures and associates 4 (9 6) (10 5}
Pension deficit reduction payment 4 (43) -
Other speaific iems 4 {73) {0 5)
1175 987
Gain on disposal of Ammal Planet 28 - 96 4
Other gains and losses 8 47 16
Finance income 9 07 05
Finance expense 9 {10 0) (92)
Profit befora tax 1035 1880
|Profit before tax excluding gain on disposal of Arimal Planet 1035 916 |
Tax charge for the year 10 (302) (30 0}
Profit from continuing operations 733 1580
Profit from discontinued operations 11, 28 1003 90
Profit for the year 5 1736 1670
Aftnbutable to
Equity shareholders of the parent company 168 4 1617
Non-contrelling interests 52 53
Profit for the year 1736 167 0
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2012
2012 011
£m Em_
Profit for the year 1736 1670
Other comprehensive income
Recycling of cumulative currency translation reserve on disposal 07 -
Recognitton and transfer of cash flow hedges 04 01
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 18 (5 1}
Other comprehensive income for the year 15 (50)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1761 1620
Attnbutable to
Equity shareholders of the parent company 169 9 156 7
Non-controlling interests 52 53
Total comprehensive income for the year 1751 1620
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 March 2012

2012 19
Note £m £m
Nen-current assets
Goodwill 13 582 697
Distnbution nghts 14 1328 1240
Other intangible assets 15 508 455
Property, plant and equipment 16 264 284
Interests in joint ventures and associates 17 289 340
investments 18 44 25
Deferred tax assets 10 94 229
Denvatwe financtal assels 25 12 10
3121 3280
Current assets
Programme nghts and other inventones 19 104 8 835
Trade and other receivables 20 206 5 2858
Denvative financial assets 25 26 35
Cash and cash equivalents 311 631
Asgsets classified as held for sale 22 119 44 4
4469 4303
Total assets 769 0 808 3
Current liabilities
Interest beanng loans and borowings 24 305 201
Trade and other payables 21 3720 3634
Current tax habilittes 24 B7
Provisions 23 25 72
Denvative financial habilites 25 18 50
Liabilities relating to assets held for sate 22 - 365
409 2 4409
Non-current liabilities
Interest beanng loans and borrowings 24 650 953
Trade and other payables 21 30 89
Prowvisions 23 97 114
Denvative financial liabilihes 25 45 42
Deferred tax habilities 10 56 153
878 136 1
Total liabilities 497 0 5770
Net assots 2620 2313
Equity
Share capital 26 02 02
Hedging reserve 27 12 08
Translation reserve 27 341 330
Retained earnings 27 2193 190 8
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 2548 2248
Non-controlling interests 72 65
Total equity 262 0 2313

These consohdated finanaal statements of BBC Warldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors

H Philip Vincent
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2012
— 2012 2011
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 1779 186 0
Tax pad (337) {32 8)
144 2 153 2
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receved 07 07
Dividends recewved from joint ventures and associates 17 187 438
Purchases of distnbution nghts 14 (98 6) {92 9}
Purchases of other intangible assets 15 (18 3) {11 1)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 16 (60) (10 6)
Acquisition of non-controlling mterests 35 - @7
Acquisition of asset held for sale 28 486 -
Disposal of operations 28 1111 107 4
Acquisition of interests in joint ventures and associates 17 {18) (16)
Acquisition of investments 18 (16) -
Amounts advanced to related parties (0 3) -
Repayment by related parties - 22
07 (8
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pad (99 (7 0}
Repayment of loans and borrowings (20 0) {23 8)
Capital element of finance lease payments [(+0)] -
Equity dividends paid (139 9) (83 4)
Dvidends paid to non-controlling interests (4 5) (3 0}
(1748) (1172)
Net (decrease)iincrease in cash and cash equivalents {31 1) 322
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 631 36
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 09 07
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 311 631

47



BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2012
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2012
Aﬂﬂh‘tlbhwﬂﬂmmnmﬂnpmmy
Hadgin Retained Other g
Shary capital ressrve resarve aamings ressrve Total interests  Totad squity
km fm £m LS I tm fm__ fm
Balance at 1 April 2040 02 368 05 1389 {363) 1401 156 1557
Profit for the year - - - 1617 - 1617 53 1670
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - - - - 01 01
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (5 0) - - - {50) (0 1) (51)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - 50) - 1617 - 1567 53 1620
Dmdends paid - - - (83 4) - (83 4) (30) (B64)
Transfer of foreign exchange movement on put ophion - 12 - - {(12) - - -

Exercise of put option over non-controlling interests - 03 (26 4) 375 114 (11 4) -
Balance at 31 March 2011 02 330 08 190 8 - 2248 85 2313

Profit for the year - - - 168 4 - 168 4 52 1736
Recycling of cumutative currency translaton reserve on disposal - on - - - (L)) - (07
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - 04 - - 04 - 04
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 18 - - - 18 - 18
Total comprehenslve Income for the year - 11 04 168 4 - 1689 52 1751
Dividends paid - - - {1399) - (139 9) {45) (144 4)
Balance at 31 March 2012 02 41 12 2193 - 2548 72 2820
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Principal accounting policies

BEC Wordwde Limited (the “Company™ 15 a company domiciled in the United Kingdom The consotidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2012 compnse the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (together the “Group”) and the Group's interest in joint
veniures and associated undertakings

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that 1s the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the Group
operates Foreign operations are included in accordance wath the policies set out below

{a) Basis of preparation

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Unien {the EU), the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU International Accounting Standards Regulations

The financial statements are pnncipally prepared on the histoncal cost basis Areas where alternative bases of accounting are applied are identified in
the accounting policies below

(b} Going concern

The Board remains satisfied with the Group’s funding and hiquidity position The disclosures on page 26 in the Directors’ Report in respect of going
concern form part of the audited accounts

As at 31 March 2012, the marn sources of debt funding were an unsecured credit facility with BBC Commeraial Holdings Limited (BBCCH) expinng in
September 2013, and an unsecured loan with the European Investment Bank, which expired in May 2012 Further information in respect of these
faciihies 1s included in note 24

On the basis of its forecasts, both base case and adjusted, and having regard to available and anticipated financing facilities, the Board has con-
cluded that the going concern basis of preparation continues to be appropnate Further information 1n respect of hquidity risk 1s included in note 35

{c} Basls of consolidation
' Subsidianes

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (and s
subsidhanes) made up to 31 March each year Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govem the financial and operating policies of
an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes
to bnng the accounting polictes used into Iine with those of the Group All Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation

Nor-controling interests in subsichanes are identfied separately from the Group's equity therein The interests of non-controlling shareholders are
initially measured at their proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets Subsequent to acquisition, the camying amount
of non-controlling interests 1s increased or decreased in proportion to the non-controlling interests’ share of any subsequent changes in equity

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidianes that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions The camying amounts
of non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect any changes in their, and the Group's, relative interests in the subsidianes Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the farr vatue of the consideration paid or receved 1s recognised directly in equity
and attnbuted to the owners of the Company

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (1) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiary
(including attnbutable goodwll) and any non-controlling interests Amounts previously recogrised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are reclassified to the income statement or transferred directly to retained eamings as appropnate The fair value of any interest retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control 1s lost ts regarded as the cost on inibial recognition of an investment in a joint venture or associate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continuad)
#  Jomt ventures and assocrates

A joint venture 15 an entity aver which the Group exercises joint control, established through a contractual arrangement An associate 1 an entity
where the Group 13 in a position to exeraise significant influence over, but not to control, the entity's inancial and operating policies

The results and assets and iabilities of joint ventures and associates are incorporated into these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment 1s classified as held for sale, in which case it 1s accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-cumrent Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Under the equity method, investments in associates are camed in the consolidated balance sheel at cost, adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the joint venture or associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments

Where the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the joint venture or associate, the carrying amount 1s reduced 1o nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture or associate

Where a group entity transacts with a joint venture or associate of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are elminated the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant joint venture or associate

The Group accounts for its share of the results and net assets of its jont ventures and associates using information as of 31 March with the exception
of Children's Character Books Limited, Woodlands Books Limited, Educational Publishers LLP, BBC Haymarket Extubitions Limited and JV
Programmes LLC which have been included using information from unaudited accounts drawn up te 31 December The impact of these non-
coterminous year ends 15 not considered matenal

(d) Adoption of new and revised standards

At the beginning of the current penod, the Group adopted the followaing accounting pronouncements, none of which had a sigrificant impact on its
results or financial position

* |AS 24 (2009) Related Party Disclosures
* IFRIC 14 (2009) /AS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction
* IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilittes with Equity Instruments

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these financial
statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

* IFRS 1 (2011) First-time Adoption of IFRSs

* IFRS 7 (2011) Financral Instruments Disclosures

* IFRS 9 (2011) Financral Instruments Classification and Measurement
* IFRS 10 {2011) Consolidated financial statements

= IFRS 11 (2011) Joint arangements

= IFRS 12 (2011) Disclosure of interests in other entities

* IFRS 13 (2011) Farr value measurement

* IAS 1 (2011) Presentation of financial statements

+ 1AS 12 (2010) Income taxes

* |AS 19 (2011) Employee benefits

+ |AS 27 (2011} Separate financial statements

* |AS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and joint ventures

» 1AS 32 (2011) Financial instruments Presentation

= IFRIC 20 (2011} Strpping costs in the production phase of a surface mme

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group in
future penods, except as follows

« [FRS 9 will mpact both the measurement and disclosures of Financial instruments, and
* IFRS 12 will impact the disclosure of interest the Group has in other entihes

Beyond the information above, it 1s not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detalled review has been
completed
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{0} Non-statutory financial performance measures

The Group believes that 'Headline sales' and 'Headline profit' are additional non-statutory measures of financial perfformance that provide further
guidance to help understand the performance of the business on a comparable basis year on year

Headline sales includes the Group's share of the revenues of its joint ventures, which are closely monitored by the Directors Headline profit excludes
significant items affecing operating profit (termed "specific items™) which in the Directors’ judgement enable a more complete understanding of the
Group's financial performance Specific items are identified separately by vitue of their size, nature or mcidence

Specific tems are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to similarty titted measures used by other companies [tems which have been
highlighted for consideration include the impairment of goodwill, the Group's share of the interest and tax of joint ventures and associates and other
non-routine 1items which help to facilitate a consistent view of the Group's results

{f} Buslness combinations

Acquisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the acquisiton method The cost of each acquisition 1s measured at the
aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given and llabilities incurred or assumed in exchange for contral of the acquiree
Acquisitton related costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes contingent consideration, measured at its acquisiion-date fair value Subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recorded in the iIncome statement

Where a business combination 1s achieved in stages (1 e where the Group acquires an entity which was previously a joint venture, associate or held-
for-sale investment) the Group remeasures Iits pre-existing interest in the entity to far value at the acqusiion date {1 e the date the Group attains
control) The resulting gain or loss, if any, 1s recogrised in the income statement Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of the entity, pnor to the acquisition date, are also reclassified to the income statement where required

The acquired entity’s identifiable assets, habilihes and contingent liabtlities that meet the conditions for recognition under [FRS 3 (2008) Business
Combinations are recognised at therr far value at the acquisition date, except that assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale are
measured In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

(g) Non-curront assots held for salo

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered prnincipally through sale rather than
continuing use, they are avallable for immediate sale in their present condition and a sale 1s highly probable Management must be committed to the
sale which shoutd be expected to qualfy for recogrution as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group 1s committed to a sale plan involving loss of contral of a subsidiary, all of the assets and habilities of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the cntena described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale

Once classified as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs {o |
sell No amortisation or depreciation 1s charged on non-current assets {including those in disposal groups) classified as held for sale

{h) Goodwill

Goodwil ansing on acquisition (except those prior to 1 Apnil 2007) 1s recognised as an asset at the date that control 1s acquired {the ‘acquisition date’)
Goodwill 1s measured as the excess sum of the consideration paid, the farr value of the Group's pre-acquisition interest in the acquiree (if any) and the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilites
assumed

For acquisiions which occurred prior to 1 Apnl 2007, goodwall 1s measured at deemed cost tess any impairment wnte-downs Deemed cost s the
amount previously recogruised under UK accounting standards pnor to transibon to IFRS

Goodwll 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwall i1s allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwiil has been allocated
are tested for imparment annually, or more frequently when there 15 an indication that the umit may be impaed Testing for impairment involves a
companson of camying amount of the cash-generating umit with its recoverable amount, being the higher of its value in use or fair value less costs to
sell

Where impairment testing indicates that the camying amount of a cash-generating umt exceeds its recoverable amount, the unit 1s wntten down to
recoverable amount An impairment loss s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any geodwall allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unt An impairment loss recognised for goodwall 1s not reversed in
a subsequent penod

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwall 1s included in the determination of the profit or loss on dispasal

51



BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Pnncipal accounting policies (continued)

(il Revonue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts recesvable for goods and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes Sales of merchandise and publishing are stated after deduction
of the sales value of actual and estimated returned goods

The Group's main sources of revenue and its policies for the recognition of such revenue are summansed as follows

» Licence fees are earned by the Group's Sales & Distnbution and Content & Production segments from programme content and programme
formats, respectively Once a contract has been signed, icence fees are recogmised on the later of the start of the licence penod or on delivery
of the associated programme

= Subscnption fees from the broadcast of the Group's Channels on pay telewvision platforms, and from subscriptions to pnnt and online publications
and services, 1S recognised as earned, pro rata over the subscrption penod

* Advertising revenue generated by the Group's Channels business and from websites and magazines managed by the Global Brands operating
segment are recognised on transmmission or pubiication of the advertisement

= Production fees and participation royalties eamed by the Group's Content & Production business are recognised as eamned Production fees are
recogmised on delivery of the programme or on a stage of completion basis, depending on the nature of the contract with the customer Royalties
are recognised on receipt or on an accruals basis where sufficient reliable information 15 available

* Rewenue generated from the sale of physical and digital products by the Consumer Products and Global Brands operating segments (and by the
Group's discontinued Magazines operations) 15 recognised al the time of delivery Revenue from the sale of goods 1s stated nel of deductions for
actual and expected retumns based on management judgement and histoncal expenence

The individual resulls and financial pesihon of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic environment 1n which the
company operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each group
company are expressed in pounds sterling, which 1s the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements

(I} Foreign currencies i
|

Transactions tn foreign currencies are translated into the applicable functional currency of each entity of the Group at a monthly average exchange
rate Monetary assets and liabihties denominated in foreign cumencies are transfated at the foreign exchange rate nuling on that date Foreign
exchange differences which anse on translation are recognised in the income statement

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and habiliies of the Group's foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date (the "closing rate’) Income and expense items are translated at the weighted average rates for the year
Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets and income and expense for the year to the closing rate are recognised i
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attnbuted to non-controliing interests as appropnate)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences in respect of that operation recogrised in equity are reclassified to the
tncome statement and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquistion of a foreign operation are treated as assets and lizbiities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate, as descnbed above

(k) Retirament bensfit costs
Contnbutions to defined contnbution pension schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due

Employees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's ultimate parent, the Bntish Broadcasting Corporation
{the “BBC"} The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BBC
Pension Scheme, to which the majonty of employees belong, are held separately from those of the BBC Group

The BBC Pension Scheme s a group-wide scheme and there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to
scheme pariicipants The contnbution rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term view of the assets
required to fund the scheme’s habilties Valuations of the scheme are performed by Towers Watson, consulting actuaries, with formal valuations
undertaken at ieast every three years Accordingly, the Group accounts for contnbutions payable to the scheme as if the schemes were defined
contnbuticn schemes, as 1s required by |1AS 19 Employee Benefits

{) Other employee benefits

The Group operates a number of incentive schemes, including a long term incentive scheme whereby senior executives receive a proportion of their
remuneration in the form of a share of the Group’s profits, which vests over a number of years Where settliement of such amounts 18 contingent on
conlinued sernice to the Group, the cost of the amangement Is expensed on a strarght-ine basis over the service penod Where no service conditions
exst, the cost of the scheme 18 incurred over the penod in which it 1s eamed
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{m) Taxation

The Group's hability for current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year, and 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expenditure which are not taxable or deductible or which are taxable or deductible in other years

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in future penods and i1s recognised using the balance sheet Lability method This
method provides for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habihties in the batance sheet and the correspending tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit Tempoerary differences ansing from goodwill and the imihal recognition of assets or habilities that affect
nesther accounting profit nor taxable profit are not prownided for

Deferred tax habdittes are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes, jont ventures and associates except
where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the manner in which tax 15 expected to anse and using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the iIncome statement, except where it relates to items
recorded within other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax s also recorded wathin other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there i1s a legally enforceable nght to such offset, when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle on a net basis

{n} Distribution rights

Distnbution nghts represent nghts to programmes and associated intellectual property acquired wath the pnmary intention of exploiting the nghts
commercially as part of the Group's long-term operations

Distnbution rights acquired by the group are either purchased, generated internally or licensed following the payment of an advance on royalties
Where the Group controls the respective assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them, nghts are itially recognised at acquisition cost or
production cost The carrying amount 1s stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and prowvision for impairment

Amortisation of distnbution nghts 15 charged to the income statement to maich the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its estimated
average marketable ife The expected hves of distnbution nghts range from one to 10 years In the case of royalty advances, amortisation s charged
as the advances are recouped

Where the carrying value of any individual set of nghts exceeds management's best estimate of future exploitation revenues, a provision for
imparment 18 recorded in the income statement immediately

For self-produced content, distnbution nghis excliude co-production costs bome by third parties These costs are deferred within current assels and
expensed upon recognition of the associated production income Production income 1s recogrised in accordance with the Group's revenue
recogrition policies

{0) Othor Intangible assets
i Acquired intangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisiien The fair value of such intangible
assets 13 valued by reference to external market values or income based methods Income based methods estimate the future economic benefits to
be denved from ownership of the asset by identifying, quantfying and separating cash flows attnbutable to the asset and capitalising their present
value Purchased intangible assels acquired separately are capitalised at cost After imbal recognition, all intangible fixed assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

n  Intemnally-generated intangible assets development expenditure

An intemally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group's development, including software and website development, 1s recognised when the
asset I1s technically and commercially feastble, sufficient resources exist to complete the development and 1t 1s probable that the asset will generate
future economic benefits Any expenditure on research or development activities that does not meet the aforementioned cntena, 1s recognised as an
expense In the penod in which it 1s incurred

m Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over therr useful ives using the straight-ine method Amorbisation expense is recorded within total
operating costs in the Income statement The useful ives used for intangible assets are as follows

+  Masthead 20 years
+ Camer agreementis Unexpired term of agreement
+  Software 1-5 years
+ Other 3-8 years

Useful Iives are examined every year and adjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis
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{(p) Property, plant and equipment (PPE}

Owmed PPE 15 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, other than those items that are classified as
held for sale

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Depreciation 1s charged on other PPE s0 as to wite off the cost of assets to therr residual value, over their expected
useful bves using the straight-ine method When an tem of PPE compnses major components having different useful economic lives, the
components are accounted for as separate tems of PPE Depreciation commences from the date when the asset 1s available for use

The useful lives for depreciation purposes for the pnnaipal categones of assets are

* Short leasehold buildings Unexpired lease term
* Plant and machinery 3 to 8 years
+ Fixtures and fithings 3to 7 years

Assets held under finances leases are treated as PPE and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their useful economic lIife
The Group capitalises borrowing costs with respect to amounts incurred dunng the construction of qualifving property, plant and equipment
(q9) Impairment of tangible and Intanglble assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the cammying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (including d:stnbution nghts) to determine
whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If and where such indication exists, an impairment loss 1s
recogrused in the income statement for the amount by which an asset's carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount Where an asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent of other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating urit o which the asset
belongs

Recoverable amount 1s calculated as the higher of an asset's value In use and its fair value less costs 1o sell Value in use 1s based on estimated
future cash flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash fiows have not been adjusted

Impairment losses recogrised In respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to those units,
and then to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis An impairment loss s reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impairment foss 1s reversed only to the extent that an asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprectation or amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recogrised

(r} Programme rights and other inventories

Programme nghts in this context refers to programme nghts acquired for the pnmary purpose of broadcasting through the Group's Channels
business The carrying amount 1s stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and provision for impairment The Group’s estimate of the benefits
receved from these nghts 1s determined to be most appropnately aligned with a straight-line amortisation profile for the majonty of the programme
inventory held The cost Is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the penod of the licence or three years (the
expected operating cycle for an item of this nature) In certain instances amortisation 1s recogrused on a reducing balance basis, where this more
appropnately aligns the amortisation profile wath the expected consumption of economic benefits

Programmes in the course of production represent the costs incurred by the Group on the creation of new content where such costs wil be recovered
from third parties Costs are ordinanly recovered through co-production agreements or through contracts for the provision of production services
Costs borme by the Group with a view to exploiting the resulting content through licensing agreements are presented within Distnbution nights

Other inventones compnsing books, DVDs, paper stock, raw matenals and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
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(s} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual prowisions of
the instrument

Financial assets and abibes are imitialty measured at fair value less any directly atinbutable transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at farr value

Financial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet when the Group's contractual nghts to the cash flows expire or the Group transfers
substantially afl the nsks and rewards of the financial asset Finanoial habilibies are derecogmised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

1 Classfication and Measurement
Financial assets and habiiies are classified into the followang categones specified by IAS 38 Fnancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement

+ Loans and receivables - trade receivables, loans and cother receivables with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment Interest income 1s recogrused by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recogmtion of interest would be iImmatenal

+ Avallable for sale financial assets - isted and unhsted shares stated at fair value that are either traded in an active market or for which a farr
value can otherwise be reliably measured Gans and losses ansing from changes in farr value are recognised in other comprehensive iIncome
with the exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, which are recognised directly in the )ncome statement

* Held to matunty investments - the Group does not currently camy any financial instruments classified as held to maturity Such instruments might
include bills of exchange and debentures with fixed or determnable payments and fixed matunty dates and would be measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment

»  Financial assets/Mliabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - assets and habilites which are held for trading An asset or hability 1s
classified as held for trading if (1} it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or () on inibial
recognition it 1s a part of a portfolio of entified financial Instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking, or (m) it 1s a denvative that 15 not designated and effective as a hedging instrument Financial assets and llabiites at FVTPL
are stated at far value, with any gains and losses ansing on remeasurement recognised in the income statement

+ Other financial habilities - financial habilities, including trade payables and borrowings, which are not classified as financial labilities at FVTPL
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis

u  Effectve interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and of allocating tnterest income
or expense over the relevant pencd The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life
of the instrument to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

w  Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are
impaired where there 15 objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected

For certain categones of financial assets, such as trade recewables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired indmdually are, in addition,
assessed for imparrment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment of a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
expenence of collecting payments or an increase in the number of delayed payments

The carrying amount of a financial asset 1s reduced by any impairment loss directly for ali financial assets except trade receivables, where the
carmying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade receivable 1s considered uncollectible, it 1s wniten off against the
allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account Changes in the camying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss

v Denvative financral instruments

The Group enters into & vanety of denvative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange nsk, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps

Denvatives are inthally recognised at fair value at the date a denvative contract s entered into and are subsequently remeasured o their fair value at
each subsequent balance sheet date Changes in far value are recognised immediately in the income statement, excepl where a denvative 1$
designated in an effective hedging relationship, as descnbed below

A denvative with a positive fair value 1s recognised as a financial asset whereas a denvative with a negative far value 1s recognised as a financial
habiity Denvatives are presented as non-current assets or iabilities if the date of maturity of the instrument 1s more than twelve months after the
balance sheet date Other dernvatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities
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(s) Financial instruments {continued)
v  Embedded Denvatives

Denvatives which are embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their nsks and
charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contracts, and the host contracts are not camed at fair value Embedded denvatives are
camed on the balance sheet al fair value from inception of the host contract Unrealised changes in farr value are recognised as gains or losses wathin
the income statement dunng the pencd in which they anse

Vi Hedge accounting

The Group designates cerlain denvatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
along with the nsk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions Where the hedge 15 deemed to have been
effective, the effective portion of any changes in the fair value the denvatives that are designated in the hedge are recogrnised in other comprehensive
income Any ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

Amounts previously recogrised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the penods in
which the hedged items are recogrised in the income statement, in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged tem However,
when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recogrition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial hability, the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financ:al asset or non-
financtal hability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or1s sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when the relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income upon
discontinuation of hedge accounting Is either recognised in the income statement at the same time as the forecast transaction affects profit or loss, or
18 recogrised in the income staternent mmediately if the forecast transaction i1s no longer expected o occur

{tt Provisions

A provision 1s recogrised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive cbhigation ansing from past events and it 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Prowisions, other than those for deferred tax, that are payable
over a number of years are discounted te net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropnate to the particular provision
concemed

{(u) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease are such that the lessee assumes substantially ali the nsks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised and depreciation is charged accordingly Such assets are intially recognised at their farr value or, If
lower, at the present value of the mimmum lease payments at inception of the lease The corresponding lability to the lessor Is recorded as a finance
lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reductions of the lease abligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liabiity

Lease income or expense ansing from operating leases s recorded in the income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, wath
any associated lease incentives being recorded on a strarght hne basis over the lease term as a reduction in the rental ncome or expense
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{v) Critical accounting estimates and key judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain entical accounting assumptions, and requires management
to exercise Its judgement and to make estimates in the process of applying the Group’s accounting polictes The areas invelving a higher degree of
Judgement or complexty, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financal statements are disclosed below

' Basis of consolidation

Judgement is required in determirung whether certam entities in which the Group has an economic interest should be considered to be subsidianes or
1oint ventures In such circumstances, the Group has assessed s ability to control or influence those entities Control has been assessed with
reference to the ability of the Group to direct, unilaterally, key policies of the entity Where such policies are reserved such that an economic partner
has the power to veto key strategic financial and operating decisions, the entity 18 considered to be a joint venture

n  Camying value of gooawiif

The determination of whether goodwill 1s impasred requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
aliocated The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the nsks specific to the asset and the tme value of money, in order to calculate
present valug Further infformation about assumptions used in determining the carrying value of goodwill can be found in note 13

m Revenue recognrhon

The timing of revenue recognition requires judgement, as does the amount to be recognised This may involve estimating the fair value of
consideration before it 1s received In making these judgements, the Group considers the detalled cntena for the recogrition of revenue set out in
IAS 18 Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of the goods or services to the customer

v Distnbution nghts and programme nghts

The assessment of the appropnate profile over which to recognise the amorhisation of distnbution nghts and programme nghts mvolves a certain
degree of judgement Amortisation 1s charged 1o the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its
eshmated average marketable life

v Farir value of financial instruments

Certain financial instruments are camed on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value reflected in the iIncome statement Fair values
are estimated by reference in part to published pnce quotations and in part by using valuation techriques Further information about fair value
measurements 15 provided in note 35
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2. Segment information

An gperating segment 15 a component of the Group that engages n business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses The
results of all operating segments are reviewed regularly by the BBC Werldwide Board (the 'Board’) which has been identified as the Group's chief
operating decision maker in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The Board considers the business pnmanly from a product and service line perspective Management has determined the reportable segments based
upon reports reviewed by the Board All segments reported meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8 The reportable segments are

- Channels Operates ntemational telewision channels, broadcasting programmes made by both the BBC and other
ndependent prowiders Manages the Global BBC iPlayer wideo-on-demand serce
» Sales & Distnbution Manages the sale and syndication of the Group's content across telewision and video-on-demand
+ Consumer Products Creates and distibutes consumer products, including DVDs, DTO, music and books
* Global Brands Prowvides central management of the Group’s intematicnal brands Manages the Group's magazines, gaming and
live events businesses and its branded websites, including BBC com
Content & Produchon Develops and sells programme content and formats and manages the Group's nghts acquisitions

Segment information as presented 1s consistent with the Group's internal reporting to the Board and has been amended since the previous reporiing
date As explained in note 11, the Group disposed of its Magazines eperations dunng the year, but retained nghts to certain branded titles, which are
now published under contract The results from these ongoing magazines operations are sncluded within the Global Brands operating segment

The operations which together made up the Digital Entertainment segment at the previous reporting date are now included within the Global Brands
segment, with the exception of the Global BBC \Player, which 15 now included in the Channels segment Comparative information i presented in ine
with the revised segmental composiion adopted in the cument year

The Board assesses the performance of reportable segments based on Headiine sales and Headline profit, as defined in note 1 Inter-segment sales
are conducted on an arm's length basis Speaific items, non-trading gains and losses, and net financing costs are not allocated to segments

information regarding the assets and habiities of reportable segments 13 not reported 1o the Board

Bales & Consumes Contant &

Channels Distribution Products Globel Brands Production Ellminations Tatal

2012 £m £m Em &m Em tm Em
Headline sales 3448 2927 2114 146 6 1355 (45 8) 1,085 0
Share of revenue of joint ventures {128 0) {77 (0 2) (117) (2 5) - (150 1)
Reported revenue 216 8 2850 2112 124 9 1330 {45 8) 934 9
Hoadline profit/(loss) 421 723 491 {17 3) 105 (21) 154 8
Specific items (37 3)
QOparating profit 178
Other gains and losses “7
Finance income 07
Finance expense {10 0}
‘Profit bafore tax 1035

Sales & Consumar Contam &

Channets Dixtribution Products  Olobal Brands Production EEminations Tots

2011 £m £m Em £m £m m Em
Headllne sales 3031 2606 2511 144 2 1028 (320) 1,0298
Share of revenue of joint ventures {117 0} (6 0) (2 4) {17 1} (3 6) - (146 1)
"Reported revenus 186 1 254 6 2487 1271 99 2 (320) 8837
Headline profit/{loss) g5 840 512 (12 9) 79 (52) 143 5

Specific tems (44 8}
Operating profit 987
Gain on disposal of Animal Planet 96 4
Other gains and losses 16
Finance income 05
Finance expense (9 2)
Profit before tax 1880
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2. Segment information (continued)
The Group's revenue by destination was as follows
Headline Share of IV Headline Share of IV
sales revanue  Reporisd mysnue sales revanue Reported mvenue
2012 2012 w2 mn 201 2011
£m Em Em tm Em "'L
United Kingdom 387 2 1331 2541 4001 1233 276 8
United States of Amenca 3147 79 3068 2731 85 2646
Australia 926 71 855 850 89 761
Rest of World 2805 20 2885 27186 54 266 2
1,0850 1501 934.9 1,029 8 146 1 8837

The Group's hon-Gurrent assets, other than financtal instruments and deferred tax assets, located in the UK are £200 7m (2011 £188 2m) and
located outside of the UK are £100 8m (2011 £115 9m)

Further analysis of the Group's revenues by product or serace line 15 not prowided as this infermation 1s not routinely reported to the Board

3 Total operating costs

Operating costs from continuing operations compnse the following categones of expense

2012 2011
£m £m
Cost of sales 545 6 5055
Distnbution costs 126 3 114
Admimstration costs 168 8 195 6
Total operating costs 840 8 8125

4. Specific items

Impairment of goodwilil

The Group has separately identified amounts wnitten off goodwill owing to their scale and one-off nature Further information about amounts wntten off
goodwll 15 included i note 13

Share of interest and tax of Joint ventures and associates

The Group views its investments as being a fundamental part of its engoing operations IFRS requires that the Group reports its share of the results of
joint ventures and associates on an after-tax, after-interest basis The interest and tax charges borne by joint ventures and associates have been
added back as a specific item in order to present an operating profit measure which more appropnately represents the way (in which the business s
reviewed and assessed mtermnally

Pension deficit reduction payment

As descnbed in note 33, the Group accounts for contnbutions to the BBC Pension Scheme as if it were a defined contnbution scheme 1n July 2011,
the Group made an additonal cash payment of £4 3m to the BBC in connection with the BBC's deficit reduction plan  As this payment 1s not reflective
of the ongeing service cost of active scheme participants, management believes it 1s appropnate to present this cost as a specific tem The Group
anticipates making similar payments in future periods

Othor specific items
2012 Z011
£m £m
Reorganisation costs 5 4) (0 5)
Amounts wntten off joint ventures and associates (10 -
Transacton fees 0 9) -
7 3) {0 5)

Reorgamsation costs relate to the Group's Lonely Planet business
Amaunts written off joint ventures and associates relate to the Group's interests in Freehand Intemational Pty Ltd and GP Media S A

Transaction fees are in respect of one-off costs associated wath business combinations and other potential investment additions where such costs do
not meet the cntena for capitalisation
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5. Profit for the year
Profit for the year 1s stated after charging/(crediting)
2012 2011
£m Em
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 170 149
Sub-lease rentals received on operating leases {03) (0 3)
Net fereign exchange losses/{gains) 11 (3 5}
Depreaiation on property, plant and equipment {nole 16} 69 90
Impairment of goodwll (note 13} 161 338
Amorhsation of intangible assets
Distnbution nghts (note 14) 872 740
Internally generated software assets 109 80
Other intangible assets 32 42
Programme nghts and other inventones
Cost recogrused as an expense 1169 1152
White downs recognised as an expense 91 61
Employee costs {note 7) 1906 1850
tmpairment loss recogrused on trade receivables 13 15
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (see note 20) (03) 13)

Amortisation of distnbulion nghts 15 recorded wathun cost of sales Amorbsation of other intangible assets, ncluding intemally generated software
assets, 1s recorded within administration costs

6 Auditors’ remuneration

2012 — 2011

£m £m

Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 03 02
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group

___The audu of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 03 Q4

Total audit fees 06 06

Tax senvices 02 03

Cormporate finance services 14 05

Other services 02 03

Total non-audit fees 18 11
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7. Employee costs

The average number of employees dunng the year was as follows Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the segment changes descnbed
nnote 2

2012 2011

Number Number
Channels 545 473
Sales & Distnbution 434 390
Consumer Products 298 384
Global Brands 792 763
Content & Produchon 160 105
Continulng operations 2,229 2115
Employees of discontinued operations 336 574
Total number of employees 2,565 2,689

Within the averages above, 207 {2011 211} pari-tme employees have been included at therr full-time equivalent of 133 (2011 141} {n addition to the
above, the Group employed an average full-time equivalent of 36 (2011 47) persons on a casual basis

The aggregate remuneration recogmsed i the ncome statement in respect of these employees, including casual staff, compnsed

— 2012 PR
£m £m
Salanes and wages 1616 167 8
Social secunty costs 111 105
Other pension costs 179 16 7
1906 1950

In addition to the above, redundancy costs and compensation for loss of office payments totaling £4 4m (2011 £2 3m) were incurred In the year

The remuneration of the Directors dunng the year was as follows

2012 2011
£1000 £000
Emoluments 1,136 1,181
Long-term incentive schemes 357 154
1,493 1,375
The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits have accrued throughout the year under the followang schemes 15 as follows
2012 2011
Number of Number of
Directors Directors
Defined benefit schemes 2 3

Money purchase schemes - -

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are provided i the Report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 36 to 42 Further information regarding the
compensation eamed by key management can be found in note 36

The Group made no contnbutions t¢ money purchase schemes for its Directors in either the current or the comparative year

The remuneration of the highest paid Director during the year was as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Emoluments 619 726
Long-term incentive schemes 279 172
898 898

The emoluments above include £102,000 (2011 £134,000) which vested under the Group's bonus matching scheme In addition to the emoluments
above, the highest paid director invested £107,000 (2011 £138,000) in the Group’s matching scheme which may vest in March 2015 (2011 March
2014)

The accrued pension benefit as at 31 March 2012 of the highest paid Director under the Group's defined benefit scheme was £208,000 (2011
£201,000) per annum The Group contnbuted £nit (2011 £nil) to money purchase schemes on behalf of the highest paid Director dunng the year
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8. Other gains and losses
FLIT] Fo3D)
£m £m
Change in farr value of denvative financial instruments 18 56
Change n fair value of put options over non-controlling interests {note 35) 6 5) {4 0)
47) 16
9 Net financing costs
Continuing Discontinued
operations - operations Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 |
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Other interest receivable 07 05 - 02 07 07
Finance income 07 05 - 02 07 07
Interest payable on loan from parent undertaking 45 33 - - 45 32
Interest payable on bank loans 04 o4 - - 04 04
Interest payable on finance leases - 01 - - - 01 .
Interest payable on denvative financial instruments 50 18 - - 50 18
Other interest payable 01 36 - 05 01 41
Finance expense 100 92 - 05 100 97
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10. Tax
Continuing operations DI inued operations Yotal
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Em £m £m £m Em £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax 153 209 18 39 171 248
Foreign tax 140 111 - - 140 111
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 27) {19) - - {27) (19)
266 301 18 39 28 4 340
Defarred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences 28 (0 4) - 03 28 {on
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 07 02 - - 07 02
Adjustments in respect of prior years 01 01 - - 01 01
36 (0 1) - 03 38 02
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 302 300 18 42 320 342

Reconciliation of tax expense

The total tax charge for the year 1s higher (2011 lower} than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 28%) The tax charge can be
reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2012 2011
Em Em
Profit before tax on continuing operations 1035 188 0
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 26% (2011 28%) /9 526
Effects of
Disallowed expenditure 71 128
Tax exempt disposal of assets held for sale - @77)
Tax differential on wholly-owned overseas earmings 41 06
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures and associates ®1) (72)
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 07 02
Adjustments in respect of previous years (2 5) {(13)
Tax charge for the year 30 2 30 0

Atax credit of £2 7m (2011 E£nul) 1s included in the Income Statement in respect of specific tems (see note 4)
In addition to the amount charged to the iIncome statement, a tax charge of £nil (2011 £nil) has been recognised in other comprehensive Income In
respect of financial instruments treated as cash flow hedges

Factors affecting future tax expense

The UK Government has announced a phased reduction in the main rate of corporation tax in the UK On 1 Apni 2012, the rate was reduced from
26% to 24% Two further annual reductions of 1% are expected to follow In subsequent years, reducing the corporation tax rate to 22% from 1 Apnl
2014 The impact of the future rate reductions will be accounted for In future penods, to the extent that they are enacted at the balance sheet date,
however, it 1s estimated that this will not have a matenai effect on the Group
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10 Taxation (continued)

Deoforred tax

The following are the major deferred tax habilties and assets recognised by the Group, and the movement thereon, dunng the current and prior year

Fixed sssat

temporary Financial
dHT n Cther Total
£m £m Em £m &m
At1 April 2010 {51) 103 3§ 50 137
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 42 {3 6) 7 09 (02)
Foreign exchange transtation gains and losses (39) {11} - {0 9) (59
At 31 March 2011 (4 8} 56 18 50 76
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 01 12 (12) (37 (36)
Disposal of subsidiary 05 {0 3) - - 02
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses {0 1) {0 2) - {01) {0 4)
At 31 March 2012 43 63 08 12 38
Other deferred tax balances predominantty relates to temporary differences ansing on tax losses and intragroup eliminations
Deferred tax s recorded in the batance sheet as follows
2012 2071
£m Em_
Deferred tax assets 94 229
Deferred tax habilities (5 8) {15 3)
Neot deforred tax asset 3s 76

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses camed forward are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits 1s probable The Group has unrecogrised deferred tax assets ansing on capital losses totalling £20 4m (2011 £22 9m) These assets
have not been recognised on the basis that there 1s insufficient certainty that capital gains will anse against which the Group can utilse these losses

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earmings of subsidianes for which deferred
tax habilities have not been recogrised was £ml (2011 £mil) No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group 1s in a
position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and those differences are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future

Temporary differences ansing in connection with the Group's interests in the undistnbuted retained earnings of associates and joint ventures are not
considered to be matenal in ether year
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11 Discontinued operations

On 12 August 2011 the Group entered into a sale agreement to dispose of iis subsidianes BBC Magazines Limited, Bnstol Magazines Limited,
Magazines Services Limited and Genealogy Events Limited, its joint venture Dovetail Services (UK) Holdings Limsted, and its associates Frontiine
Limited and Ongin Publishing Holdings Limited (OPL) On 3 Cctober 2011, the Group entered into a further sale agreement to dispose of s joint
venture Worldwide Media Private Limited These investments collectively formed the Group's Magazines operations

The disposal was effected in pursuit of the group's strategic pnonties The disposal of Worldwide Media Private Limited was completed on 14 October
2011 and the disposal of the remaining investments was completed on 31 October 2011 Consideration for these disposals was received wholly in the
form of cash (see note 28)

In connection with its disposal, the Group also exercised a call option over 61% of the equity of OPL, taking its interest to 100% immediately pnor to
completion of the disposal As the acquisition of OPL was linked to the Group's disposal of its Magazines operations, the acquisiion costs have been
included in the disposal accounting disclosures (note 28)

Continuing operations which previously formed part of the Magazines operating segment are included within the Global Brands operating segment in
note 2 Continuing operations include a hmited number of magazine titles camying the Group's key brands where ownership has been retained The
Group has entered into an agreement wath the buyer under which these tittes wall be published under contract on the Group's behalf

The results of discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as follows

Pariod snded Ywar ended
M Oct 2011 3 March 2011
£m £m
Revenue 76 1234
Total operating costs (64 5) (110 0)
Share of resulls of joint ventures and associates - 01
Operating profit 71 135
Finance income - 02
Finance expense - 05
Profit before tax 71 132
Tax charge for the penod (18} (4 2)
Profit for the period 53 90
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations §50 -
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations 100 3 90

The profit on disposal of discontinued operations was exempt from tax
The net profit attnbutable to discontinued operations 1s wholly attnbutable to owners of the parent company

During the year, the Group's discontinued Magazines operations contnbuted £4 1m (2011 £20 9m) to the Group's net operating cash flows,
contributed £110 2m to (2011 paid £3 5m in respect of) Investing actvities and paid £nd (2011 £0 2m) in respect of financing actvities

12 Dividends

7012 2011
£1000 £'000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period
Intenm dmwidends for the year ended 31 March 2011 of £140 16 per share (2011 £166 0C per share) 351 415
Intenm dwvidends for the year ended 31 March 2012 of £419 26 per share (2011 £167 60 per share) 104 8 419
1399 834

Amounts not yet recognised as distributions

Intenm dividend declared but not yet paid for the year ended 31 March 2012 of £21 20 per share (2011 £138 00 per share) 53 345
Intenm dividend proposed but not yet declared for the year ended 31 March 2012 of £3 60 per share (2011 £n(}) 09 -
62 345
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13. Goodwill
2012 2011
Em £m
Cost
At beginning of the year 1250 1203
Additions - 01
Disposals 51) -
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 64 46
126 3 1250
Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning of the year 502 175
Impairments 161 338
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 18 (11}
€81 502
Carrying amount 58 2 748
Classified as held for sale (note 22} - 51)
Goodwill per balance shest 58 2 697
Goodwll, allocated by cash generating umit (CGU), 1s analysed as follows
2012 2011
£m £m
Lonely Planet 226 345
Consumer distnbution 254 253
Australian Channels 102 g9
58 2 697

The Group tests goodwill for impairment in the accounting period in which a business combination takes place, thereafter annually, or more frequently
If there are indications that goodwill might be imparred

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions used for these calculations are those
regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the nsks specific to each CGU

Lonely Planet

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of Lonely Planet on 1 October 2007 Following the impairment review performed dunng
the year 10 31 March 2012, the carrying value of this CGU has been wntten down to its recoverable amount, resulting in a charge to the income
statement of £16 1m

Despite sold underiying performance, the Australian dollar has continued to strengthen, proving chaflenging for the Lonely Planet business, which
incurs the majonty of its costs in its home of Australia, but earns the majonty of its revenue streams 1n sterfling, euros and US dollars Had foreign
exchange rates at the date of the Group's impairment tests remained unchanged since the pnor year, no impairment would have been recorded in
respect of the Lonely Planet business

Dunng the year, the Group began to implement changes to the Lonely Planet business which management believes will help to secure its long-term
viability and reduce the tmpact of further currency appreciation This Includes reducing the Australian cost base, relocation of its Digital business from
Australia to the UK and exploitation of the Lonely Planet brand through online travel bocking serices

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding growth rates, foreign exchange rates and discount rates

The future cash flows used by management in determining the value in use are based on the most recent financial plan approved by management
and cover a penod of 10 years from the balance sheet date This penod reflects the transiicn of the business away from its more mature pnnt
activities towards mobile and online content, including travel booking services, where growth assumptions are linked to web traffic and conversion
rales Beyond this penod, forecast cash flows have been extrapolated based on an estimated growth rate of 3% (2011 3%) This growth rate does not
exceed the average long-lerm growth rate for the markets in which the Lonely Planet business operates

Forecast foreign exchange rates have been based on spot rates at the date of imparment testing Any appreciation or devaluation of the Austrahian
dollar dunng the forecast penod would result In a corresponding reduction or Increase in the value in use, respectively

The rate used to discount forecast cash flows 1s 13 0% {2011 13 4%)
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Consumoer distribution business

The goodwall in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisihon of 2 enlertain on 6 August 2009 The cash flow projections used in deterrmining value in
use are based on the current business plan approved by management, which covers a five year penod after which cash flows have been extrapolated
using an expected growth rate of 2% (2011 2%}

A discount rate of 11 4% (2011 12 4%) has been applied to the cash flows

Management are of the wiew that any reasonably possible change in key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount

Australian Channels business

The goodwill In this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of UK TV on 1 July 2008 Cash flow projections used in the recoverable amount
calculation are based on financial budgets approved by management covering a penod of five years (2011 seven years) and a discount rate of 12 6%
(2011 13 8%) Cash flows beyond the forecast penod have been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of 1% (2011 1%) The terminal growth
rate assumes contractual rates remaining in place and a modest growth of subscnbers as per external sources Cash flow projections are consistent
with the business acquistion plans and those used in the previous year

The main assumpbon on which the forecast cash flows are based 1s icense fee rates [n forming its assumptions about license fee rates, the Group
has used a combination of long term trends and recent contracted terms

Management believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the value in use of UK TV 1s based would not result in any
imparrment

UK Magazines business

0On 31 October 2011, the Group disposed of its Magazines operations (see note 28) Assets associated with the Magazines operations, including
goodwill, were classified as held for sale at 31 March 2011 (see note 22)

14 Dustribution rights

2012 2011
£m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2750 2468
Additions 986 92 9
Disposals 22 -
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses (35) (34)
Fully amortised nghts written off (41 0) (57 3)
3309 2790
Amortisation
At 1 Apn 154 1 1406
Charge for the year 872 740
Disposals (08 -
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses (36) (3 2)
Fully amortised nghts wntten off {41 0) (57 3)
196 1 154 1
Net book valug 1348 124 9
Classified as held for sale {note 22) (2 0) 09)
‘Distribution rights par balance sheet 1328 1240

Included within distnbution nghts 1s self-funded content in the course of production totalling £1 2m (2011 £3 5m)

Where content in the course of production 1s funded by a commissioning broadcaster or co-production partner, this 1s now separately presented as
programmes in the course of production within current assets Management believes the rewised presentation more faithfully represents the
substance of these transactions Comparative information has been restated accordingly, reducing the previcusly reported additions figure by £8 1m
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15 Other intangible assets
Carrler
Masthead  Agroements v Other Tota
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 328 107 401 51 887
Additions - - 1813 - 183
Disposals - - {0 6) (09 (15)
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 02 - 04 02 04
330 107 574 40 106 4
Amortisation
Al 1 Apnl 58 14 36 29 417
Charge for the year 17 07 101 16 141
Disposals - - (0 1) {09) (10}
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses (0 1) 01 (0 4) {0 1) (0 5)
74 22 412 35 543
Net book value 258 85 162 05 508
Carrler
Masthead  Agreements Software Other Total
2011 Em £m £m £m Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl a7 85 293 48 733
Additions - 16 95 - 111
Foreign exchange trans!ation gains and losses 21 06 13 03 43
328 107 401 51 887
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 39 09 213 19 280
Charge for the year 15 05 94 08 122
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 04 - 09 02 15
58 14 e 29 47
Net book value 270 93 85§ 22 470
Classified as held for sale (note 22) - - {15) - (15
Other Intangible assets per balance shoot 270 93 70 22 455

Cther assets compnse advertising relationships, non-compete agreements and software assets under construction

Of total software additions recogrised dunng the penod, £17 4m (2011 £9 3m) related to tnterally developed software
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16. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold leasehold Plant and Fixtures Assets under
buildings bulldings machinery and fittings  construction Total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl g2 139 400 140 14 695
Additions - 11 34 15 - 60
Disposals - {2 6} (6 6) 12) - (10 4)
Foreign exchange transiation gains and losses - - € 2) 0 3) - (0 5)
02 124 366 140 14 646
Depreciation
At 1 April - 59 247 93 - 399
Charge for the year - 16 33 20 - 69
Disposals - {2 6} (4 6) 12) - &4)
Foreign exchange transtation gains and losses - . 1) (CR)) - 02
- 49 2323 100 - 382
Neot book value 02 75 133 40 14 264
Freehold ieasehold Plant and Fixtures Assets under
buildings buildings machinery and fittings  construction Total
2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 02 121 328 115 11 577
Additions - 19 71 21 03 114
Disposals - - (0 3) - - 03
Foreign exchange translation gamns and losses - {01) 04 04 - 07
02 139 400 140 14 695
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl - 45 194 69 - 308
Charge for the year - 15 54 21 - g
Disposals - - {03 - - 03
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses - {0 1) 02 03 - 04
- 59 247 93 - 399
Net book value 02 80 163 47 14 296
Classified as held for sale {note 22) - - (12) - - {12)
Net book value 02 80 141 47 14 284

At 31 March 2012, the Group had contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totalling £1 0m (2011 £mil)
Tangible fixed assets include the following assets held under finance leases

Plartt and Fhcures Plant and Fixtures
machinery and fittings Total machinery and Mtings Total
012 o2 12 ni 2011 w1
Em £m £m £m £m Em
Cost 16 - 16 19 - 19
Accumulated deprecration {10) - (10 {10) - {10
06 - 06 09 - 09

Assets held under finance lease are denominated in Australian dollars Interest rates are fixed at the contract date All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments
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17. Interests in joint ventures and associates

A hst of the Group's significant interests in joint ventures and assoctates, including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership
interest is given in note e to the Company financial statements

The movement in joint ventures and associates dunng the year was as follows

Joint ventures Associates Total Joint ventures Assoclates Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m Em
At 1 Apnl 158 150 308 309 188 497
Additions - 18 18 16 21 37
Disposals 50) (11) 6 1) - (72) {7 2)
Share of results 221 10 231 257 19 278
Adjustment to prowsion for unreahised profits oH 04 03 {0 4) 01 03
Dividends received” {18 0) on {(187) (37 5) (0 5} (38 0)
Amounts repaid by related parties - - - (22) - 22)
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses o1 09 08 03 o1 (¢ 4)
Amounts wniten off {©7) 03 (10 20 1) (2 1)
At 31 March 14.0 170 310 158 150 308

* Dividends received in the year ended 31 March 2011 exclude £5 8m of dwvidends recewved from joint ventures classified as held for sale

Jomnt ventures and associates are recorded in the balance sheet as follows

Joint ventures Assoclates Total Joint veniures Assoclates Total

2012 2012 2012 201 2011 2011

£m £m £m Em_ £m Em
Interests in joint ventures and associates 19 170 289 193 147 340
Non-cumrent assets held for sale (note 22) 99 - 99 58 03 61

Provisions {note 23) {78 - {7 8) {9 3) - {9 3)
140 170 310 158 150 308

Interests in joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures in the current and previous years included the following matenat operahons
UKTV

BBC Worldwide has a major parinership deal with Scripps Networks Interactive for the production and marketing of subscnption channels in the UK
The partnership operates under the name UKTV through a number of discrete joint venture entities, each of which has been accounted for separately

Certain UKTV jont venture entities have net habilities {n these cases, the Group has no shareholder or other obligation to fund iesses incurred by
these entities or to make good thewr net habilities For these equity accounted jont ventures the Group only accounts for its share of any operating
profits or equity onge an individual venture attains a positive equity position No share of losses 1s included in the financial statements until this point

Notwithstanding the above, the group headed by UK Gold Holdings Limited (UKGH) has been cumulatively profitable each year since its formation in
1997 but has net habilities The net liabiities are not a result of trading losses but have ansen entirely from acquisition goodwll wntten off to reserves
in 1997 under UK GAAP Such business combinations prnor to 1 Apnl 2007 were not restated by BBCW on transition to IFRS Equity accounting 1s
applied to UKGH as the Directors consider this to be consistent wath the Group's long term, constructive commitment to this venture as a result of its
programme content and licenstng contractual arrangements The Group's share of the net habilities of UKGH are recorded within provisions (see
note 23)

Worldwide Medla Private Limited

In December 2004, BBC Worldwide completed the acquisition of a 50% equity interest in Worldwide Media Private Limited, a magazine publishing
joint venture based in India In the year ended 31 March 2011, following a revised assessment of recoverable amount, the Group wrote down its
interest in Worldwide Media Pnvate Limited The joint venture was classified as held for sale at 31 March 2011

In October 2011, the Group disposed of its interest in Worldwide Media Private Limited (see notes 11 and 28)
Ragdoll Worldwide Limited

In April 2008, BBC Worldwide entered into an agreement wath Ragdoll Limited to form a joint venture The purpese of the jomt venture Is to exploit and
manage existing Children’s intellectual properties and to mvest in the development of new intellectual property nghis

in May 2011, the Board resolved to dispose of the Group's tterest in the joint venture  The jomnt venture s classified as held for sale at the balance
sheet date (see note 22)
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17 Interests in joint ventures and associates (continued)

The following represents the Group's aggregate share of joint ventures, including those that were held for sate dunng the year

2012

2011

£m £m
Non-current assets 137 191
Current assets 1011 931
Current liabilihes (58 7) (57 1)
Non-current habilities (55 2} (59 3)
Shareholders’ equity 09 {4 2)
Share of net habiliies not recogrised 180 196
Group's sharo of net assets of joint ventures 189 154
Revenue 159 3 1591
Expense {126 8) (122 8
Taxation (8 6) (9 6)
Share of profit from joint ventures 239 271
Share of results not recognised {18) (14)
Share of profit from joint ventures recognised in income statement 221 257
Interests in associates
Representing a 100% share of each associate

7012 2011

£m £m
Total assets Yals 1168
Total liabilities 63 1) 214
Not assots/(liabilitios) 86 (4 6)
Group's share of net assets 45 38
Revenue 1408 96 8
Result for the year 57 32
Group's share of results of assoclates 10 19

The Group has board representation and participates in policy-making decisions affecting Educational Publishers LLP, Woodlands Books Limited and
Audio London Limted The Group has concluded that it exerts significant influence over these businesses despite holding cnly 15% of the voting

power Accordingly, the Group has classified its interests in these entities as associates

18. Investments

2012

2011

£m £m
Available-for-sale Investments carried at fair value
Unquoted equities 06 -
Loans recelvable carrled at amortised cost
Loans to refated parties 28 25
Loans to other entities 10 .
38 25
Total investments 44 25

Loans to related parties were previously presented within non-current recevables Comparative balances have been re-presented where necessary
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19 Programme rights and other inventories
— 2012 2011
£m £m
Programme nghts for broadcast 580 372
Programmes n the course of production 53 81
Raw matenals and consumables 48 56
Work in progress 73 93
Finished goods and goods for resale 204 233
104 8 835

within finished goods and goods for resale 1s inventory of £3 1m (2011 £4 1m), relating to Lonely Planet, which i1s expected to be sold more than

12 months after the balance sheet date in accordance with the entity's normal operating cycle

Programmes n the course of production were previously included within Distribution nghts, as descnbed in nole 14 Comparative information has

been restated where appropnate

20. Trade and other receivables

7012 2617
£m £m
Current

Trade receivables 1805 189 3
Prepayments 377 288
Accrued income 366 196
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings 48 69
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates (note 36) 276 323
Other receivables 93 89
296 5 2858

The net cammying amount of trade and other receivables is approximatety equal to therr farr value

Included In the Group’s trade and other recervables at 31 March 2012, are balances of £32 0m (2011 £21 4m) which are past due at the reporting
date but not impaired because the Group expects to recover these balances in full and has hustoncal analysis to support the recovery profile The

aged analysis of these balances 15 as follows

2012 2019

£m £Em
Up to 3 months 265 145
3 to 6 months 42 42
Over 6 months 13 27
320 214

In determiring the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the credit quaity of the trade receivable from the date credit
was Inhally granted up to the reporting date Trade receivables are provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by reference
to past default expenence of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty’s financial situation The concentration of credit nsk 1s hmited due to

the customer base betng large and unrelated (See note 35)

There are no significant impairment prowisions relating to an individual debtor Amounts charged to the impairment provision are wntten off when there
1s no expectation of recovery Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are credited to the Income Statement The impairment

provision stands at £2 9m at 31 March 2012 (2011 £2 7m)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debis is sel out below

2012 2011
£m Em
Balance at the begmning of the penod 27 63
imparment losses recognised 13 15
Amounts wntten off as uncollectible (0 8) (37
Imparrment losses reversed (0 3) {(13)
Foreign exchange translaticn gains and losses - (0 1)
29 27
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21 Trade and other payables
2012 2011
£m £m
Current
Trade payables 506 378
Rights creditors 96 3 865
Accruals 45 4 475
Deferred income 607 831
Amounts owed to ulbmate parent underiaking 459 3514
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings 19 19
Amounts owed to Jjoint ventures and associates (note 36) 75 161
QOther payables including other tax and social secunty 56 7 55 1
3720 363 4
Non-current
Accruals 30 24
Other payables including other tax and social secunty - 75
3o 99
3750 3733

Rights creditors compnise royalty payments owing to contnbutors to telewision programmes, DVDs and other media Other payables include £14 Om

{2011 £7 5m) relating to put options over non-controlling interests (see note 35)

The carrying amount of trade and other payables 1s equal to the far vaiue

22 Assets held for sale

The major classes of assets and habilites compnsing the operations classified as held for sale are as follows In the current year, these relate to the
Group's Investment in the Ragdoll joint venture (see note 17) In the prior year, these related to Magazines operations (see notes 11 and 28)

2012 2011

£m_ £m
Goodwll - 51
Dristrbution rights 20 09
Other intangible assets - 15
Investments in joint ventures and associates g9 61
Property, plant and equipment - 12
Programme nghts and other inventones - 14
Trade and cther receivables - 28 2
Total assets classified as held for sale 19 44 4
Trade and cther payables - (36 5)
Total liabilitles associated with assets classifiad as held for sale - {36 5)
Not assets of disposal groups 19 79

The fair value of the disposal group held for sale less costs to sell 1s expected to exceed the corresponding asset carrying values Accordingly, no loss

has been recognised as a result of classifying these assets as held for sale at 31 March 2012
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23 Provisions
Share of Joimt
Property venture
related labliities Litigation Other Total
Em £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2011 18 93 48 27 186
Additional provision in the year 01 - - 16 17
Utiisation of provision - - 43 (14 G
Unwndtng of discount 01 - - - 01
Released to the income statement {0 3) (15) (0 5) {02) (2 5)
At 31 March 2012 17 78 - 27 122

Prowisions in respect of the Group's share of joint venture liabilities are further discussed tn note 17
to the Group's share of joint venture profits for the year

Other provisions prmarily compnse recrganisation provisions

Prowisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows

Amounts released to the Income statement relate

2012 2011
_tm £m
Current 25 72
Non-current g7 114
122 186
24. Interest bearing loans and borrowings
The Group's prnincipal sources of funding and the currencies in which funding 18 denorminated are summansed as follows
Australisn Austraian
Sterling dollars Tota) Sterling doflars Total
2012 2012 012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Unsecured borrowing at amortised cost
Loans from related parttes - B4 9 649 - 645 64 5
Bank loans 300 - 300 500 - 50 0
00 64 9 949 50 0 645 1145
Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Obhgations under finance leases (see note 32) - 06 06 - 09 09
300 655 955 500 654 1154
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement wathin 12 months 300 05 305 200 01 201
Amount due for settlement after 12 months - 650 650 300 653 953
300 655 955 500 654 1154

The Group has two pnncipal loan facilities

(Y A mulb-currency loan faciity of £210 Om (2011 £168 Om} with BBC Commercial Holdings Limited (BBCCH), of which £50 Om 1s avatlable only on
condrition that an eguivalent cash balance 1s maintained The loan facility expires on 31 July 2013 and attracts interest based on interbank rates
plus a margin of 1 00% Interbank rates are based on the penod of the loan and are based on LIBOR for the relevant currency except for EUR

and AUD drawdowns which are based on EURIBOR and BBSW, respectively

{1y AEL£300m (2011 £50 Om) term loan with the European Investment Bank (EIB) which expired in May 2012 Interest on the loan 1s accrued based

on LIBOR plus a margm of { 09%

The amount available under the Group's facility with BBCCH is due to increase to £240 Om on expiratton of the EIB term loan
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25. Derivative financial instruments

Non-current Current Non-turrent
assets Current assets liabilities fiabilities Total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Darivatives that aro designated in effective hodges
Forward foreign currency contracts 09 20 {0 9) (04) 16
Daorivatives that are held for trading
Forward foreign currency contracts 02 06 (0 8) 02 {02
Interest rate swaps - - 01 @3 {32
Embedded dervatives 01 - - (0 8) (07}
03 08 {09) {41) 41)
12 26 {18) 45 25
Non-cument Currerd  Non-cument
assets Current assets liabilities labilitles Total
2011 £m £m £m £m £m
Derlvatives that are designated In effective hedges
Forward foreign cummency contracts 08 24 10 (10 12
Derivatives that are held for trading
Forward foreign currency contracts 01 11 (30 - {18}
Interest rate swaps - - (0 B) {(31) (37
Interest rate caps - - (03) - 03}
Embedded denvatives 01 - (0 1) (0 1) {0 1)
02 11 40 32 {59)
10 a5 (50) 42 @n

Farr value movements on denvative financial instruments that are held for trading are recerded through the income statement within other gains and

losses

The total notional pnncipal amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2012 was £239 5m (2011 £274 9m} The
hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at vanous dates in the future

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting for trades taken out in respect of its forecast foreign currency transactions Hedge accounting 1s only
applied where appropnate designation and documentation, and trades with parties external to the Group exist Net gains and losses (after tax and non-

controlling interests) recognised in the hedging reserve on forward foreign exchange contracts in cash flow hedge relationships at 31 March 2012

were £0 4m (2011 £0 3m) These amounts will be recogrused in the income statement in the pencd when the hedged forecast transaction affects the

income statement, at vanous dates over the next twelve months

The notional pnnaipal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 March 2012 were £99 5m (2011 £144 5m) All outstanding

Interest rate swaps mature by Apnl 2014

The Group has reviewed contracts for embedded denvatives that are required to be separated from their host contracts Embedded denvatives are

recognised at their far value with subsequent changes to fair value recorded in the income statement

26. Called up share capital

£m £m
Authorised
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 10 10
Issued, alloted, called up and fully paid
250,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class cof ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
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27 Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve I1s used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the farr value of cash flow hedging mstruments related to
hedged transactions that have not yet ocurred (net of tax)

Translation reserve

Since 1 April 2008, £2 1m of exchange losses on foreign currency borrowings have been offset in reserves against exchange gains on the related
investment in overseas subsidiaries The net investment hedge was discontinued from Seplember 2008 following the settlement of the associated
foreign curency borrowings

Retained earnings

At 31 March 2012, the cumulative goodwll written off to reserves on acquisitions pnor to 1 Apnl 1998 amounted to £14 2m This amount 1s unchanged
on prior year and remained in equity upon transition to IFRS as pemitted by IFRS1

28 Disposals

As descnbed in note 11, in Qctober 2011 the Group completed its disposal of a number of subsidianes and investments which, collectively, made up
its Magazines operations The Group had classified these investments as assets held for sale as at 31 March 2011 and has not therefore equity
accounted for joint ventures and associates included wathin the disposal group dunng the year to 31 March 2012 As a result of the cessation of equity
accounting, the Group's share of the resuits of these joint ventures and associates is included in the gain on disposal

The net assets of the Magazines operations at the date of disposal and at 31 March 2011 were

Oct March
2011 2011
£m £m
Distnbution rights 16 0%
Other intangible assets 05 15
Investments In joint ventures and associales 61 61
Property, plant and equipment 20 12
Programme rights and other inventones 18 14
Trade and other receivables 230 282
Trade and other payables (30 3) (36 5)
Current tax habilities (0 8} -
Deferred tax hability (02) -
Attnbutable goodwill . 51 51

80 79

Transachon costs 21

Exercise of option over joint venture (see note 11) 46

Separation costs 11

Cumulative currency translation gain 07
Gain on disposal 850
Total consideration 1111

Satisfied by

Cash and cash equivalents 1111

Net cash inflow arising on disposal 1111

The net sale proceeds of £111 1m consisted of gross proceeds of £121 Om less working capital adjustments of £9 9m
In the year ended 31 March 2011, the following disposals took place

The Group disposed of its interest in BBC Audiobooks Limited on 13 July 2010 to Audio London Limited for cash consideration of £14 0m resulting in
a gan on disposal of £2 0m Consideration was received in the form of cash of £11 6m, deferred consideration of £0 3m and 15% of the ordinary
share capial of Audio London Limited Cash disposed of amounted to £2 1m giving nse to a net cash inflow of £9 5m

The Group disposed of its 50% miterests in Animal Planet Europe and People & Arts on 12 November 2010 to its joint venture partner, Discovery
Communications Cash consideration of £97 9m was receved, giving nse to a gamn on disposal of £96 4m

76




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

29. Notes to the cash flow statement

2012 2011
£m £m
Operating profit
Continuing operations 1175 987
Discontinued operations 71 135
1246 1122
Adustments for
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (23 4) (27 6)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary - (2 0)
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 69 90
Impairment of goodwll 161 338
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 1013 862
Impairment of investments 10 21
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 13 15
Reversal of impairment losses recogmised on trade recervables (0 3) (13)
(Decrease)/increase In provisions 49 68
Cash flows before movements in working capital 222¢ 2207
Increase in trade and other recevables (76) (77 5)
Increase in programme nghts and other inventones (24 2) (12 6)
{Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables (12 9) 55 4
Cash generated from operations 177 ¢ 186 0
Cash generated from operations includes cash flows ansing on discontinued operations (see note 11}
30 Commitments and contingent liabilities
2012 2011
Em £m
Capital commitments
Distnbution rights 46 5 48 6
Property, plant and equipment 10 -
Intangible assels 03 09
478 495
Other financial commitments
Programme nghts for broadcast 167 81 !
Qther commitments 294 419
461 500
Total unrecognised commitments 939 985

In addition to the above, the Group’s share of commitments for programme acquisitions and other commitments in respect of its UKTV joint venture
amount to £38 6m and £48 6m, respectively (2011 £15 6m and £48 Om, respechively)

The Group has a number of contingent habilittes anising from iligation as a result of activities undertaken tn its ordinary course of business BBC
Worldwide makes specific provision for the best estmate of any damages and costs which might be awarded Prowision i1s only made to the extent
that the Directors consider it probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits and the amount can be reliably estimated

The Group and some of its fellow BBC Commercial Holdings subsidianes have given guarantees tn relation to the BBC Commercgial Holdings Limited
revolving credit facility agreement At 31 March 2012, total amounts drawn down by the BBC Commercial Holdings Group under this facility were
£169 9m (2011 £190 1m)

The Group occasionally enters into contracts with other equity shareholders of its joint ventures and associates to purchase additionat equity In some
cases, these contracts place an obligation on the Group to acquire further shares at the option of the counterparty to the contract The Group has not
recorded a hability in respect of these contracts as the amounts payable in the event of exercise are based on a proxy for the market value of those
shares Amounts payable under such confracts are not expected to be matenal to the Group as a whole
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31. Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows

2012 2011

£m £m
Within one year 158 123
In the second to fifth years inclusive 282 359
After five years 100 258
540 740

The majonty of operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its properties The rent payable under leases I1s subject
to renegotiation at the vanous intervals specified in the leases

32. Obligations under finance leases

The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

Minkmitn lease Present value of

payrmants ise payments

212 211 n12 2011

£m £m £€m £m

Amounts payable under finance leases

Within one year 04 01 04 01
In the second to fifth years inclusive 02 09 02 08
06 10 06 09

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations is equal to their carrying amount
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33 Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension schemes The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds Pension costs, representing contnbutions payable by the Group dunng the year, were £4 5m (2011 £3 5m}

Many BBC Wordwde employees are members of the BBC Group’s pension schemes These compnse the BBC Pension Scheme (a defined benefit
scheme which 18 now closed to new members), a small unfunded plan (the unfunded scheme, which s also closed to new members) and defined
contribution schemes (Lifeplan and the Group Personal Pension Scheme)

The BBC Pension Scheme provides benefits on a defined benefit basis funded from assets held in separate trustee-administered funds There are
four sectrons to the BBC Pension Scheme Old Benefits and New Benefits, which both prowvide benefits based on final salary (subject to diffening
inflation caps), Career Average Benefits 2006 (CAB 2006) and Career Average Benefits 2011 (CAB 2011) All sections are now closed to new
entrants

The pension scheme trustees manage the plan in the short, medium and long term  They make funding decisions based on valuations which take a
longer-term view of the assets required to fund the scheme’s habiibies

BBC Worldwde, following the provisions within IAS 19 Employee Benefits for accounting in respect of group schemes, accounts for its partricipation in
the scheme as o it were a defined contnbution scheme This I1s because there 1 no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined
benefit cost to scheme participants The pension cost for this scheme therefore represents contnbutions payable by the Group to the scheme and the
costs amounted to £13 4min the year (2011 £13 2m) No contnbutions were prepaid or accrued at 31 March 2012 (2011 £nil)

The following habilities in respect of retirement benefits have been recorded in the financial statements of the BBC

2012 2011

£m £m

BBC Pension Scheme 1,1720 920 5
Unfunded Scheme 66 63
1,178 6 926 8

The actuanal valuatien for the BBC Penston Scheme was updated for IAS 19 purposes to 31 March 2012 by Towers Watson, consulting actuanes
Additional disclosure about the scheme and its financial position under IAS 19 is presented below

Scheme financial position

7012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m

Scheme assets” 9,198 5 88358 8,154 8 6,454 0 8,042 0
Scheme liabllities (10,370 5) (9,756 3;) {9,795 7) (6,592 6) (7,513 6)
Nat deficit {1,172 0) (920 5) (1,640 9) {138 6) 528 4

* excluding funds relating to addiional voluntary contrnbutions (AVCs)

Reconctitiation of plan liabllities

The table below illustrates the movement in plan habilittes dunng the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year of
pension benefits eamed (and employee contnbutions made), interest charged on existing habilities, any gains or losses relating 1o participants leaving
the pension scheme, changes in assumptions made and benefits paid out dunng the year

2012 2011
Em £m
At 1 Apnl 9,756 3 89,7957
Current service cost 1600 192 8
Past service cost 48 193
Gains on curtallments {45 0} {250 4)
Interest on pension plan habilities 5272 5298
Expenence lossses/{gains) ansing on plan labilities 1133 (717
Changes in assumptions undertying plan hiabilities 1893 (138 9)
Contnbutions by plan participants 18 71
Benefits and expenses paid (337 2) {327 2)
At 31 March 10,370 5 9,756 3
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33 Retirement benefits {continued)

Reconclliation of plan assets

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan assets dunng the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year of
contnbutions made, changes in the value of the pension plan assets (including the investment retum) and benefits paid dunng the year

Employee contnbutions to the scheme are paid va a salary sacrfice arrangement and have therefore been treated as employer contnbutons

2012 2011

£m £m

Al 1 Apn) 8.8358 8,154 8
Expected rate of retum on plan assets 6433 6034
Actuanal {losses)/gains on plan assets (157 8) 931
Coninbutions by employer 2126 3046
Contnbutions by plan participants 18 71

Benefils and expenses paid {337 2) (327 2)
At 31 March 9,198 5 88358

The allocation of assets by the Trustees 1s governed by a need to manage risk against the desire for hugh retums and any hquidity needs A high
percentage of assets are held in equities which the Trustees expect will produce higher retumns in the long term  The target allocation, based on
market values, for equities 1s 42 5%, pnvate markets 16 0%, absolute return 8 5%, return seeking bonds 13 0% and liability matching bonds 20 0%
Further information about the Scheme Is available at hitp //www bbc co uk/mypension/

7012 2012 2011 201

_Em % £m %
Equities 41005 44 6% 447908 50 7%
Bonds 23693 25 8% 1,938 4 219%
Property 11,0771 11 7% 10798 12 2%
Alternatives 1,4938 16 2% 1324 4 15 0%
Cash 157 8 17% 134 02%
At 31 March 91985 100 0% 8,8358 100 0%

The actual retum on scheme assets (being realtsed gains from the receipt of Investment income such as dvidends and rent, transactions where
assels are sold and unrealised fair value changes) in the year to 31 March 2012 was £486 Om (2011 £687 Om)

Funding the Schome

The 2010 actuanal valuabion by Towers Watson of the pension scheme showed a funding shortfall of £1,131m Consequently a recovery plan was
agreed between the BBC and the pension scheme Trustees whereby additional contnbutions totalling £905m wall be paid by the BBC over a penod of
11 years commencing in 2011

As descnbed in note 4, addittonal contnbutions of £4 3m paid by the Group to the BBC in July 2011 have been presented outside Headline profit The
Group anticipates making similar payments in future penods

The next formal actuanal valuation 1s expected to be performed as at 1 Apnl 2013

Projected
2013 2092 2011 2010¢ 2009"
% % % % %
Employer™* 145 145/155 182 189 191187
Employee (Old and New Benefits) 75 75 75 68 60
Employee {CAB 2006) 40 40 40 40 40
Employee (CAB 2011) 60 60 - - -

Comparative figures have been restated to include the BBC's share of additonal voluntary contnbutions
includes an alfowance for BBC AVC matching contnbutions of 0 1%/ 3% (2011 0 3%) but excludes the cost effectively pand for by the
employee and the salary sacnifice elfement

-

On the basis assumed above, the BBC expects 10 make contributions to the scheme totalling £136 8m in the year to 31 March 2013
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33 Retirement benefits (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

The calculabon of the scheme fiabiliies and pension charges, for IAS 19 purposes, requires a number of assumptiens, both financial and
demographic, to be made

The pnncipal financial assumptions used by the actuanes, at the balance sheet date were

2012 011
% %
Rate of increase in salanes 10 10
Rate of increase in pension payments
Old Benefits 35 37
New Benefits 33 35
CAB 2006 24 24
CAB 2011 24 27
Inflation assumption - Retall Prices Index (RPI} 35 37
Inflation assumption - Consumer Pnces Index (CP1) 25 29
Discount rate 52 §5
Expected take up rate” - 400

*  Assumphons required it the previous financial year to reflect the proportion of members that were assumed to transfer into erther the CAB 2011
or defined contnbution plans following the changes made o the pension plans As members have transferred dunng 2011/12, no assumption is
required in the curren! year

The average Iife expectancy assumptions, for members after retirement at 60 years of age, are as follows

2012 2011
Years Years
Retinng today
Male 27 g 278
Female 285 284
Retinng in 20 years
'Male 303 o2
Female 302 301

The longevity assumptions have been selected to reflect the charactenstics and expenence of the membership of the scheme This has been done by
adjusting standard mortality tables ('S1' senes of tables published by the CMI) which reflect recent research info montality expenence in the UK, with a
long-term rate of improvement of 1 §% per annum for males and 1 0% per annum for females

The sensitvities to changes in the pnincipal assumptions used to measure the scheme's liabifites are set out below

mpact on Impact on

scheme scheme

liabilities (labilitles

Movement % £m

Discount rate Decrease 0 1% 20% (205)
Discount rate Increase 0 1% 16% 166
Retail pnce inflation rate Increase 0 1% 18% 187
Retall pnce inflation rate Decrease 0 1% 18% (186)
Mortality rates Increase 1 year 3I0% 315
Mortality rates Decrease 1 year 30% (318)
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34. Capital management

The Group delivers long-term value ta its 100% shareholder, the BBC, through cash returned tn the form of dividends as a share of the Group's
profits, acquisition of BBC content or intellectual property, direct investment in BBC programming, production of onginal content and growth in the
capital value of the BBC's equity in the Group The BBC's expectations of the retums from BBC Worldwide include regular cash retumns in the form of
dwdends, which are an essenhal part of the BBC’s funding stream, and long term appreciation in the market value of BBC Worldwide

The dradend policy of the Group 1s therefore set by the BBC to achieve the optimum balance between annual cash returns to the BBC and BBC
Worldwide investing for growth in programming, intellectual property or ather assets to builld value over the long term

The BBC Trust's pnnciples require stnct comphance with the four Commercial Cntena fit with BBC’s public purposes, brand reputation and brand
values, commercial efficiency, and fair trading policy The Group’s policy in making investment decisions 1s governed by the BBC Trust's pnnciples
and commeraial efficiency of the investment The commercial effictency of an investment 1s determined on a case-by-case basis, with respect to
finanoial metnes such as net present value, intemnal rate of retum, payback pened and profit margin The Group's diversiiied portfolio of businesses
means that generalisatron of benchmarks 1s neither desirable nor possible Therefore, the Group operates a framework for calculating investment
discount rates that are tailored to each investment This framewerk applies appropnate nsk premiums to the discount rate in order to ensure all nsks
refating to the investment are taken into account and that the required rate of return is commensurate wath this level of nsk This In turn allows the
BBC and BBC Worldwde to achieve the optimal allocation of capital and balance its short term and long term return goals

35 Financial instruments and risk management

Financial risk management objectives

In the normal course of its activities, the Group 1s exposed to a vanety of financial nsks, including market nsk (including currency nsk, interest rate nsk
and pnce nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk BBC Worldwde takes a sk averse approach to cash and treasury management activities and seeks to
minimise the Group’s exposure to volatiity in the financizl markets The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures in
accordance with its hedging policy

The Group's financial nsk management operations are managed intemally by BBC Worldwde Group Treasury, with trade execution camed out by
BBC Group Treasury All treasury actvities are governed within parameters defined formally in the policies agreed by the BEC Executive Board and
BBC Worldwide Board In addibon, treasury actwties are routinely reported and are subject to review by management

The Group's financial mstruments, other than those used for treasury nsk management purposes, principalty compnse cash and cash equivalents, a
debt facility provided by ifs parent, external borrowings and vanous items such as trade recervables and payables that anse directly from its
operations The Group finances its operations from these financial instruments The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions

Currency risk

BBC Worldwde 15 exposed to foreign exchange nisk ansing from vanous currency exposures, pancipally in relation to the US doflar, the Euro and the
Australan dollar The Group generates a surplus in most currencies in which it operates The Group’s share of income from continuing operations
generated outside the UK was 64 3% in 2012 versus 62 2% in 2011

Foreign exchange transachion nsk anses from recognised assets and habiities and forecast future commercial transactions that are denominated in a
currency that 1s not the transacting entity's functional currency Due to movements in exchange rates over time, the amount the Group expects fo
receve or pay when it enters into a transaction may differ from the amount that it actually receives or pays when it settles the transaction A small
proportion of related operating expenses will also be denominated in these foreign currencies providing some level of offset to these revenue
exposures

The Group has implemented a hedging policy to minimise volatility 1n its financial results  The group's policy 1s to hedge the majonty of its forecast net
foresgn curency trading covenng a penod of one year, and a proportion of forecast trading for a further year thereafter Forward currency contracts
allow the Group to settle transactons at known exchange rates, and therefore to reduce uncertainty ansing from currency nsk

The overall cost of a hedged transaction and the associated forward currency contract in the income statement 1s fixed However, where contracts
span financial years and hedge accounting 1s not applied, the fair value of the forward curmency contract gives nse to gamnsflosses in each financial
year due to the timing difference between the recognition of such gains/losses and the recognition of the associated hedged transaction The
gainsflosses seen are therefore a result of market conditions as opposed to vanances n contract value

Some sales contracts also contain clauses whereby changes in currency rates outside of an agreed range impact on the contract pnce, m the majonty
of cases the value of the indnidual contracts and other features within the contract imit the currency nsk exposure to a level that 1s not significant to
the Group Such clauses have been separated from the host contracts and recorded as embedded denvatives The movement in fair values in these
denvatives s recorded through the income statement Further details of the value of embedded denvatives 1s given in note 25
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35. Financial instruments and nsk management {continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Foreign exchange translation nsk anses from the translation of overseas subsidiaries' Income statements and balance sheets into sterling This
translation currency nsk may be hedged by funding overseas investments with loans in the same functional currency as the overseas investment No
such net investment hedges were in place at 31 March 2012 or 31 March 2011

Since July 2010 the majonty of the forward foreign currency contracts entered into by the Group were designated as hedging instruments in effective
cash flow hedges Comesponding farr value movements have, accordingly, been recorded within other comprehensive income For forward foreign
currency contracts not designated as hedging nstruments, movements in farr value are recorded directly in the ncome statement within ‘other gains
and losses’

The following table shows the profit or loss and equity impact of a 10% adverse movement in currency rates on the Group’s denvative financial
nstruments

7012 2011

£m £m

Forward foreign currency contracts (147) (194)
Foreign currency oplions - -
_Embedded dernvatives (18) (10)
Total impact on derlvatives {16 5) (20 4)
Impact on income statement (31} (78
Impact on other comprehensive Income (13 4_) (12 6}
Total impact on comprehensive income {16 5) (20 4)

The same movement in currency rates would result In an income statement gain of £3 3m (2011 gain of £3 3m) in respect of the Group’s interest
bearing loans and borrowings and intragroup monetary assets and habihties not eliminated on consoldation

Intorest rate risk

The Group’s main exposure to interest rate fluctuations anses on extemal interest beanng labilities and loans from its parent undertakings BBC
Worldwide borrows at floating rates of interest creating an exposure to cashflow interest rate nsk BBC Worldwde then use interest rate swaps, caps
and collars to generate the desired interest profile and to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations The Group uses interest rate
swaps o fix interest rates so that greater cerainty about the level of future interest payments can be achieved Interest rate swaps, caps and collars
are taken out based on projected borrowing requirements, therefore differences will occur between the notional amount of swaps, caps and collars
and the actual borrowing requirements

If Interest rates had been 1% igher and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 would increase by
£1 5m (2011 increase by £2 5m) The incremental increase in profit 1Is pnmanly attnbutable to the effect that such a change i interest rates would
have on the farr value of interest rate swaps, which fix all of the Group's external fioating rate interest

Other price risk
Other pnce nsk 1s any pnce change other than those ansing from changes in currency or interest rates
Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obhgations
Credit sk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial instruments, avaldlable-for-sale financial assets and trade and other recevables
Group treasury policies require that cash and cash equivalents and denvative financial instruments are held pnmanly wath banks of A+ rating or better

The Group's credit nsk management policy in relation to trade receivables involves regularly assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into
account several factors such as therr financal position and histoncal performance Oespite the existence of some key customers in major
geographies, there 1s no material concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade recevables as the Group has a [arge number of customers,
geographically dispersed Credit terms, where given, are generally for a 30-day period The carrying amount of financial assets included in the
financial statements represents the Group's maxmum exposure to credit nsk in relation to these assets

The Group's other classes of financial assets do not contain impaired assets and are not past due
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35 Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

Liquidity risk

Liguidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial cbligations as they fall due BBC Worldwide s subject to cellings imposed
on 1ts borrowangs by BBC Group, which in tum s subject to imits set by the Secretary of State in accordance with the Agreement between the BBG
and the Department for Culture, Media and Sport At 31 March 2012, the net debt mit imposed by BBC Group on BBC Worldwide was £190 Om
(2011 £168 Om), with a gross debt imit of £240 Om (2011 £218 Om) subject to cormesponding cash balances being held These imits are subject to
review going forward

BBC Worldwide's loan waith the European Investment Bank (EIB} 1s subject to debl covenants based on the Group's earmings before mterest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation, and in addition exciuding charges ansing from business disposals or restructunng (EBITDA) The covenants are

- Net borrowings not to exceed three times EBITDA, and
- EBITDA to exceed three times net interest cost

The Group 1s active In monitonng its debt covenants which have been met at 31 March 2012

In order to comply with these ceilings together with the terms of any indiwidual debt instruments, BBC Worldwide manages its hiquidity through a
number of measures, including reguiar cash flow reporting, forecasting, hedging against foreign exchange fluctuations and preactively managing
working capital

The table below analyses the Group’s financial habilities into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining penod to contractual matunty at the
balance sheet date The armounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and will therefore not reconcile to the amounts
disclosed in the balante sheet for borrowings, denvative financial instruments and trade and other payables

Due In Due after
leas than Due in Due in more than

1 year 1to 2 years 2to 3 years 3 years Total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Financlal liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derwvative financial instruments 54 a7 - - 91
Embedded denvatives - - - 08 o8
Other creditors 140 - - - 140
Financial liabilitles measured at amortised cost
Bank loans 300 - - - 300
Loans owed to iIntermediate parent undertaking 34 66 0 - - 694
Obligations under finance leases 04 02 - - 06
Trade and other payables (excluding accruals and deferred income) 2629 - - - 262 9

Due in Due after

less than Dus In Due in more than

1 year 110 2 years 2to 3 years 3 years Total
2011 £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabtlitles at falr value through profit and loss
Denvative financial instruments 35 22 14 - 71
Embedded denvatives - - - - -
Cther creditors - 75 - - 75
Financial liabilitios measured at amortised cost
Bank loans 204 300 - - 504
Loans owed to intermediate parent undertaking 33 653 - - 686
Obhgations under finance leases 01 08 - - 10
Trade and other payables (excluding accruals and deferred income) 2403 - - - 2403
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35. Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

Fair value hlerarchy and valuation tachniques

The following table prowvides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subseguent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

+ Level 1 farr value measurements are those denved from quoted market pnces (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets and liabilities,

+ Level 2 farr value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or lability, either directly (1 e as pnces) or indirectly (i @ denved from pnces), and

+ Level 3 farr value measurements are those denved from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data {unocbservable inputs)

Covel 1 Lavel 2 Lovel 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Financilal assets at falr value
Denvative financial instruments - 37 - 37 - 44 - 44
Embedded denvatives - 01 - 01 - 01 - g1
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equities - - 06 06 - - - -
- 38 06 44 - 45 - 45
Financial liabilities at fair value
Denvative financial instruments - (5 5) - (55 - (90) - (8 0)
Embedded denvatives - (0 8} - (08) - (0 2) - (02
Other payables - - (14 ) (14 0) - - (75) (7 5)
- (6 3) {14 0) {20 3) - (92) (7 5) {16 7)

There were no transfers between levels duning the year

The farr values of denvative financial instruments are calculated using guoted pnces Where such pnces are not avallable, a discounted cash flow
analyss 1s performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional denvatives, and option pncing medels for
optional denvalives Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted
interest rates matching the matunties of the contracts Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on the applicable yield curves denved from quote interest rates

Level 3 financial habilities recorded at fair vaiue and included within other payables relate to wntten put options issued to non-controlling interests in
the Group's subsidianes The fair value of such instruments 1s calcutated based on the stnke pnce of the options and management's best estimate of
the date at which the options will be exercised

Where the stnke price of an option 15 based on the farr value of the undertying business, this has been estimated based on forecasts of future cash
flows prepared by management

The change in farr value of Level 3 financial instruments 1s reconciled as follows

Axgots Tlabliities 7012 Assets Liabilities 2011

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Opening balance - (7 5) @5 - 413 (413)
Purchases 06 - 06 - . .
Settlements - - - - 47 417
Unwinding of discount recorded within finance expense - - - - 28 (28
Change in farr value recorded in other gains and losses - (6 5) (6 5) - 40 (40
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses - - - - (a1 a4y
Closing balance 06 (14 0) {13 4) - (7 5} {7 5)

All remamning put options over minonty shares in the Group's subsidiary, Lonely Planet, were acquired by the Group on 14 February 2011 In
accordance with IAS 27 (2008) Consofidated and Separate Financial Statements , the exercise of the Lonely Planet put aption was treated as an
equity transaction

Options outstanding at 31 March 2012 were exercised in Apnl 2012 and will be settled in the year ending March 2013
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36 Related party transactions

Trading transactions

The related party transactions of the Group have been presented m accordance with |IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Related parties of BBC
Worldwide include its subsidiary, associated and joint venture undertakings, its parent undertakings and fellow subsidianes, and key management
personne! of the Group and their close family members Transactions between the BBC and BBC Worldwide Group pension schemes are detalled in

note 33

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are retated parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note Amounts owed by and to the BBC, the intermediate parent undertaking and fellow subsidiary undertakings within the BBC Group are

reported in notes 20 and 21 respectively

The following table illustrates transactions with BBC Group entihes dunng the year

2012 011

Em £m

Dividends pard {139 9) {83 4)
Interes! costs 45 @3
Acquisitton of distnbution nights {60 B) {56 8)
Royalties and other proegramme related fees (17 5) (17 6)
Web syndication nghts and hosting fees (7 3} (6 3)
Other expense (28 5) (34 3)
Ad sales commission 110 104
Other income 17 17

{245 8) (189 6}

Other income and expense includes recharges of administrative and other similar costs including property recharges, pension charges, and amounts

payable in accordance with service level agreements

The value of transactions conducted with joint ventures and associates was as follows

Dividends Dhvidends
ncome Expense recelved Income Expense received
2012 2012 2012 2014 2011 2011
Nama of refated party R hip £m Em £ £m £m £m
UK Channel Management Limited Jont Venture 92 - 16 103 - 48
UK Gold Holdings Limited Joint Venture a7o - 156 386 - 128
JV Programmes LLC Joint Venture 113 (16) 09 90 3 142
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 58 a7 (01} 41 (7 2) 57
Frontine Limited Associate - (15 - - 22 02
Other associates Associate 50 {4 4) 07 77 (5 2) 61
682 {13 2) 187 697 (14 9) 4318
All transactions with related parties anse in the normal course of business on an arm'’s length basis None of the balances are secured
The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date
Recelvadles Payables  Net bat Roceivabl Payabl Net bal
2012 2012 012 2011 2011 2011
Name of related party Refationship £m £m £m £m £m Em
UK Channel Management Lumited Jont Venture 36 - 38 41 {(122) 81
UK Gold Holdings Limited Joint Venture 194 (4 6} 148 158 - 158
JV Programmes LLC Joint Venture - (10} {10) 05 - 05
Other joint venfures Joint Venture ao (10} 20 24 (31) [(vdrg]
Frontlne Limited Associate - - - 59 (0 8) 51
Other associales Associate 44 {09) a5 88 - 88
30 4 (75 229 76 (16 1) 214

At 31 March 2012, the Group also had an outstanding balance of £2 Zm (2011
respect of group rehef This balance s ncluded within other payables
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Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group considers key management personnel as defined under tAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to be directors of the Group, together with the
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee Total emoluments for key management personnel were

2012 2011
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 58 64
Post-employment benefits 04 05
Other long-term benefits 09 08
Termination benefits 05 02
76 79

The above figures for emoluments include the remuneration of Directors (note 7)

37 Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Group's immediate parent is BBC Ventures Group Limited, which 1s in turn 100% owned by BBC Commercial Holdings Limited The ultimate
parent undertaking and controling party 1s the Briish Broadcasting Corporation, which 1s ncorporated in the United Kingdom by the Royal Charter
The largest group m wiich the results of BBC Worldwide are consolidated 1s that headed by the BBC The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be
obtained online at www bbc co uk/annualreport

38 Events after the balance sheet date

On 2 Apnl 2012, a dividend of £5 3m in respect of 2011/12 was paid

There were no other events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial statements
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As at 31 March 2012
7012 2011
Note £m Em
Fixed assets
Distnbution nghts c 1037 1085
Tangible fixed assets d 253 17 4
Investments e 145 3 158 8
2743 2847
Current assets
Programme nghts and other stock { 384 2556
Debtors
- due wathin one year g 3982 404 7
- due after one year g 100 84
446 € 438 6
Creditors amounts falling due wathin one year h (4131} (387 5)
Net current assets 335 511
Total assets less current llabilities 3078 3358
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year h (69 3} (98 7)
Prowisions for abilities and charges 1 (33 (3 5)
Net assets 2352 2336
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital k 02 02
Profit and loss account [ 2350 2334
Sharecholders’ funds 2352 2336

The financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, regiftered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue
on 7 June 2012 They were signed on its behalf

Phillp Vincent
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officer
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a. Pnncipal accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Compantes Act 2006 They have been prepared in accordance

with applicable United Kingdem Accounting Standards and law and are pnncipally prepared under the histoncal cost convention Areas where an

alternative basis of accounting has been applied are identified in the accounting policies below These policies have been applied consistently 1
throughout the year and the preceding year

Going concern

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost accounting convention Further information about the
going concern assumption 1s given in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost less prowvision for impairment Investments are reviewed for
impairment if there are indicators that the carrying value may not be recoverable Only dwvidends received and receivable are credited to the
Company’s profit and loss account

Foreign currency
The Company’s presentational currency 18 stering Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into stering at a monthly average exchange rate

Monetary assets and hatiities denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into sterimg at the balance sheet date at the rate of exchange ruling
at that date Surpluses and deficits ansing from the translation of monetary assets and liabiliies at these rates of exchange, together with exchange
differences ansing frem trading, are included in the profit and loss account

Distribution rights

Distnbution nghts represent nghts to programmes and associated intellectual property acquired with the pnmary intention of exploiting the nghts
commercially as part of the Group's long-term operations Distnbution nghts are inibally recogrused at acquisition ¢ost or production cost, when the
Group controls the respective assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them The carrying amount 1s stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and provision for impairment

Amortisation of distnbution nghts 1s charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its eshmated
average marketable ife The expected lives of distnbution nghts range from 4 to 10 years

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost after any provision for iImpairment, less accumulated depreciation

Expenditure on fixed assets 1s capitalised together with directly attnbutable costs incurred on capital projects Depreciation 1s charged so as to wnlte
off the cost of assets to their residual value, over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method Depreciation commences from the date an
asset 15 brought into service

The useful hves for depreciation purposes for the pnncipal categones of assets are

+ Short leasehold bulldings Unexpired lease term
*  Plant and machinery 3to 8 years
+ Fidures and fitings 3to 7 years

Loased assets

Operating lease rentals payable are recogrsed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease The Company has no finance leases
Impairment of fixed assets

The Company reviews the camying amounts of ifs fixed assets in accordance with FRS 11 Imparment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised in the profit and loss
account for the amount by which the asset's carmrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount

Stocks

Stocks compnsing books, DVDs, paper, raw matenals, and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Programme
nghts for broadcasting refer to the programme nghts acquired for the future broadcast on one of the Company's televiston channels or for sale to third
party broadcasters The carrying amount i1s stated at cost less accumulated amortisation, and after witing off the costs of programme nghts that are
considered imecoverable

Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt FRS 26 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement Policies apphed by the Company in respect of
financial mstruments are therefore consistent with those applied by the Group Further details about the Group's financial instrument policies and their
application 15 provided n the note 1 to the Group financial statements
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a. Principal accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A prowision 1s recogrused in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation ansing from past events and il 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Prowsions, other than deferred tax, that are payable over a
number of years are discounted to net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropnate 1o the particular prowvision concerned

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the Company
considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a
centingent hability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required te make a payment under the guarantee

Pension costs

For defined contnbution schemes, the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs s the contnbutions payable tn the

year Differences between contnbutions payable in the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the
balance sheet

The Company also paricipates in the BBC Pension Scheme, a multi-employer defined benefit scheme As there 1s no contraciual agreement or
stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to scheme participants, the Company has taken the exemption in FRS 17 Retirement benefits
to account for its contnbutions to the scheme as If it were a defined contribution scheme

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {(or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogrised in respect of all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date Timing differences anse
where transachons or events accurmng prior to the balance sheet date result in an obligation to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, in a future
penod owing to differences between between the Company's taxable profits and its profit for the year as stated wn its financial statements

Except where otherwise requred by accounting standards, full provision without discounting 18 made for all brming differences that have ansen but not
reversed at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recegnised to the extent that, on the basis of all avallable evidence, it 1s more Iikely than
not that they will be recovered

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders' funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent that they are appropnately authonsed and are
no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not meet these cntena are disclosed in the notes to the Company financal
statements
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b. Profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year The
Company reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 of £141 5m (2011 £126 9m)

The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services 1s disclosed in note 6 of the consolidated financial statements

c. Distribution nghts

£m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 2259
Additions 864
Disposal (0 8)
Elimination in respect of programmes fully amortised (15 8)
2957
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2011 117 4
Charge for the year 08
Disposal 04)
Elmination in respect of programmes fully amortised {15 8)
1820
Net book value at 31 March 2012 1037
Net book value at 31 March 2011 1085
d. Tangible fixed assets
Shert
leasehold Plant&  Fixtures & Assets under
buildings  Machinery Fittings constructicn Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 73 405 53 03 534
Additions - 163 - - 163
Disposals - 31) 03 - (34)
73 537 50 03 663
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2011 24 297 39 - 360
Charge for the year 08 67 09 - 84
Disposals - (31) 03 - (3 4)
32 333 45 - 410
Net book value at 31 March 2012 41 204 05 03 253
Net book value at 31 March 2011 49 108 14 03 17 4

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases (2011 £nil)
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e. Fixed asset investments

2012 L]
Em £m
Subsidianes 1150 1312
Joint ventures 145 148
Associates 146 128
Other Investments 12 -
1453 158 8
The Company has investments in the following subsidianes, joint ventures and associates which pnncipally affected the profits or net assets of the
Group To avoid a statement of excessive length, details of investments which are not significant have been omitied
All ownership interests relate to ordinary share capital with a coresponding interest in voting nghts unless otherwise stated
Tountry of IncorporaBion.
or principal business Ownership
Note address Principal activity Interest
Subsidiary undertakings
BBC Worldwide Amencas Inc + USA Holding company 100%
BBC Worldwide Australia Pty Limited + Australia Programme distributor 100%
BBC Worldwide Canada Limited + Canada Programme distnbutor 100%
BBC Worldwide France Sar + France Programme distributor 100%
BBC Worldwide Germany GmbH + Germany Programme distnbutor 100%
BBC Worldwde Japan KK + Japan Programme distnbutor 100%
BBC Worldwide Productions LLC USA Content produchon 100%
BBC Worldwide Reality Productions LLC USA Content production 100%
BBC Worldwide Channels Australasia Pty Limited Austrahia TV channel operator 100%
New Video Channel Amenca LLC USA TV channel operator 100%
UK Programme Distnbution Limited * + England & Wales Programme distributor 100%
BBC Magazines Holdings Limited + England & Wales Holding company 100%
BBC Magazines Rights 3 Limited England & Wales Rights hicensing 100%
BBC Worldwmde Australta Holdings Pty Limited + Australia Holding company 100%
Lonely Planet Publications Pty Limited Austraha Publishing company 100%
Lonely Planet Publications Inc USA Publishing company 100%
Lonely Planet Publications Limited England & Wales Publishing company 100%
fourforty Inc USA Digital technology developer 100%
2 entertain Limited + England & Wales Holding company 100%
2 entertain Video Limited England & Wales DVD/wideo publisher 100%
Demon Music Group Limited England & Wales CD/music pubhsher 100%
BBC com Limited + England & Wales Dagital media provider 100%
Bedder 6 Limited + England & Wales Content creation 50%
Worldwide Channel Investments Limited + England & Wales Holding company 100%
Joint ventures
UK Channe! Management Limited + England & Wales TV channel operator 50%
UK Gold Holdings Limited + England & Wales Holding company 50%
UK Gold Senaces Limited England & Wales TV channel operator 50%
JV Programmes LLC USA Content creation 50%
Freehand international Pty Limited + Ausliraha Content creation 38%
Ragdoll Worldwide Limited + England & Wales Content creation 50%
BBC Haymarket Exiibitions Limited England & Wales Consumer exhibition organiser 50%
Park Publishing Partnership Austraha Magazine producer 50%
Sub-Zere Events Limited England & Wales Live stage-performance operator 25%

+ Held directly by BBC Worldwade Limited

*  BBC Worldwide holds 93% of the 1ssued share capital but the non-controlling shareholders have no nght to distnbutions
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e. Fixed asset investments {continued)
Courttry of Incorporafion
or principal business Ownership
Name Note address Principal activity interest
Assoclates
Knowledge West Communications Cerporation * Canada TV channel operator 50%
Baby Cow Productions Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
Big Talk Productions Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
Burming Bnght Productions Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
Clerkenwell Films Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
GP Media S A Argentina Content creation 35%
Left Bank Pictures Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
Shim Film & TV Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
Sprout Pictures (TV} Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25%
Temple Street Productions Inc + Canada Content creation 25%
Tower Productions GmbH + Germany Content creation 49%
Children's Character Books Limited + England & Wales Children's book publisher 25%
AudioGo Limited England & Wales Audiobook publisher 15%
Cover to Cover Casettes Limited England & Wales Audiobook publisher 15%
Educational Publishers LLP + England & Wales Educational product lcensor 15%
Woodlands Books Limited + England & Wales Book publisher 15%
OCther Investments
Vikl, Inc + USA Video website operator 18%
+  Held directly by BBC Worldwide Limited
*  The shares held by BBC Worldwade entitle it to 20% of voting nghts
Jolnt Other
Subsidlaries ventures  Assoclates Investments
£m £m Em £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 2278 148 130 -
Additions - - 18 12
Disposals {15 9) - {0 2) -
2119 148 146 12
Provisions for impairment
At 1 Apnl 2041 (96 6) - 02) -
Wntten off (157) 03 - -
Disposals 154 - 02 -
(96 9) {0 3) - -
Net book value 1150 145 148 12

During the year, the Company acquired 25% of the 1ssued share capital of each of Buming Bnght Produchions Ltd and Slim Film & Telewision Ltd

Other additions dunng the year relate to minonty investments in Vik, inc and spaceport 10 Inc

Following an assessment of its carmying value, the Company's investment in BBC Worldwide Australia Holdings Pty Ltd (WAH) has been wntten down
by £15 7m to its recoverable amount WAH 15 the intermediate parent of Lonely Planet and its recoverable amount 1s based on value in use
calcutations using forecast cash flows approved by management and translated inte the Company’s functional currency using spot rates

Further information about key assumptions used in determining value in use are given In note 13 to the consoldated financial statements

The amount wrtten off joint ventures relates to the Company's imvestment in Freehand Intemational Pty Ltd This investment was sold subsquent to

the year end and has been wntten down to its recoverable amount in light of the proceeds received

Dunng the year, the Company also disposed of a number of subsidianes and investments which, collectively, made up its Magazines business
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f Programme nights and other stock
2612 2011
Em £m
Programme nghts for broadcasting 22 160
Proggrammes in the course of production 53 g1
Raw matenals and consumables - 01
Work in progress 03 04
Firushed goods for resale 08 09
384 255
g Debtors
012 7014
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 741 958
Prepayments and accrued income 278 126
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 2594 2593
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings 46 58
Amounts owed by Jaint ventures and associates 226 220
Denvative financial instruments 26 20
Corporation tax recoverable 49 22
Deferred tax - 14
Other debtors 22 36
398 2 4047
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by associates and joint ventures 31 26
Denvative financial instruments 12 08
Deferred tax 57 50
100 84
408 2 4131
h Creditors
2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdraft 808 439
Trade creditors 338 350
Rughts creditors 475 424
Accruals and deferred income 755 939
Amounts owed to ulimate parent undertaking 481 296
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 106 1 1151
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary underiakings 19 42
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 18 24
Denvative financial instruments 22 49
Other crediters including other taxes and social secunty 154 16 1
4131 3875
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans - 300
Loan owed to intermediate parent underiaking 648 645
Denvative financial instruments 45 42
69 3 987
Total creditors 4824 486 2

Detalls of bank loans and loans owed to the Company's intermediate parent undertaking are given in note 24 to the consolidated financial stalements
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i. Provisions for liabilities and charges and contingent habilities
Other
Deferred tax ~ provisions Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apni 2011 08 27 35
Prowided dunng the year 01 05 06
Released in the year - (0 1) 01
Utilised in the year - 07N (07)
At 31 March 2012 09 24 33

Other provisions pnimarily relate to property dilapidations and recrganisation costs

The Company also has a number of contingent hiabihtes ansing from liigation as a result of activittes undertaken in its ordinary course of business
BBC Worldwmide makes specific provision for the best estimate of any damages and costs which might be awarded Prowvision 3 only made to the
extent that the Drrectors consider it probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits and the amount can be reliably estimated

Further deferred contingent consideration may be payable in connection with acquisitions made by the Company No provision has been made where
the hkehhood and magnitude of additonal payments cannot be assessed wath reasonable certainty

The Company and some of its subsidianes operate a cash pooling arrangement  All the cash balances within the pool beleng to the legal entity to
which they relate, although the Company has access to all funds and each cash pool parhicipant s jointly and severally liable for any overdraft
balance

The Company and some of its fellow BEC Commercial Holdings subsidianes have given guarantees in relation to the BBC Commercial Holdings
Limiled revolving credit facility agreement At 31 March 2012, total amounts drawn down by the BBC Commercial Holdings Group under this facility
were £169 9m (2011 £190 1m})

j. Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s prowided as follows

Fixed esset  Derlvative

timing timing
differences  differences Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnt 2011 39 17 56
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss 02 (10} (0 8)
At 31 March 2012 41 07 48
k. Called up share capital
2012 2011
£m £m
Issued and fully paid
250,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02
The company has one class of shares which carry no nght to fixed iIncome
I Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Profit and
Share caplital loss account Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2010 02 1899 1901
Profit for the year - 126 9 126 9
Dividends paid - (83 4) (83 4)
At 31 March 2011 02 233 4 2336
Profit for the year - 1415 1415
Dividends paid - (1398) (1399)
At 31 March 2012 02 2350 2352
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m Financial commitments
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided are as follows
012 2011
£m £m
Software - 05
Distribution nights 453 48 6
Total 453 491
Future mimmum rental payments under non-cancellable operating leases, payable in the next year, are as follows
2012 2011
Land & Land &
bulldings Other Total  bulidings Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Leases which explre
Within one year - 28 28 - o8 08
Between two and five years 63 44 107 02 - 02
After more than five years - - - 62 - 62
Total 63 72 135 64 08 72
The Company also has the following unprovided financial commitments
— 2612 2011
Em £m
Programme nghis for broadgast 19 81
Other commitments 139 14 2
Total 158 223

n. Related party transactions

The Group consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 contain related party disclosures Consequently, the Company has
taken advantage of the exemption in FRS & Related Party Disclosures, not to disclose transactions with other members of the BBC Group

The value of transactions conducted with non wholly-owned subsidianes and with other related parties was as follows

Dividends Dividends
Income Expense hved p recelved

2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011

Name of related pasty Relationship £m £m £ £m £ £
Bedder 6 Limited Subsidiary 68 - 45 63 - 30
UK Programme Distnbution Limited Subsidiary 44 6 - 35 453 - -
514 - 80 526 - 30

UK Channel Management Limited Joint Venture 92 - 16 103 - 48
UK Gold Holdings Limited Joint Venture 370 - 155 386 - 128
JV Programmes LLC Joint Venture 113 - - 90 - -
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 56 {34) - 37 37 54
Associates Associate 32 {(24) 07 47 (4 9) 04
663 {(58) 178 663 8es) 234
1177 {58) 258 1189 (8 6) 264
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n. Related party transactions (continued)

The following amounts were outstanding with related parties at the balance sheet date

Receivables  Payables Net balance Receivables Payables MNetbalance

2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
Name of related party Relationship £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bedder & Limited Subsidiary - {(173) {17 3) - {139 (13 9)
UK Programme Distribution Limited Subsidiary 118 - 118 115 - 1156
18 (173) {5 5) 115 {13 9} (24)
UK Channel Management Limited Joint Venture s - 36 41 - 41
UK Gold Holdings Limited Joint Venture 148 - 148 14 4 - 14 4
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 30 09 21 22 (24) {02
Associates Associate 43 {09) 34 39 - 39
257 (18 239 246 (24) 222
ars {191} 18 4 361 (16 3) 198

At 31 March 2012, the Company also had an outstanding balance of £2 2m (2011 £2 2m) payable to a joint venture of the Company's ulimate parent
in respect of group relief This balance 15 included within other payables

©. Post balance sheet events

On 2 Apnl 2012, a dividend of £5 3m In respect of 2011/12 was paid

There were no other events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial statements

97




BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2012

Global addresses

EUROPE AMERICAS
London New York
BBC Worldwide Ltd & Lonely Planet BBC Worldwide Amencas

Media Centre

201 Wood Lane
London

W12 7TQ

UK

Tel +44 20 8433 2000

BBC Worldwide Consumer Products
33 Foley Street

London

WIW 7TL

UK

Tel +44 20 7612 3000

Fax +44 20 7612 3003

Cologne

BBC Worldwide Gemany GmbH
Im Mediapark Sb

50670 Kdin

Gemany

Tel +49 221 454 5580

Fax +49 221 454 5581

Paris {(production)

BBC Worldwide France Sarl
6 rue Jules Simon

92100

Boulogne-Billancourt
France

Tel +33141229400

Paris (sales)

BBC Worldwide France Sarl

264, rue du Faubourg Saint-Honoré
75008 Pans

France

Tel +33 1449584 00

Fax +33 144 95 84 09

1120 Avenue of the Amencas
Sth Fioor

New York

NY 10036

USA

Tel +1 212 705 9300

Fax +1 212 888 0576

Los Angeles

BBC Worldwde Amencas
10351 Santa Monica Blvd
Suite 250

Los Angeles

CA 90025

USA

Tel +1 310 405 8205

Oakland

Lonely Planet

150 Linden Street
Oakland

CA 94607

USA

Tel +1 510 250 6400
Fax +1 510 893 8572

Miami

BBC Worldwide Channels,
Latin Amenca & US Hispanic
135 San Lorenzo Ave

Suite 770 Coral Gables
Flonda 33146

USA

Tel +1 305 461 6999

Fax +1 305 441 0035

Sao Pauto

BBC Worldwide Amencas
Rua Famena de Araujo 741
1 Andar, Pinheires

Séc Paulo 05428002
Brazil

Tel +55 4121757777

Mexico

BBC Worldwide Mexico

Paseo de la Reforma #115

Piso 9 Colorva Lomas de Chapultepec
CP 11000

Maexico

Tal + 52 5552 01 9807

Fax +52 5552 02 3243

Toronto

BBC Worldwde Canada Ltd
409 King Street West

5th Floor

Toronto

Ontario, M5V 1K1

Canada

Tel +1 416 204 0500
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ASIA PACIFIC

Hong Kong

BBC Worldwde {Asia}
Rooms 2524-2536
Sun Hung Kai Centre
30 Harbour Road
Hong Kong

Tel +852 2827 2218
Fax +852 25112575

Singapore

BBC Worldwde Channels Asia
700 Beach Road

#08-08

Singapore

199598

T +65 6849 5511

Beiying

Worldwide Knowledge (Beying)
Business Consulting Co Ltd
(Consumer Products Office)
Unit 905, 9/F, Tower 3
China Overseas Plaza

8 Guanghua Donglh
Jianguomenwal Avenue
Chaoyang Distnct

Beying

China 100020

Tel + 8610 5281 4080

Fax + 8610 5281 4077
Tokyo

BBC Worldwide Japan Ltd
7F Akasaka Dai-ichi Building
4-9-17 Akasaka

Minato-ku

Tokyo 1070052

Japan

Tel +81 3 3746 4551

Fax +81 3 3746 4554

Mumbas

BBC Worldwide Channels Pvt Ltd
Construction House ‘A

401- 4th Fioor

Off Linking Road

24th Road Khar (W)

Mumbai 400 052

India

Tel +91 22 619 34 100

Fax +91 22 226 06 517

Bangalore

BBC Worldwide

415, Prestge Center Point
7, Edward Road
Bangalore — 560052

India

Tel +81 802 235 1070
Fax +91 802 235 1073

Dalhi

BBC World India Pvt Ltd

E-21, 2nd Floor, Hauz Khas Market
New Delhi = 110016

India

Tal +91 11 46 083 800

Fax +91 11 46 083 899

Sydney

BBC Worldwmde Australia
Level 5, 6 Eden Park Drnive
Macquane Park

NSW 2113

Austraka

Tel +61 2 9744 4500

Fax +81 2 9870 7317

Melbourne

Lonely Planet {Head Office)
90 Manbymong Street
Fooiscray

Melbourne

Victona 3011

Austraka

Tel +61 3 8379 8000

Fax +61 3 8379 8079

BBC Wordwide also has advertising sales
staff based in Switzerland, Atlanta, Chicago
Dubai, New Orleans and San Francisco
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